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// Philosophy

Founded in 1974, we have over 3,500 employees focusing on

O-0

delivering superior quality to our customers with the company
philosophy Challenging Excellence to Benefit Society

// What We Do

We are a leading metalworking
supplier with expertise in automotive
components, motorcycle parts, and
medical equipment. With over 40
years of experience serving industry's
leading giants, we focus on delivering
the best result.

We manufacture

so you can focus on the design

This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation, Annual Report 2016
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I. Letter to
Shareholders

At Polaris' Supplier Meeting in 2016,
Vietnam Precision Industrial No.1,
Eurocharm Group's subsidiary in
Vietnam, received the Delivery
Performance Award.

Annual Report 2016 This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation,

the Chinese text shall prevail.
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In 2017, Eurocharm Group
will continue to invest in
better equipment and
carry out new orders.

Chairman Speach

Allow me to take this opportunity to wel-
come you to our 2017 Annual Shareholders
Meeting and express my deepest gratitude
for your continued support. The following is
the outcome of our operations in 2016 and
the objectives for the upcoming years.

Operating Results

The total consolidated revenue for 2016 was NT$ 4,164,779
thousand, and the consolidated operating margin was NT$
748,386 thousand. The total net profit after tax was NT$
471,793 thousand, in which vested consolidated net profit
after tax to the shareholders of the parent company was

NT$ 471,793 thousand. The basic earnings per share after-tax
merger were NT$ 7.25.

This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation,

the Chinese text shall prevail.
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Net Assets and Liabilities

For the year ended December 31, 2016, the consolidated total
assets amounted NT$3,288,582 thousand. The total liabilities
was NT$706,544 thousand which accounted for the merger
consolidated total assets of 21.48%. The total consolidated
shareholders’ equity was NT$2,582,038 thousand which
marked 78.52% of the consolidated total assets.

Profitability Analysis

The basic earnings per share after tax was NT$ 7.25. The net
profit was 11.33%. The rate of return on assets was 14.48%, and
the return on equity was 18.58%.

Future Development and Strategies
1. Expansion of Capacity

In the upcoming year, Eurocharm Group will continue to invest
and purchase new iron and aluminum forging equipment to
carry out new orders. This will allow us to move forward into
the new area of development in metal machining processing.
Also, the Company will proceed with the expansion of tooling
factory by acquiring new processing equipment, upgrading the
production of tooling, inspection, and fixture and accelerating
the time for product development.

Also, the 5th plant in Vietnam is scheduled to be completed
this year. This will expand the scale of productions and allow
the Company to carry out orders from both existing and new
customers.

2. Growth in Medical Products

Eurocharm continues to broaden its cooperation with
manufacturers of medical care in Europe, America, Japan and
other parts of the world. Furthermore, the Company wishes to
gradually transfer to ODM operating model from the traditional
OEM business model. Shortly, the Company expects a larger
medical care customer base to increase our revenues steadily.

3. Development of Electric Scooters and Recreational Vehicles

With the sound basis of motorcycle chassis production,
Eurocharm continues to development the customer base in
electric scooters. Regarding the aspect of recreational vehicles,
the Company has been actively seeking and acquiring
business opportunities with companies in the North America
and Europe. Based on the steady increase in order volume,
the Company expects the production will multiply in the
upcoming years.

4, Development of Automobile Parts

In response to the tariff reduction towards auto parts by the
Association of Southeast Asian Nations (ASEAN), the Company
is actively engaged in developing new customers; as well as,
strengthening the relationship with the existing automobile
customers. The Company expects the result to reflect on the
profit growth in 2018.
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II Company
Profile

was originally founded in Taiwan in 1974, and
was one of the leading manufacturers in the
motorcycle industry during the fast-growing
years. Eurocharm Innovation now serves as a
subsidiary in Taiwan, principally engaged in
the manufacturing of medical equipment and
motorcycle parts.

In 2001, Vietnam Precision Industrial No.1 Co.,

Ltd., or for short, was
established near Hanoi, Vietnam to supply metal
fabrication parts to several reputable companies.

VPIC1 has since obtained several ISO certificates
over the years, and employees approximately
3,500 staffs and managers at the moment.

This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation,

the Chinese text shall prevail.

2.1 Company and Group

was established in the Cayman Islands on July
18th, 2011. The Company went on to acquire
Eurocharm Innovation Co., Ltd (B.V.l) and its
subsidiaries Eurocharm Innovation and VPIC1.

After the reconstruction of equity, Eurocharm
Group is then utilising three operating bases in
the British Virgin Islands, Taiwan and Vietnam.

Thus far, the revenue of the core business has
been from manufacturing auto and motorcycle
parts, medical equipment and hardware machine
components.

Annual Report 2016
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Eurocharm Holdings Co., Ltd.

Annual Report 2016

o
Vietnam Precision 20/0

Industrial No.1 Co., Ltd.

6.91%

Eurocharm Innovation

Co., Ltd.

Hsieh Yuan Technology
Vietnam Co., Ltd.

Apex Precision
Industrial Ltd.

Optimal Victory Ltd.

Eurocharm Innovation Co., Ltd. (B.V..)

Exedy Vietnam Co., Ltd.

Vietnam Precision
Industrial Joint Stock
Company
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Year Milestone

2016 Established Optimal Victory Ltd.
Installed TRUMPF TruLaser Tube

2015 Passed the OHSAS18001 certification
Established Apex Precision Industrial Ltd.
Installed a Mitsubishi 3D laser cutting machine

2014 Awarded with Ford Q1 Preferred Quality Award
Publicly listed in Taiwan Stock Exchange (TWSE) on September 25
Introduced liquid painting production line
Re-elected the 7 directors including 3 independent directors. Set up the Audit and

2013 Remuneration Committees. The share capital of Eurocharm Holdings Co., Ltd. was
converted from US$17,473,537 with the ratio of 1: 3.2548746 into denomination of NT
shares per share on October 25, 2013 at the provisional shareholders' meeting. After the
conversion, the Company's capital was NT$568,741,530, each denomination was NT$10,
56,874,153 in total

2012 After a capital increase of US$473,537, the Company's share capital was US$17,473,537,
USS$1 per share, 17,473,537 shares in total
Restructured the organization of the group to establish Eurocharm Holdings Co., Ltd.

201 Eurocharm Holdings Co., Ltd. issued a US$17,000,000 stake in acquiring the shares of
Eurocharm Innovation Co., Ltd. 100% owned by New General Ltd. and Seashore Group Ltd.
Jointed venture to establish Hsieh Yuan Technology Vietnam Co, Ltd. which specializes in

2010 zing, nickel, chromium and hard chrome plating
Passed the ISO13485 certification

2009 Introduced hydraulic stamping production line up to 1,200 tons

2007 Passed the ISO/TS16949 and 1SO14001 certification

2006 Jointed venture with EXEDY Japan to establish EXEDY Vietnam, main products are
motorcycle clutches

2004 Stationed epoxy-based e-coating production line

2003 Launched aluminum die-casting, CNC machining and passed the ISO9001 certification

2002 Installed stamping, tube bending, robotic welding, as well as, liquid and powder coating
production lines

2001 Established Vietnam Precision Industrial No.1 Co., Ltd. (VPIC1)

1994 Began the production of walkers and rollators

1988 Initiated the production of healthcare equipment parts and products

1983 Introduced and utilized an automated welding robot production line

1974 Established Eurocharm Taiwan as a professional manufacturer of motorcycle parts

This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation, Annual Report 2016

the Chinese text shall prevail.
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i1 Corporate
Governance
Report 2

3.1 Organization

Shareholder Meeting

Compensation
Committee

Internal Audit

Audit Committee Board of Directors

Chairman

President

Marketing Qualit Administration Taiwan Vietnam
Department &Dze;ar}?r%ér?ty D%gg??nﬂ%%t Subsidiary Subsidiary
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[Chairman]

Provides leadership and develops

| N | |
=8 3.1.1 o b ' s
Departments

[Audit Committee]

E Oversees the financial reporting and
the implementation of the business

[Compensation Committee]

Conducts reviews of the directors and
managers’ performance and evaluates
the Company’s overall compensation

structure .
[President]
E Executes the organization’s vision and
oversees the management
[Internal Audit]

E Assesses the business’ regulations and
compliance then provides guidance to
managers and staffs

[Administration &

Finance Department]
E Manages the overall human resource-

related administrative work, accounting,

budgets and maintenance of the work
environment

[Marketing Department]

E Drives sales of the products globally
and collects market and consumer

analysis
[Quality&Technology
= Department]
Develops new designs and reviews
quality control of the products
This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation, Annual Report 2016

the Chinese text shall prevail.



www.eurocharm.com.tw

info@eurocharm.com.tw

Annual Report

14

10 1012311 ‘S8AIINDaX]

Buipjoyaieys

jusun)

‘P11 dnouo aloyseas 1012311q
JEINT] "A 1 Joydan >mmm:_m:m
018 oluojuy 123.1d pPI7 [R4BUBD MBN ‘103d3110 Jo AjIsiaAlun
: 12die] [euonen
‘pr] “0) L'ON Jelisnpu -Juswabeuepy
UoISIIBI4 WEUISIA ‘UeWIIeyD ssauisng (aAnejuasalday
D : 000 0 000 o| sro Ll Lo oz | Loz/8L/L0 € | otoz/cz/90 3lew | na ey 0N r
(‘I'A'g) "P¥] 0D uoieAouu] |eba7) Jo1da11Q
Wieysoung ‘ueunieyd | AyisiaAiun buisy
— Buny> jeuonen
2115 OUYDDY UBMIR] 10323110 -uswabeuepy
ssauisng
‘P17 0D JuswdojaAag
uo4 buos 10sinladng
. 'p11“0)
|eI3N UBNA UBYS ‘uBwiieyd
'p¥] “0) uoljenouy
1ayroig | nausamas | soraaqg B
paywi (13pjoyaieys
- - - V/N V/N 000 0 000 0| 49/ 69L'vC SL'8¢ 69L'vT L10Z/81/L0 € | 910z/€T/90 dnoig eowes ajel0dio))
210y seas J032311Q
‘pY] JeLisnpu
uoisidalg xady ‘101d311g
sn|d Jaulled 4012311
"PYTH00INO M3N 40302110
P37 A10121A [ewindQ 4032241
‘P17 dnoug aloyseas 1012311q
P17 [RABUSD M “1012311Q
nA “pY1 0D L'ON [erisnpuj ABojouydal
laylolg oluojuy J0310311Q uoIsIdAI WEUISIA ‘UBWIIRYD) pue asuaIds
: . 0 Ayisianiun
weulaip Apax3 ,‘_wuum‘__o 6 mgzmm_‘.n_ .
-Bbunsauibug . . . . . (9nnne3USSsaIday
(TA') P11 03 Uonenouy jeoueypayy | 000 o| oo00 o oo0o o| ooo o| oz/8Lio € | otoz/ez/90 3eW | nAuaARS 204 | |e6a7) uewieys
weydoing ‘uewliey)
‘P11 0D Aysianiun
sBbulp|oH wieyd>0in3 ‘uewieyd uemie]
11703 |euoneN-van3
2)e1S OUYD3| UemIe] 1013311J
‘P17 0D JuswdojaAag
uo4 buog “osialadng
. 'p11“0)
|BID UBNA UBYS ‘UewLIleYD
n, . "
Y1019 _w@%__b Jop2110 Wil RS
'py] 0D
dnoio wieydoing ‘uewlieyd
paywiy (13pjoyaieys
- - - V/N V/N 000 0 000 0| vO'le €E€8'EL 0€'LT €EQ'EL LL0Z/81/L0 € | 910T/€7/90 |eJsusn eowes 2jel0dio))
M3IN J032311Q
uolje|ay sweN 9L % saleys % saleys % saieys % saleys
uiblo
diysupy Jo saa1be om3 ulyHM (uoneonp3) juswabuelly pa129|3 | (s4esp) | peided
uonIsod 19410 buipjoyaieys buipjoyaieys Pa3129|3 uaym JapusH sweN o Anunop SlHL
10 sasnods aie oym si1osiadng aouauadx3 23ulwoN Aq 1sdi4 91eqg w9 91ed A
JOUl|A 1 3snodsg Buipjoyaieys /AMjeuoiieN

saleys puesnoy] :uun

L10T/L1/%0

SI0SIAIddNG pue $103031I(J ‘uewarey) 1°¢°€

This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation,

Annual Report 2016

the Chinese text shall prevail.



15

SUON :sa3eljyje s} Jo Wy Buipunodde ue Ul payiom siosiaiadns 1o s1032a11p pakojdwa jo sase? iz 90N
SUON :3uaWabuelie daulwou Ag Buipjoyaieys as13oeid s1osiAIadns 10 S103D34IP JO SIse) 1| DION

www.eurocharm.com.tw

info@eurocharm.com.tw

Annual Report

JU| Y29129|3 9bplg SIUBUISNOD
uap|oo 4032311 Juspuadapu] Jo Aysianlun
Jeuonen ‘meq
, Ul eulieyq 40 105534014 . . . . 6uo4 . (uosiad
- - - 180 4032211q Juspudapu 000 000 000 0 000 0 | €L0T/61/90 € | 9L0z/€2/90 3lew nA-USH D0y | [eanieN).oaiid
p17-0) Ausiaaun Juapuadapu]
wia3sAg 493ndwod a:oxmm 3U10)
“1012811Q YUspuadapu] ‘me ur quq
RIEERY
-1 49beuepy
193f0ud
J1abeuepy
Aindag
Bununoddy
uonesodiod
RIEIN
‘uewsayods
*p17°0D uayz buayd 10312311Q /196euepy
P19 sleuiately MaN Buek jueisissy ) . . . Buad —— (uosiag
- - - 1A bUibbuoy osiasadng |epueuly | 000 000 000 0 000 0 | €L0T/61/90 € | 9L0z/€2/90 Slew uefig >'0'Y | [ednieN) _Eauw:n_
o1 juspuadapul
Ewewuén_o m.m,m%%u -di1o) uuod73
‘@dueUIS-dA
Aysianiun
dljoyied uar
n4-apei|
|euoneusalu|
pue bununoxy
Ausisniun
Buoy oeir-yaNg
w
‘P17 Ul 19\ Ul
390:6&3_9%;wwmmm P 000 000 000 0 000 0 | €L0T/61/90 € | 9L0z/€2/90 alel url 00 einje; iﬁoﬂww_:wa
wigvaoun | Ausienun veurr L0Z/61/! L0Z/€T/! e UIN-1BM o0Y || Ew_ncwawv.%_
19/ Ul Jueunoddy payiied -SJlwouod3 _UCN
adueUI4 UL QYd
Ayis1aniun buisy
buny) jeuonepn
uonepuno4 ysodg 1osiaiadng .ucwEmmmw”,_‘_mm:—\M
Ju| abelo)s ejuen “osiaiadng .
3dURUIIAOD
,p11"0) Jo Aysianiun X ) X 5 bueyd e (uosiad
- - - 2ynuaPS xayle] 1013a.11d [BUONEN-YEIN 000 000 000 0 000 0 | €L0T/61/90 € | 910z/€2/90 Slew UanaYg 20 |eanjeN) 40122110
uoneOossy |eyded
2INjUdA Uemie] 1013110 Aysianun buol
Q:Q._U an wp\_;_yfmﬁt_mr_u |Mm_®ﬂ—‘m_m%%mc:®mr_—\w
pue ssauisng
urayd
sn|d Jauyied 1013311q
‘PITH00INO MaN ,‘_Ouum‘__D
‘P37 dnoug aloyseas 1012311q
nNA Asudnaun
Jayloig |oRYdIN 013311 P17 [R4BUSD MBI “1012311Q uemie] [euoneN
ook rebi3) e nA (Ane1uasaiday
o uosipeiy | 000 000 Lo oz | so00 se | Loz/8L/L0 € | otoz/€z/90 e ooy 20U | \eba) sopang
uoleAou| wie N -UIsuUodsIM Jo ) :
) 4201n3 10132113
AKyis1aniun
‘py1"0) -Buneauibug
91e)S 0UYd3] ueml ;_V‘Cmﬂt_mr_u _M_‘_Hm:UC_
sayyoig | nausaals | Jopdaaig .Em,h.%w nw,m_m%u_w%m
/P10y
uolneAouu| wieyd0in3 403da11g
sn|d Jauyied 101311Q
‘P17 0D weuldip Abojouydsl
uenj yaisH ‘1013a11q
‘P17 003N MaN ‘10122110

Annual Report 2016

This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation,

the Chinese text shall prevail.



16 Annual Report | info@eurocharm.com.tw | www.eurocharm.com.tw

3.2.2 Major Shareholders
of the Institutional
Shareholders

04/17/2017

Name of Institutional

Shareholders Major Shareholders

Steven Yu (6.53%), Bi-Yue Yang (6.53%), Michael Yu (6.53%), Shun-Wei Yeh (6.53%),
New General Limited Antonio Yu (6.53%), Yun-Ru Chen (6.53%), Crystal Innovation Ltd. (18.08%), Po-Kai
Yu (10.98%), Ya-Han Yu (10.98%), Ya-Ting Yu (9.98%), Ya-Chu Yu (9.98%)

Steven Yu (9.56%), Bi-Yue Yang (9.56%), Michael Yu (9.56%), Shun-Wei Yeh (9.56%),
Seashore Group Limited Antonio Yu (9.70%), Yun-Ru Chen (9.70%), Crystal Innovation Ltd. (11.12%), Po-Kai
Yu (7.94%), Ya-Han Yu (7.94%), Ya-Ting Yu (6.94%), Ya-Chu Yu (6.94%)

3.2.3 Major Shareholders of the Company’s
Major Institutional Shareholders

04/17/2017

Name of Institutional

Shareholders Major Shareholders

Antonio Yu (4.18%), Yun-Ru Chen (4.18%), Tzu Hsien Yu (31.98%), Ya Yuan Yu

Crystal Innovation Ltd. (29.839%), Fu Chen Yu (29.83%)

Annual Report 2016 This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation,
the Chinese text shall prevail.
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3.2.4 Professional Qualifications and Independence Analysis
of Directors and Supervisor

Meet One of the Following Professional Qualification
Requirements, Together with at Least Five Years Work Independence Criteria(Note)
Experience
AJudge, Public
An Instructor or Prosecutor,
Higher Position AT, Number of
g e —— Certified Public umber of
o Corzmerce Accountant, Have Work Other Public
e Finance’ or Other Experience in _Companles
Acco'untin o'r Professional the Areas of in wh,'Ch th.e
o Acad%mic or Technical Commerce, Individual is
Basarimam: Specialist Who Law, Finance, slalslelzlslolio Congurrently
Relaried iihe has Passed or Accounting, Serving as an
Buiiess Nazk a National or Otherwise Indgpendent
i Colent Examination and | Necessary for the Director
. pany been Awarded Business of the
in a Public or . ;
. . a Certificate in Company
Private Junior .
a Profession
College, College or N for th
University ecessary for the
Business of the
Company
New Gengral
Limite
Representative: v V| v v 0
Steven Yu
Seashore q
Group Limite
Representative: v Y v 0
Michael Yu
Seashore q
Group Limite
Representative: v V|V v 0
Antonio Yu
Steven Chang v viv|iv| v |v]|v| Vv ]|v|v]yVv 0
Wei-Min Lin \Y \Y viv|iv]v | v|lfv| Vv ]|v|v]vV 0
Bryan Peng \% viviv]|v | v|v| Vv]|Vv | Vv]V 0
Gen-Yu Fong \Y \Y viv|iv]v | v|lfv| v ]|v|v]yV 3

Note: Please tick the corresponding boxes that apply to the directors or supervisors during the two years before being elected or
during the term of office.

1.Not an employee of the Company or any of its affiliates.

2.Not a director or supervisor of the Company or any of its affiliates. Not applicable in cases where the person is an independent
director of the Company, its parent company, or any subsidiary as appointed by the Act or with the laws of the country of the
parent or subsidiary.

3.Not a natural-person shareholder who holds shares, together with those held by the person’s spouse, minor children, or held by
the person under others’ names, in an aggregate amount of 1% or more of the total number of outstanding shares of the Company
or ranking in the top 10 in holdings.

4.Not a spouse, relative within the second degree of kinship, or lineal relative within the third degree of kinship, of any of the
persons in the preceding three subparagraphs.

5.Not a director, supervisor, or employee of a corporate shareholder who directly holds 5% or more of the total number of
outstanding shares of the Company or who holds shares ranking in the top five holdings.

6.Not a director, supervisor, officer, or shareholder holding 5% or more of the shares, of a specified company or institution which
has a financial or business relationship with the Company.

7.Not a professional individual who is an owner, partner, director, supervisor, or officer of a sole proprietorship, partnership,
Company, or institution that provides commercial, legal, financial, accounting services or consultation to the Company or any
affiliate of the Company, or a spouse thereof. These restrictions do not apply to any member of the remuneration committee
who exercises powers under Article 7 of the “Regulations Governing the Establishment and Exercise of Powers of Remuneration
Committees of Companies whose Stock is Listed on the TWSE or Traded on the TPEx.”

8.Not having a marital relationship or a relative within the second degree of kinship to any other director of the Company.
9.Not being a person of any conditions defined in Article 30 of the Company Law.

10.Not a governmental, juridical person or its representative as defined in Article 27 of the Company Law.

This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation, Annual Report 2016

the Chinese text shall prevail.
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3.2.5

TEAM
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Range of Remuneration

Name of Directors

Total of (A+B+C+D) Total of (A+B+C+D+E+F+G)
Range of
Remuneration
Companies in the Companies in the
The Company consolidated financial | The Company [ consolidated financial
statements statements
Michael Yu, Antonio | Michael Yu, Antonio Yu, . -
Under NTS Yu, Steven Chang, Steven Chang, Wei-Min l\iltiivli: %P:agg,;/;/r?l- Slt_ier\}/egrc::rllg;]WeGl-;\:I]l_n
2,000,000 Wei-Min Lin, Bryan Lin, Bryan Peng, Gen- Gen'-YuyFon 9 ! <(u Fon 9
Peng, Gen-Yu Fong Yu Fong 9 9
NT$2,000,001 ~ i i Michael Yu, Antonio Antonio Yu
NT$5,000,000 Yu
NT$5,000,001 ~ )
NT$10,000,000 Steven Yu Steven Yu Steven Yu Steven Yu, Michael Yu
Total 7 7 7 7

3.3.2
Remuneration
of Supervisors

N/A, no supervisors at the
Company.

Annual Report 2016 This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation,
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Range of Remuneration

Name of President and Vice President

The Company

Companies in the consolidated
financial statements

Jack Zhao, James Zhan, Andy

Under NT$ 2,000,000 Wu, Cina-Jin Zhan, Cheng-Wen Robert Lin
Wang, Robert Lin
Jack Zhao, James Zhan,
NT$2,000,001 ~ NT$5,000,000 Andy Wu, Cina-Jin Zhan,
Cheng-Wen Wang
Total 6

3.3.4 REMUNERATION OF
THE EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Unit: NTS thousands

Employee Bonus Employee Ratio of Total
Title Name - in Stock Bonus Total ,\’Ii\é??#cr:)tr;%
(Fair Market Value) -in Cash (%)
Executive Assistant Michael Yu
Executive Assistant Antonio Yu
General Manager Jack Zhao'
Deputy General Robert Lin
Manager
Deputy General
i James Zhan
Executive Manager 0 7,370 7,370 1.56
Officers
Deputy General Andy Wu
Manager
Deputy General Cina-Jin Zhan
Manager
Deputy General Cheng-Wen
Manager Wang
Associate General Shang-Chong
Manager Ren?

Note 1: General Manager Jack Zhao resigned on December 20th, 2016 and the position is filled by Chairman Steven Yu
Note 2: Associate General Manager Shang-Chong Ren resigned on July 6th, 2016.

Annual Report 2016
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3.3.5 Comparison of Remuneration for Directors,
Supervisors, Presidents and Vice Presidents in the
Most Recent Two Fiscal Years and Remuneration
Policy for Directors, Supervisors, Presidents and Vice
Presidents

A. The ratio of total remuneration paid by the Company and by all companies included in the consolidated
financial statements for the two most recent fiscal years to directors, supervisors, presidents and vice
presidents of the Company, to the net income.

2015 2016
Total remuneration paid Ratio of total remuneration Total remuneration paid Ratio of total remuneration
to directors, supervisors, paid to directors, supervisors, to directors, supervisors, paid to directors, supervisors,
presidents and vice presidents and vice presidents | presidents and vice presidents | presidents and vice presidents
presidents (thousands) to net profit (%) (thousands) to net profit (%)
Title
Companies Companies Companies Companies
The in t.he The in t.he The |nt_he The in t.he
consolidated consolidated consolidated consolidated
Company financial Company financial Company financial Company financial
statements statements statements statements
Directors
17,238 31,745 3.56 6.56 22,965 39,0M 4.87 8.27
General
Manager,
Deputy
General
Managers

Note 1: The net profits in 2016 and 2015 referred to the after-tax net profits in the financial reports.

B. The policies, standards, and portfolios for the payment of remuneration, the procedures for
determining remuneration, and the correlation with business performance.

The compensation to directors and other key
management personnel were determined
by the Remuneration Committee of the
Company by the individual performance and
the market trends.

The compensation is measured based on
the employee’s personal achievements, the
contribution made to the business operation,
and the market averages. It has a positive
correlation with the performance of the
Company's business.

This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation,
the Chinese text shall prevail.
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3.4 Implementation of Corporate Governance

4.1 BOARD OF
DIRECTOR’

A total of 7 (A) meetings of the Board of Directors were held in the previous period. The attendance of director and supervisor were as follows:

. Attendance in Attendance Rate
Title Name Person (B) By Proxy (%) [B/A] Remarks
New General

. Limited Elected on
Chairman Representative: / 0 100 06/23/2016

Steven Yu

Seashore

. Group Ltd. Elected on
Director Representative: / 0 100 06/23/2016

Michael Yu

Seashore

) Group Ltd. Elected on
Director Representative: / 0 100 06/23/2016

Antonio Yu
Director Steven Chan 6 1 86 Eloctedion
' Y 2 06/23/2016
Independent Elected on
director Bryan Peng / 0 100 06/23/2016
Independent S Elected on
director e / L o 06/23/2016
Independent Elected on
director Gen-YuFong 6 ! 86 06/23/2016

Other mentionable items:

1. If any of the following circumstances occur, the dates of the meetings, sessions, contents of motion, all independent
directors’ opinions and the company’s response should be specified:

(1) Matters referred to in Article 14-3 of the Securities and Exchange Act.

(2) Other matters involving objections or expressed reservations by independent directors that were recorded or stated
in writing that requires a resolution by the board of directors.

2. If there are directors’ avoidance of motions in conflict of interest, the directors’ names, contents of motion, causes for
avoidance and voting should be specified: None

3. Measures taken to strengthen the functionality of the board: The Board of Directors has established an Audit Committee
and a Remuneration Committee to assist the board in carrying out its various duties.

Annual Report 2016 This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation,
the Chinese text shall prevail.
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A total of 6 (A) Audit Committee meetings were held in the previous period. The attendance of the independent directors was as follows:

. Attendance in Attendance Rate (%)
Title Name Person (B) By Proxy X [B/A] Remarks

Convener Wei-Min Lin 6 0 100 Elected on
06/29/2016

Committee Elected on
. Gen-Yu Fong 5 1 83 06/29/2016
Committee Elected on
Member Bryan Peng 6 0 100 06/29/2016

Other mentionable items:

1. If any of the following circumstances occur, the dates of meetings, sessions, contents of motion, resolutions of the Audit
Committee and the Company’s response to the Audit Committee’s opinion should be specified:

(1) Matters referred to in Article 14-5 of the Securities and Exchange Act.

(2) Other matters which were not approved by the Audit Committee but were approved by two-thirds or more of all
directors.

2.If there are independent directors’ avoidance of motions in conflict of interest, the directors’ names, contents of motion,
causes for avoidance and voting should be specified: None

3. Communications between the independent directors, the Company's chief internal auditor and CPAs (e.g. the material
items, methods and results of audits of corporate finance or operations, etc.)

(1)The internal auditors have communicated the result of the audit reports to the members of the Audit Committee
periodically, and have presented the findings of all audit reports in the quarterly meetings of the Audit Committee.
Should the urgency of the matter require it, the Company's chief internal auditor will inform the members of the Audit
Committee outside of the regular reporting. The communication channel between the Audit Committee and the internal

COMMITTEE

This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation, Annual Report 2016

the Chinese text shall prevail.
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3.4.3 Corporate Governance Implementation Status
and Deviations from ‘“the Corporate Governance Best-
Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies”

Deviations from
Implementation Status “the Corporate
Governance
Best-Practice
Evaluation Item Principles
Yes | No Abstract lllustration for TWSE/
TPEx Listed
Companies” and
Reasons
1. Does the Company establish and
) pany The Company has established the Corporate Governance
disclose the Corporate Governance . o Y
) o Best-Practice Principles based on “Corporate Governance
Best-Practice  Principles  based . L . o
" v Best-Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies.” | None
on "Corporate Governance Best The information has been disclosed on the Company’s
Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx . pany
. - website.
Listed Companies”?
2. Shareholding  structure &
shareholders’ rights
(1) Does the Company establish an
internal operating procedure to (1) In addition to the existing hotline and email channels, the
deal with shareholders’ suggestions, Company has established an internal operating procedure
doubts, disputes, and litigations, and and has designated appropriate departments, such as
implement based on the procedure? Investor Relations, Public Relations, Legal Department, to
handle shareholders’ suggestions, doubts, disputes, and
litigation.
2) Does the Company possess the
(.) . L pany b (2) The Finance & Shared Services Division is responsible for
list of its principal shareholders as ) ) ; ;
. collecting the updated information of major shareholders
well as the ultimate owners of those - A
and the list of ultimate owners of those shares.
shares?
(3) Does the Company establish (3) Bules are made to strictly regulate the activities of
. trading, endorsement, and loans between the Company
and execute the risk management | v . . . None
e and its affiliates. Also, the “Criteria of Internal Control
and firewall system within its . _ B ) ) )
Mechanism for a Public Company,” outlined by the Financial
conglomerate structure? . o . o
Supervisory Commission when drafting the guidelines
for the “Supervision and Governance of Subsidiaries,” was
followed to implement total risk control on subsidiaries.
(4) Does the Company establish (4) To protect shareholders’ rights Aand falrl?/ treat
. T . shareholders, the Company has established the internal
internal rules againstinsiders trading o ; .
. . . . rules to forbid insiders trading on the undisclosed
with undisclosed information? . .
information. The Company has also strongly advocated
these rules to prevent any violations.
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Evaluation Item

Implementation Status

Yes

No

Abstract lllustration

Deviations from
“the Corporate
Governance
Best-Practice
Principles
for TWSE/
TPEX Listed
Companies” and
Reasons

3. Composition and Responsibilities of
the Board of Directors

(1) Does the Board develop and
implement a diversified policy for the
composition of its members?

(2) Does the Company voluntarily
establish other functional committees
in addition to the Remuneration
Committee and the Audit Committee?

(3) Does the Company establish a
standard to measure the performance
of the Board, and implement it
annually?

(4) Does the company regularly
evaluate the independence of CPAs?

(1) Member diversification is considered by the Board
members. Factors taken into account include, but are not
limited to gender, age, cultures, educational background,
race, professional experience, skills, knowledge, and terms
of service. The Board objectively chooses candidates to
meet the goal of member diversification.

(2)In order for the sound supervision and reinforcement of
management, the Company established the Nomination
and Risk Management Committee in addition to the
Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee. These
working committees shall be responsibilities for the Board
of Directors.

(3) The Company has formulated rules and procedures
for evaluating the Board’s performance and conducts it
annually. The Company uses two methods to evaluate the
performance of the Board.

1. Self-assessment of Board members

Board members fill in the” Self-Assessment Questionnaire
for Board Members” at the end of each year. To evaluate the
performance of each member effectively, the questionnaire
contains the following factors:

A.Their grasp of the Company's goals and missions;
B. Their recognition of director's duties;
C.Their degree of participation in the Company's operations;

D. Their management of internal
communications;

relationships and

E. Their professionalism and continuing professional
education;

F. Internal controls.

2. Assessment of the Board:

The Secretary Office of the Board conducts the evaluation
of the Board’s performance. The following aspects are taken
into consideration:

A.The degree of participation in the Company's operations;

B. Improvement in the quality of decision making by the
Board of Directors;

C.The composition and structure of the Board of Directors;

D. The election of the directors and their continuing
professional education.

E. Internal controls.

(4) The Company evaluates the independence of CPAs
annually, ensuring that they are not stakeholders such as a
Board member, supervisor, shareholder or person paid by
the Company.

None

This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation,

the Chinese text shall prevail.
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Evaluation Item

Implementation Status

Yes

No

Abstract Illustration

Deviations from
“the Corporate
Governance
Best-Practice
Principles
for TWSE/
TPEx Listed
Companies” and
Reasons

4. Does the company set up a corporate
governance unit or appoint personnel
responsible for corporate governance
matters (including but not limited to
providing information for directors and
supervisors to perform their functions,
handling work related to meetings of the
board of directors and the shareholders'
meetings, filing company registration
and changes to company registration,
and producing minutes of board
meetings and shareholders’ meetings)?

The company provides the Administration & Finance
Department and Secretary of Board of Director responsible
for corporate governance matters and describes the role/
function of the unit or personnel and material matters that
have been taken care of in the most recent year.

None

5. Does the company establish a
communication channel and build a
designated section on its website for
stakeholders (including but not limited
to shareholders, employees, customers,
and suppliers), as well as handle all the
issues they care for regarding corporate
social responsibilities?

The Company provides detailed contact information,
including telephone numbers and email addresses in the
“Stakeholder Area” section of the corporate website. Also,
personnel is in place to exclusively deal with issues of social
responsibility, ensuring that various interested parties have
channels to communicate with the Company.

None

6. Does the Company appoint a
professional shareholder service agency
to deal with shareholder affairs?

The Company designates Yuanta Securities Co., Ltd. to deal
with shareholder affairs.

None

7. Information Disclosure

(1) Does the Company have a corporate
website to disclose both financial
standings and the status of corporate
governance?

(2) Does the Company have other
information disclosure channels (e.g.
building an English website, appointing
designated peopleto handleinformation
collection and disclosure, creating a
spokesman system, webcasting investor
conferences)?

The Company has set up a Chinese/English website (www.
eurocharm.com.tw) to disclose information regarding the
Company’s financials, business, and corporate governance
status.

The Company has assigned an appropriate person to
handle information collection and disclosure. The Company
has established a spokesman system. Investor conference
information is disclosed on the corporate website.

None

8.Isthereanyotherimportantinformation
to facilitate a better understanding of
the Company’s corporate governance
practices (e.g., including but not limited
to employee rights, employee wellness,
investor relations, supplier relations,
rights of stakeholders, directors’ and
supervisors’  training  records, the
implementation of risk management
policies and risk evaluation measures, the
implementation of customer relations
policies, and purchasing insurance for
directors and supervisors)?

(1) Directors’and supervisors’ training records:

Chairman Steven Yu 6H “How to review financial reports
without an accounting background?” and “The 2nd
Corporate Governance Evaluation Ceremony & Keynote
Speech!”

Director Michael Yu 6H “105 Corporate Governance Forum
Series - Insider Trading & Corporate Social Responsibility
Seminar” and “The 2nd Corporate Governance Evaluation
Ceremony & Keynote Speech!”

Director Antonio Yu 6H “Cross-Strait Anti-Avoidance Law”
and “Corporate Responsibility for Mergers & Acquisitions.”

None
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Evaluation Item

Implementation Status

Yes

No

Abstract Illustration

Deviations from
“the Corporate
Governance
Best-Practice
Principles
for TWSE/
TPEx Listed
Companies” and
Reasons

Director Steven Chang 6H “105 Corporate Governance
Forum Series - Insider Trading & Corporate Social
Responsibility Seminar” and " Corporate Governance and
the Responsibilities of the Board of Supervisors."

Independent Director Bryan Peng 6H “Legal Responsibility
and Case Analysis of Phytosanitary Act in Economic Crimes”
and “Legal Responsibility & Case Analysis of Executives
Trading Their Company Stocks.”

Independent Director Wei-Min Lin 6H “An Analysis of the
Points and Doubts of the Annual Tax Tax Report.”

Independent Director Gen-Yu Fong 6H “Corporate
Directors' Responsibilities under M & A Transactions” and
"Management of Confidential Business Information & Non-
Compete Agreement from the Corporate Governance
Perspective "

(2) Board Meetings: The Company has established
regulations towards board meetings including the specific
procedures, directors’ attendances, and the voting rights.

(3) Investor Relations: The Company has a spokesperson
system, a litigation representative and a non-litigation
representative in the territory of the Republic of China for
immediate assistance of the investors, customers, suppliers
and other interested parties. News regarding the company'’s
finances is announced on “MOPS” to provide timely
information that may affect the decisions of investors.

(4) Rights of Interested Parties: The Company maintains
positive communication channels with banks, employees,
customers, suppliers and stakeholders.

(5) Implementation of Risk Management and Evaluation:
The Company has established internal regulations and
related management practices.

(6) The Company has purchased liability insurance for its
directors and managers since the year 2016.

(7) For more information and disclosures, please visit: http://
www.eurocharm.com.tw

None

priority enhancement measures.

Please explain the improvements which
have been made in accordance with the
results of the Corporate Governance
Evaluation System released by the|v
Corporate Governance Center, Taiwan
Stock Exchange, and provide the

The Company has reported the result of last year's corporate
governance evaluation to the Board of Directors. For
significant improvement in the future, the Company had
assigned dedicated staff to establish improvement plans
targeting the non-scoring items.

None

This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation,

the Chinese text shall prevail.
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The Remuneration Committee assists the Board in discharging its responsibilities relating to the
Company’s compensation and benefits policies, plans and programs, and the evaluation of the directors’
and executives’ compensation.

A. Professional Qualifications and Independence Analysis of Remuneration Committee Members

Meets One of the Following Professional Qualification
Requirements, Together with at Least Five Years' Work Independence Criteria (Note)
Experience
Ajudge, public
0 prosecutor,
ﬁ? |:::ru§st§:'oc:' attorney, Number o_f
e dep':rtment Certified Public Other Public
Accountant, Has work Companies
c;_;(;:?gﬁrccee' or other experience in in \X_/h_ich th_e
Title Name accc;unting, o professional the areas of Individual is R
el or technical commerce, Com.:urrently
R specialist who law, finance, 1|l = 6|78 Serving as an
rela’:ed to the has passed or accounting, 3145 Remune.ratlon
ETR LT a national or otherwise Committee
of the Compan examination and | necessary for the Member
e publi!:)ory been awarded business of the
private junior a certificate in Company
college, college a professufm
or university necessary for
the business of
the Company
Independent | Wei-Min
Director Lin v v viv]v]v]|v]|v]v]yv 0
Independent Bryan v ¥ VR O VN I P I 0
Director Peng
Independent Gen-Yu
R \Y \Y viv]|v|v]v]v]|yvV \Y 3
Director Fong

Note: Please tick the corresponding boxes that apply to a member during the two years prior to being elected or during the term(s) of office.
1. Not an employee of the Company or any of its affiliates.

2. Not a director or supervisor of affiliated companies. Not applicable in cases where the person is an independent director of the
parent company or any subsidiary as appointed by the Act or with the laws of the country of the parent or subsidiary.

3. Not a natural-person shareholder who holds shares, together with those held by the person’s spouse, minor children, or held by
the person under others’ names, in an aggregate amount of 1% or more of the total number of outstanding shares of the Company,
or ranking in the top 10 in holdings.

4. Not a spouse, relative within the second degree of kinship, or lineal relative within the third degree of kinship, of any of the persons
in the preceding three sub-paragraphs.

5.Not a director, supervisor, or employee of a corporate shareholder who directly holds 5% or more of the total number of outstanding
shares of the Company, or who holds shares ranking in the top five holdings.

6. Not a director, supervisor, officer, or shareholder holding 5% or more of the shares of a specified Company or institution which has
a financial or business relationship with the Company.

7.Not a professional individual, who is an owner, partner, director, supervisor, or officer of a sole proprietorship, partnership, Company,
or institution that provides commercial, legal, financial, accounting services or consultation to the Company or any affiliate of the
Company, or a spouse thereof.

8. Not a person of any conditions defined in Article 30 of the Company Law.

Annual Report 2016 This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation,
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B. Attendance of Members at Remuneration Committee Meetings

31

There are 3 members in the Remuneration Committee. A total of 4 (A) Remuneration Committee
meetings were held in the term from June 29, 2016 to June 23, 2019. The attendance record of the
Remuneration Committee members was as follows:

Attendance in Attendance Rate
Title Name By Pro: Remarks
: Person(B) y Froxy (%) [B/A]

S Elected on
Convener Wei-Min Lin 4 0 100 06/29/2016

Committee Elected
Gen-Yu Fong 3 1 75 ectedon
Member 06/29/2016

Committee Elected
Bryan Peng 4 0 100 ectedon
Member 06/29/2016

Other mentionable items:

1. If the board of directors declines to adopt or modifies a recommendation of the remuneration committee, it
should specify the date of the meeting, session, content of the motion, resolution by the board of directors, and the
Company'’s response to the remuneration committee’s opinion (eg., the remuneration passed by the Board of Directors
exceeds the recommendation of the remuneration committee, the circumstances and cause for the difference shall
be specified): None.

2. Resolutions of the remuneration committee objected to by members or subject to a qualified opinion and recorded
or declared in writing, the date of the meeting, session, a content of the motion, all members’ opinions and the
response to members’ opinion should be specified: None.

This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation,

the Chinese text shall prevail.
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3.4.5

CORPORATE
SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

Deviations from “the
Implementation Status Corporate Social
Responsibility Best-
Evaluation ltem Practice Principles
for TWSE/TPEX Listed
Yes | No Abstract Explanation Companies” and
Reasons
1. Exercising corporate
governance
(a) Has the Company formulated
CSR policies or established a CSR
system and does it review the
implementation results? (a) The Company has formulated CSR Best Practice Principles
. and handles CSR related matters in accordance with these
(b) Does the Company organize principles
CSR-related educational training ’
on a regular basis? (b) The Company organizes CSR-related training courses and
. education on a scheduled and non-scheduled basis.
(c) Has the Company established
exclusively (or concurrently) (c) Management departments of the Company concurrently
dedicated units to be in charge serve as dedicated CSR units during the current stage and are
of proposing and enforcing v in charge of promoting CSR-related operations. None
CSR policies and has the board
authorized the top management (d) The Company has established an employee performance
level to handle CSR-related evaluation system and provides relevant education during
matters and report the progress meetings or staff training on a non-scheduled basis. The
to the board? Company also actively schedules advanced training courses
for board directors to reinforce their understanding of
(d) Has the Company formulated corporate governance. However, the employee performance
reasonable remuneration evaluation system has not yet been linked to CSR policies.
and compensation policies?
Is the employee performance
evaluation system linked to CSR
policies? Is a clear and effective
reward and penalty system in
place?
(@) The Company is committed to a more efficient utilization
2. Fostering a sustainable of resources and promotes low-carbon offices and inculcates
environment water and power conservation habits among its employees.
(a) Does the Company endeavor (b) The Company has always placed great emphasis on eco-
to utilize all resources more friendliness and energy conservation to fulfill its responsibility
efficiently and use renewable in the field of environmental protection. Pollution prevention
materials which have a low facilities have been installed in accordance with relevant
impact on the environment? laws, and all production affiliates have passed the ISO14001
certification. Environmental protection is implemented in the
(b) Has the Company established fields of environmental management, pollution prevention,
a proper environmental Vv and garbage reduction in the hope of making a contribution N
management system based on to global environmental protection efforts. Also, the general one
the characteristics of its industry? affairs units are responsible for designating dedicated
. personnel in charge of the management of environmental
() Does the Company monitor protection operations in the fields of air pollution, wastewater,
the impact of climate change on and solid waste and relevant legal requirements.
business activities? Does it carry
out greenhouse gas inventories (c) The Company has already implemented energy
and has it formulated energy conservation and carbon reduction activities. In addition to
conservation, carbon reduction, the reduced use of light tubes in public areas, the turning off
and greenhouse gas reduction of unnecessary lights, as well as the use of AC temperature
strategies? controllers and highly effective energy conservation
equipment, are promoted in office areas.

Annual Report 2016
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Deviations from “the
Implementation Status Corporate Social
. R nsibility Best-
Evaluation ltem espons b .ty. est
Practice Principles
Yes No Abstract Explanation for TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies” and Reasons
3. Preserving public welfare
(a) Has the Company formulated
relevant management
olicies and procedures under :
?orrespondir?g laws and (@) The Company safeguards the legal rights and
regulations and the International interests of its employees through various management
Covenant on Human Rights? systems and norms including the formulation of
’ HR management regulations and staff work rules in
(b) Has the Company established accordance with relevant labor laws. The company also
mechanisms and channels for contributes to employee medical insurance, basic old-
employee grievances and are age insurance, unemployment insurance, occupational
they handled in a proper manner? injury insurance, and maternity insurance.
(c) Does the Company provide (b) The Company has established mechanisms and
a safe and healthy work channels for employee grievances and is handles them in
environment for its employees a proper manner.
and does it organize safety and ) . -
health relatedgtraining for)i/ts (c) The Company is committed to providing a
employees on a reguiar basis? comfortable, safe, and healthy work environment for
’ its employees in accordance with laws and regulations
(d) Is a mechanism in place for governing public building safety and fire safety. It
regular communication with also organizes educational training and annual health
employees and are employees checks for its employees on a regular basis and provides
notified in a reasonable manner complete life and entertainment facilities including staff
of operational changes that may dorms and recreation centers.
have a significant impact? .
v 'gn! 'mp (d) The Company organizes labor-management
(e) Has the Company established conferences on a regular basis and enables positive
an effective career skill communication between both sides. In addition,
development program for its Y, employees are notified of operational changes that may | None
employees? have a significant impact on them through different
methods such as public notices to give both sides a
(f) Has the Company formulated full understanding of labor and management related
relevant policies and grievance information.
procedures for the protection of
consumer rights and interests (e) The Company has established an effective career skill
regarding its R&D, procurement, development program for its employees.
duction, tion, and .
?er?viggs |;:10Coey:;<:£z;7|on an (f) The Company doesn't sell its products to end
’ consumers.
Does the Company compl . .
\(,%)th relevant Iawfané Py (g) The Company fully complies with relevant laws
international standards in the and regulations in Mainland China and international
marketing and labeling of its standards in the marketing and labeling of its products.
products and services? (h) The Company conducts assessments of different
(h) Does the company evaluate supplier conditions including environmental and social
past records of suppliers about impacts before initiating dealings with them.
En\fliroqmgnt_al aréd slc_>cial i”.‘ﬁ’]ads (i) The contracts between the Company and its main
ﬁ ore initiating dealings wit suppliers do currently not include provisions stipulating
them? that agreements may be terminated or rescinded at
(i) Do contracts between the any time if suppliers violate CSR policies or generate a
Company and its main suppliers significant environmental and social impacts with its
stipulate that agreements may main suppliers: Relevant provisions will be added or
be terminated or rescinded at removed in accordance with actual needs.
any time if suppliers violate CSR
policies or generate significant
environmental and social
impacts?
4. Enhancing information
disclosure (a) The Company has already set up a corporate website
. Y and will establish a link to the Market Observation Post None
(@) Does the Company disclose System in accordance with relevant Taiwanese laws to
re"eva“F and ’el'?ble CSR- disclose relevant and reliable CSR-related information.
related information on its
corporate website and the Market
Observation Post System?
5. If the Company has established the corporate social responsibility principles based on “the Corporate Social Responsibility Best-Practice
Principles for TWSE/TPEXx Listed Companies,” please describe any discrepancy between the Principles and their implementation:
No major discrepancies exist as far as compliance with the CSR Best Practice Principles of the Company is concerned.

This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation, Annual Report 2016
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Evaluation Item

Implementation Status

Yes No

Abstract Explanation

Deviations from “the
Corporate Social
Responsibility Best-
Practice Principles
for TWSE/TPEX Listed
Companies” and
Reasons

6. Other important information to facilitate better understanding of the Company’s corporate social responsibility practices:

Environmental Protection: The Company implements and reinforces environmental management in accordance with relevant environmental laws.

Social Contributions and Charitable Donations: The Company has been participating in various educational, culture and public welfare events.
Donations to local community groups have also been made to serve the Company'’s social responsibility.

Customer’s Rights: Customer satisfaction is the Company’s highest priority. By providing customers with the most efficient service and best products
quality, the Company, in turn, raises its competitiveness.

Equal Opportunity: The Company strictly prohibits discrimination against any employee or applicant for employment because of the individual’s
race, color, religion, gender, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, national origin, age, disability, veteran’s status or any other
characteristic protected by law. Any actions that may be considered harassment or discrimination will be facing lawful authorities to ensure a free

working environment.

Health and Safety: The Company follows the Labour Safety and Health Act and practices the appropriate code of conducts.

7. A clear statement shall be made below if the corporate social responsibility reports were verified by external certification institutions:

N/A

3.4.6

thical Corporate

anagement

Evaluation Item

Implementation Status

Deviations from “the
Corporate Social
Responsibility Best-
Practice Principles

; for TWSE/TPEXx Listed
Yes | No Abstract Explanation Companies” and
Reasons
1. Establishment of ethical
corporate management policies
and programs
thOEI}S the Company declare its (1) The Company has already formulated Ethical Corporate
et I!cg cor;()iorate n;anag;-ment Management Best Practice Principles and Supplier Code of
po 'C'fa; al_n proze ures '”l Conduct. Ethical management policies have been disclosed
|dts guidelines an lelsxterrr‘\a in internal regulations, on the corporate website, in annual
ocuments, as well as the reports, or other promotional materials.
commitment from its board to
implement the policies?
(2) Does the Company establish (2) The Company has included clearly formulated prevention
policies to prevent unethical schemes and relevant handling procedures in its “Ethical
conduct with clear statements v Corporate Management Operating Procedures and Code of None

regarding relevant procedures,
guidelines of conduct,
punishment for violation, rules of
appeal, and the commitment to
implement the policies?

(3) Does the Company establish
appropriate precautions against
high-potential unethical
conducts or listed activities
stated in Article 2, Paragraph

7 of the Ethical Corporate
Management Best-Practice
Principles for TWSE/TPEXx Listed
Companies?

Conduct” covering the prohibition of bribery, illegal political
contributions, improper charity donations or sponsorships,
improper gifts, entertainment, or other benefits.

(3) The Company has included clearly formulated provisions
prohibiting the offering and acceptance of improper benefits
and the offering of illegal political contributions with

clearly stated handling procedures in its “Ethical Corporate
Management Operating Procedures and Code of Conduct."

Annual Report 2016
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Deviations from “the
Implementation Status Corporate Social
Responsibility Best-
Evaluation Item Practice Principles
; for TWSE/TPEXx Listed
Yes | No Abstract Explanation Companies” and
Reasons
. . . (1) Before the Company establishes commercial relations
2. Fulfill operations integrity with third parties, it carries out assessments of the legality,
policy ethical corporate management policies, and past records of
unethical behaviour of suppliers, customers, or other trading
S&5?5::@52::51?%‘2;?Ir:igerdS counterparties to ensure the fairness and transparency of their
and incluge ethics-related clauses business operations and guarantee that they will not request,
in business contracts? offer, or accept bribes.
. (2) The Company has designated the audit office as its
;23 eD)?c?SStibilcczg:gg?]{jf:::tl;s? dedicated unit in charge of amendment, implementation,
dedicated un)?t supervised byy interpretation, and counselling services with regard to the
the Board to be in charge of “Ethical Corporate Management Operating Procedures and
corporate integrity? Code of Conduct”in addition to the recording and archiving
of reported contents as well as supervision of implementation
and submission of regular reports to the board of directors.
(3) The board directors uphold a high standard of self-
(3) Does the Company establish discipline. When a proposal at a given board of directors
policies to prevent conflicts of meeting concerns the personal interest or the interest of the
interest and provide appropriate juristic person represented by any director, that director may
communication channels, and state his/her opinions and respond to inquiries, but may not
implement it? participate in the discussion or vote on that proposal and shall
Vv recuse himself or herself from any discussion and voting, where | None
there is a likelihood that the interests of the Company would be
prejudiced. In addition, said director may not exercise voting
rights as the proxy on behalf of another director. The directors
shall exercise discipline among themselves, and may not
support each other in an inappropriate manner.
(64%‘;1?;:? (s:?enr:nze}y gzttibhshed (4) If in the course of conducting company business, any
accountiny and internal control personnel of the Company discovers that a conflict of interest
to facilitatg ethical corporate exists involving themselves or the juristic person that they
management, and are they represent, or that they
aud!ted by either internal or their spouse, parents, children, or a person with whom
auditors or CPAs on a regular they have a relationship of interest is likely to obtain improper
basis? benefits, the personnel shall report the relevant matters to
both his or herimmediate supervisor and the responsible unit,
and the immediate supervisor shall provide the personnel with
proper instructions.
(5) Does the Company regularly (5) The Company has established an accounting education for
hold internal and external directors, executives, employees, and appointees to provide
educational training on them with a full understanding of the commitment, policies,
operational integrity? and prevention schemes of the Company in the area of ethical
corporate management and ward off unethical behavior.
3. Operation of the integrity
channel
(1) Does the Company establish (1) The company has set up reporting mailboxes to encourage
both a reward/punishment employees to submit reports on detected misconduct that
system and an integrity hotline? prejudices the interests of the company. The audit office is in
Can the accused be reached by charge of processing such reports.
an appropriate person for follow- . . . o
up? (2) The audit office carries out investigations of reported
\ contents and reports the final results to the Chairman in None
(2) Does the company establish accordance with confidentiality principles.
standard operating procedures . . -
for confidential reporting on (3) The company is responsible for the confidentiality of
investigating accusation cases? the identity of the whistle-blower to prevent inappropriate
dismissal or retaliation at the workplace against the whistle-
(3) Does the company provide blower.
proper whistleblower protection?
4. Strengthening information
disclosure
) ) (1) The Company’s Ethical Corporate Management Best-Practice
(1) Does the Company disclose its v Principles and the results of our implementation have been None
ethical corporate management posted on the Company’s Chinese / English website (http://
policies and the results of www.eurocharm.com.tw) and MOPS.
its implementation on the
Company'’s website and MOPS?
This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation, Annual Report 2016
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Deviations from “the
Implementation Status Corporate Social
Responsibility Best-
Evaluation Item Practice Principles
for TWSE/TPEXx Listed
Yes | No Abstract Explanation Companies” and
Reasons

5. If the Company has established the ethical corporate management policies based on the Ethical Corporate Management Best-Practice Principles
for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies, please describe any discrepancy between the policies and their implementation.

There have been no differences.

6. Other important information to facilitate a better understanding of the Company’s ethical corporate management policies (e.g., review and
amend its policies).

(a) To implement the basics of ethical corporate management policies, the Company operates under the Company Act, Securities, and Exchange
Act, Businesses Entity Accounting Act, related regulations for TWSE/TPEx-Listed Companies, and other laws and decrees concerning business

transactions.

(b) The Company has set up the "Management Procedures for Preventing Insider Trading," which specifies that directors, supervisors, managers, and
employees are not allowed to reveal inside information to others or to inquire non-public information that is irrelevant to his/her business scope.

(c) For more detailed information, please refer to the Company’s official website: http://www.eurocharm.com.tw.

3.4.7 Corporate Governance Guideline and Regulations
Please refer to the MOPS (http://mops.tse.com.tw/ > Corporate Governance)

3.4.8 Other Important Information Regarding Corporate Governance
The Company continues to add more resources to enhance corporate governance guidelines and regulations for download on the

Company website

Annual Report 2016 This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation,
the Chinese text shall prevail.
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3.4.9 Implementation of the
Internal Control System

107
]

Eurocharm Group Co., Ltd.

Declaration regarding the internal control system

Declaration regarding the internal control system
Date: March 16, 2017

Based on the results of a self-inspection, the Company hereby
makes the following declaration regarding the internal control
system in 2016:

I. The Company is fully aware of the
factthatdirectorsand managersofthis
Company shall be fully responsible for
the establishment, implementation,
and maintenance of an internal
control system. It has already
established such a system in order
to guarantee achievement of a wide
range of goals including effectiveness
and efficiency of Company operations
(e.g., profitability, performance, and
asset security), reliability, timeliness,
and transparency of reporting, and
compliance with relevant laws, rules,
and regulation.

I. The internal control system
faces inherent constraints. No
matter how perfect the design of
the system is, an effective internal
control system may only provide
reasonable guarantees regarding the
achievement of the aforementioned
three goals. Furthermore, the
effectiveness of the internal control
system is affected by changes in the
environment and external conditions.
However, the internal control system
of the Company is equipped with a
self-monitoring mechanism. Once
shortcomings are identified, the
Company adopts corrective measures

Eurocharm Holdings Co., Ltd.

This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation,

in a prompt manner.

M. The Company judges the
effectiveness of the design and
implementation of the internal
control system based on the
judgment criteria prescribed in the
Regulations Governing Establishment
of Internal Control Systems by Public
Companies (hereinafter referred to as
“these Regulations”). The judgment
criteria for the internal control
system adopted in these Regulations
divide the internal control system
into five main constituents based
on the management and control
process: 1. Control environment 2.
Risk assessment 3. Control activities
4. Information and communication
and 5. Monitoring. Each constituent
includes several items. For more
details on the aforementioned items,
please refer to the provisions set forth
in these Regulations.

IV. The Company inspects the
effectiveness of the design and
implementation oftheinternal control
system based on the aforementioned
judgment criteria.

V. Based on the results of the
aforementioned inspections, the

Chairman: Steven Yu

the Chinese text shall prevail.

Company believes that the design
and implementation of the internal
control system on December 31,
2016 (including the supervision and
management of subsidiaries) was
efficient as far as goal achievement
in the field of results and efficiency
of operations, reliability of financial
reports, and legal compliance
are concerned and may provide
reasonable guarantees regarding the
achievement of the aforementioned
goals.

VI.  This declaration will be included
as a main component of the annual
report and prospectus of the
Company and will be made public.
If the aforementioned published
contents involve illegal activity
such as fraud or concealment, the
Company shall assume legal liability
pursuant to Article 20, 32, 171, 174 of
the Securities and Exchange Act.

VIl.  This declaration was approved
unanimously by the board of directors
with an attendance of 7 directors
on March 16, 2017. All 7 directors
consented to the contents of this
declaration as stated herein.

General Manager: Steven Yu

Annual Report 2016
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The declaration of Eurocharm Group Co., Ltd. issued on March 16, 2017 stating the effectiveness of the design and
implementation of the internal control system on December 31, 2016 based on an assessment of the financial reporting
and asset safety related internal control system has been reviewed by this accountant. The maintenance of an effective
internal control system and the assessment of its effectiveness are the responsibility of the management level of the
Company.

This accountant has been commissioned to express an opinion on the efficiency of the internal control system and the
declaration regarding the internal control system of the aforementioned Company based on the results of a review.

This accountant carried out a review in accordance with the Regulations Governing Establishment of Internal Control
Systems by Public Companies and generally accepted auditing standards to reasonably determine the effectiveness
of the internal control system of the aforementioned Company in all major areas. This review process covered an
understanding of the internal control system, an assessment of the validity of evaluations of the internal control system
conducted by the management level, testing and assessment of the effectiveness of the design and implementation
of the internal control system, and other review procedures as deemed necessary by this accountant.This accountant
believes that this review process may serve as a reasonable basis for the expressed opinion.

Any internal control system faces inherent constraints. It can therefore not be ruled out that the internal control system
of Eurocharm Group Co., Ltd. fails to prevent or detect committed mistakes or misconduct. In addition, the level of
compliance with the internal control system may decrease due to future environmental changes. The fact that the
internal control system is currently effective therefore does not ensure that it will also be effective in the future.

This accountant hereby affirms based on the judgment criteria for the effectiveness of control system prescribed in
the Regulations Governing Establishment of Internal Control Systems by Public Companies that the design and
implementation of the financial reporting and asset safety related internal control system of Eurocharm Group Co., Ltd.
was effective in all major areas on December 31, 2016. The declaration issued by Eurocharm Group Co., Ltd. on March
16, 2017 stating the effectiveness of the design and implementation of the financial reporting and asset safety related
internal control system on December 31, 2016 based on assessments is confirmed in all major areas.

Name of Accounting Firm: Ernst & Young

Mars Hong

Accountant
Steven Chang

March 16, 2017

Annual Report 2016 This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation,
the Chinese text shall prevail.
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3.4.10 Penalties imposed in
accordance with the law upon the
Company or its internal personnel
and any penalties imposed by the
Company upon its internal personnel
for violations of internal control
system provisions as well as principal
deficiencies and improvements
efforts for the most recent fiscal year
up to the printing date of the annual

report None

3.4.11 Major Resolutions of Shareholders’ Meeting
and Board Meetings

Major resolutions of shareholders meetings in 2016 and implementation status:

Major Resolution Resolution Result Implementation

Voting Result: Approved

Total Number of rights held by attending shareholders : 45,390,270
rights Revision Implemented

In favour: 44,497,128 rights; 98.03%; Against: 6 rights; Abstained / not
voted on the number of 893,136 rights, case passed

1. Revision of the Company's
Articles of Association

Voting Result: Approved

2. Recognize the 2015 annual Total Number of rights held by attending shareholders : 45,390,270 Implemented in accordance
business report and consolidated | rights with the resolution result of the
financial statements shareholders' meeting

In favour: 44,498,128 rights; 98.03%; Against: 6 rights; Abstained / not
voted: 892,136 rights, case passed

Voting Result: Approved In accordance with the resolution
; . . result from the shareholders'
3. Recognition of the 2015 annual :’icg),tﬁtISNumber of rights held by attending shareholders : 45,390,270 meeting, the cash dividend

surplus distribution case record date was on 08/19/2016

In favour: 44,498,128 rights; 98.03%; Against: 6 rights; Abstained / not and the payable date was on
voted: 892,136 rights, case passed 09/14/2016

List of directors elected:
New General Limited Representative: Steven Yu
Seashore Group Limited Representative: Michael Yu

) ) Seashore Group Limited Representative: Antonio Yu Implemented in accordance
4.The 3rd Election of Directors with the resolution of the
Steven Chang shareholders' meeting

We-Min Lin (Independent director)
Bryan Peng (Independent director)
Gen-Yu Fong (Independent director)

Voting Result: Approved

5. The lifting of the prohibition Total Number of rights held by attending shareholders : 45,390,270 Implemented in accordance
of competition towards new rights with the resolution of the
directors and their representative shareholders' meeting

In favour: 42,631,091 rights; 93.92%; Against: 1,548,043 rights; Abstained
/ not voted: 1,211,136 rights, case passed

Implementation of the resolution results: Resolutions of the Shareholders' Regular Meeting 2016 include Revision of the Company's Articles of
Association, Recognize the 2015 annual business report and consolidated financial statements, Recognition of the 2015 annual surplus distribution
case, the 3rd Election of Directors. The prohibition of competition towards new directors and their representative has been lifted. The Company has
completed all the necessary implementations.

This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation, Annual Report 2016
the Chinese text shall prevail.
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Major resolutions of board meetings in 2016 up to the printing date of the annual report:

A total number of 6 board meetings, as follows,

MAJOR RESOLUTIONS

1. Election of the Chairman
2. Appointment of the Remuneration Committee members
Board Meeting |  06/29/2016 [ 3 Appointment of the Audit Committee members

4. Approval of the Company's plan to expand the overseas market and revise
investment structure.

1. Approval of the 2016 Q2 consolidated financial statement

2. Approval of the Company's subsidiaries' intention to enter short-term credit
lines with banks

3. Approval of the endorsement/guarantee for the Company’s subsidiary VPIC1
Board Meeting 08/12/2016 | 4. Review on the Company's chairman's remuneration case

5. Review of traveling expenses for the Company's Board of Directors, the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee

6. Review on the distribution of Company's directors' remuneration in 2015

7. Review on the distribution of Company's employee compensations in 2015

1. Approval of the 2016 Q3 consolidated financial statement

2. Approval of the extended contract regarding bank’s short-term line of credit

Board Meeting |  11/02/2016 | <@%€

3. Approval of the revision towards the Company’s ethical corporate
management best practice principles and ethical corporate management
operating procedures and code of conduct

1. Approval of the 2017 annual business plan & budget

2. Review on the distribution of the 2016 year end bonus for the Chairman and
the managers

3. Appointment of Ernst & Young Certified Public Accountants to carry out the
review on 2016 annual internal control system

4. Appointment of Ernst & Young Certified Public Accountants to prepare the
Company's 2017 Annual Report

5. Review on the Company's internal audit plan for the year 2017

6. Appointment of the Company's general manager

Board Meeting 12/20/2016 | 7. Appointment of the Company's manager

8. Appointment of the Company's subsidiary VPIC1's general manager
9. Appointment of the Company's subsidiary VPIC1's manager

10. The lifting of the prohibition of competition towards managers

11. Establishment of the managers' remunerations in the Company and its
subsidiaries

12. Approval of the extended contract regarding bank’s short-term line of credit
case

13. Approval of the endorsement/guarantee for the Company'’s subsidiary
Eurocharm Innovation

Annual Report 2016 This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation,
the Chinese text shall prevail.
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DATE

MAJOR RESOLUTIONS

4

Board Meeting

03/16/2017

1. Approval of the distribution of the 2016 year end bonus for the Chairman and
the employees

2. Approval of the Company's 2016 annual business report and consolidated
financial statements

3. Approval of the 2016 surplus distribution case

4. Review of the 2016 annual internal control system self-inspection report and
internal control system statement

5. Revision of the Company's Articles of Association
6. Revision of the Company's Acquisition/Disposal of Asset Procedures

7. Contact between the Company and the Far East International Commercial
Bank

8. Approval of the extended contract regarding bank’s short-term line of credit
case

9. Approval of the endorsement/guarantee for the Company’s subsidiaries
10. Approval of the fixed asset acquisition for the Company’s subsidiaries VPIC1

11. Approval of the shareholders' right to ask questions at the Annual
Shareholders' Meeting and relevant matters

12. Discussion on the date, time and location of the 2017 Annual Shareholders'
Meeting

Board Meeting

05/11/2017

1. Approval of the Ernst & Young Accounting Firm internal accountant transfer
2. Approval of the Company's 2017 Q1 consolidated financial statements

3. Approval of the Company's Travel Management Policy

Independent Director Opinion: None

The Company's handling of the opinions of independent directors: None

The results of the resolution: All attendees agreed to pass

This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation, Annual Report 2016
the Chinese text shall prevail.
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3.5 Information Regarding the Company’s Audit Fee
and Independence

3.5.1 Information Regarding the CPA Fee

Accounting Firm Name of CPA Period Covered by CPA’'s Audit Remarks

Ernst and Young Mars Hung Steven Chang 2016 -

Unit: NTS thousands

Audit Fee Non-Audit Fee Total
Under NT$ 2,000 \
Fee Range NT$2,000 ~ NT$4,000
NT$4,001 ~ NT$6,000 Vv \Y

Non-audit fees paid to CPAs, their accounting firms, and related businesses make up over 25% of the

audit fees
Unit: NT$ thousands
Non-audit Fee
. Period
ACCgil:n]tlng Nac";,/e_\ of | AuditFee S c . Covered by | Remarks
ystem o ompany uman CPA's Audit
Design Registration Resource L e
Mars Hung
E’;‘“ and 4,500 - - - 800 800 2016
oung Steven
Chung

Reduction of audit fees after replacement of the accounting firm compared to the year preceding
replacement

None

Reduction of audit fees by more than 15% compared to the previous year

None

Annual Report 2016 This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation,
the Chinese text shall prevail.
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Recent Employment of

the Chairman, General
Managers or Financial
Managers who were
Employed in an Accounting
Firm or its Affiliates

None

www.eurocharm.com.tw 43

3.5.4

Evaluation
of the CPA’s

Independence

The Audit Committee regularly monitors the independence of Eurocharm Group’s
external auditor by conducting the below evaluations and reports the same to the

The auditor'sindependence
declaration

The Audit Committee pre-
approves all audit and non-
audit services conducted
by the auditor to ensure
that the non-audit services

Board of Directors:

Ensure the audit partner
rotates every seven years

Annually evaluate the
independence of the
external auditor based on
the results of the auditor
survey

do not influence the results
of the audit

3.6 Operational Procedures for
Handling Material Inside Information

EUrOCharm GrOUP has established

relevant procedures for managing and
disclosing material information. The responsible
departments regularly remind all officers and
employees about the need to comply with these
proceedings and other applicable regulations
when they become aware of any potential
material information and the possible need to
publicly disclose such information. To ensure that
our employees, managers, and board directors
are aware of and comply with these relevant
regulations, the Company has also established
our “Insider Trading Policy.” To reduce the risk
of insider trading, on-line training programs
and live seminars are conducted periodically.

Also, employees can familiarize themselves with
relevant internal policies and training articles.

This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation, Annual Report 2016

the Chinese text shall prevail.



info@eurocharm.com.tw | www.eurocharm.com.tw

3.7 Recent Changes in Equity and Pledged
Shares of Directors, Supervisors, Managers
and Shareholders Holding Over 10% of the
Total Shares

44 Annual Report

Unit: Share
2016 As of April 17,2017
Title Name Holding Pledged s el Pledged
Holding Holding
Increase Increase
(Decrease) Increase (Decrease) Increase
(Decrease) (Decrease)
New General Limited 0 0 0 0
Chairman
Representative: Steven Yu 0 0 0 0
Seashore Group Limited 0 0 0 0
Director
Representative: Michael Yu 0 0 47,000 0
Seashore Group Limited 0 0 0 0
Director
Representative: Antonio Yu 35,000 0 0 0
Director Steven Chang 0 0 0 0
Independent Director Wei-Min Lin 0 0 0 0
Independent Director Bryan Peng 0 0 0 0
Independent Director Gen-Yu Fong 0 0 0 0
General Manager' Jack Zhao (115,000) 0 0 0
Deputy General Manager James Zhan 18,820 0 32,000 0
Deputy General Manager Andy Wu 19,000 0 32,000 0
Deputy General Manager Cina-Jin Zhan 56,000 0 0 0
Deputy General Manager? Cheng-Wen Wang 28,000 0 0 0
Deputy General Manager Robert Lin 0 0 0 0
Associate General
Manager® Shang-Chong Ren 0 0 0 0

Note 1: General Manager Jack Zhao resigned on
December 20, 2016.

3.7.1

Shares Trading with

3.7.2

Shares Pledged with
Related Parties

Note 2: Cheng-Wen Wang was assigned Deputy
General Manager on December 20, 2016.
Note 3: Shang-Chong Ren resigned on July 6, 2016. Related Parties

None None

Annual Report 2016 This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation,
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3.8 Relationship among the Top Ten

Shareholders and their Spousal or Kinship

Relationships within the Second Degree

04/17/2017 (Book closure date) Unit: thousand shares

Spouse’s/ Shareholding Name and Relationship Between the
Current minor’s by Nominee Company'’s Top Ten Shareholders,
Shareholding . Y or Spouses or Relatives Within Two
Name Shareholding Arrangement Degrees Remarks
Shares % Shares % Shares % Name Relationship
Seashore Group
Limited 24,769 37.67% - - - - - - -
New General Limited 13,833 | 21.04% - - - - - - -
Seashore Group Limited
Representative: Michael Brother
New General Limited Yu
Representative: Steven - - - - - - -
Yu Seashore Group Limited
Representative: Antonio Brother
Yu
Seashore Group Limited
. Brother
c Seas{more ’ Representative: Steven Yu
roup Limite _ ~ B _ _
Representative: 17 0.18% .
ichael Yu Seashore Group Limited
Representative: Antonio Brother
Yu
New General Limited
Brother
Seashore Representative: Steven Yu
Group Limited o B B B ~ ~
ReRreser)tative: 70 0.11% New General Limited
ntonio Yu Broth
Representative: Michael rotner
Yu
Cathay Life Insurance
Company, Ltd. 4,812 7.32% - - - - - - -
Yuanta Venture Capital
Co., Ltd 1,101 1.67% - - - - - - -
Han Sen Hsieh 1,007 1.53% - - - - - - -
Yuanta Securities
Co., Ltd. Mutual Fund 625 0.95% - - - - - - -
Account
AmTrust Capital Corp. 600 0.91% - - - - - - -
Taiwan Life Insurance
Company Ltd. 430 0.65% - - - - - - -
Yuelong Investment 226 0.34% B B B _ _ B _
Co., Lt B
Zhuang-Gong Lin 209 0.32% - - - - - - -
This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation, Annual Report 2016
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3.9 Consolidated Shareholding Ratio and the
Number of Shares Held by the Company, Directors,
Supervisors, Managers and Businesses Directly or
Indirectly Controlled by the Company in the Same
Joint Venture Business

12/31/2016 (Unit: Share)

Direct or Indirect Ownership
. Ownership by the Company by Directors, Supervisors, Total Ownership

Affiliated Managers

Enterprises
Shares % Shares % Shares %
Eurocharm
Inr?_o(\j/azcliso\r/\lC)o., 19,000,000 100.00 0 0.00 19,000,000 100.00
ta. (B.V.I.

Note: The Company adopts the investment of equity method

IV. CAPITAL

OVERVIEW

1
2

4.1 Capital and Shares

4.1.1 Source of Capital

As of 04/17/2017 (Unit: thousand shares; NTS thousands)

Authorized Capital Paid-in Capital Remark
— Par | Capltald
on ncrease
v Value Shares Amount Shares | Armount (NTS . by
ear (NTS) (thousand (NT$ (thousand thousands) Sources of Capital Other
shares) thousands) shares) /és:csheéc?
than Cash
07/2011 usD1 17,000 USD$17,000 17,000 USD$17,000 Evaluation - -
04/2012 UsD1 30000 | USD$30000 | 17,000 | uUsD§17,000 | Authorized Stock - -
ncrease
07/2012 USD1 30,000 USD$30,000 17,474 USD$17,474 | Cash Capital Increase - Note 1
. Equity Currency B
09/2013 90,000 NTD$900,000 56,874 NTD$568,742 Conversion Note 2
09/2014 58 90,000 NTD$900,000 63,984 NTD$639,842 | Cash Capital Increase - -
Employee
09/2014 40 90,000 NTD$900,000 64,340 NTD$643,402 Stock Option - -
Implementation
Employee
10/2014 40 90,000 NTD$900,000 64,349 NTD$643,492 Stock Option - -
Implementation
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Authorized Capital Paid-in Capital Remark
— Par Capital
?n Value Amount Amount |an§35€‘0|
ear i
(NTS) Shares (NTS Shares (NT$ Sources of Capital - Other
thousands) thousands) T
than Cash
Employee
02/2015 40 90,000 NTD$900,000 | 64,370 NTD$643,702 Stock Option - -
Implementation
Employee
04/2015 40 90,000 NTD$900,000 | 64,488 NTD$644,882 Stock Option - -
Implementation
Employee
05/2015 40 90,000 NTD$900,000 | 64,503 NTD$645,032 Stock Option - -
Implementation
Employee
09/2015 38 90,000 NTD$900,000 | 64,583 NTD$645,832 Stock Option - -
Implementation
Employee
10/2015 38 90,000 NTD$900,000 | 64,932 NTD$649,322 Stock Option - -
Implementation
Employee
08/2016 36 90,000 NTD$900,000 | 64,956 NTD$649,562 Stock Option - -
Implementation
Employee
09/2016 36 90,000 | NTD$900,000 | 65,196 | NTD$651,962 Stock Option - -
Implementation
Employee
10/2016 36 90,000 NTD$900,000 | 65,399 NTD$653,992 Stock Option - -
Implementation
Employee
11/2016 36 90,000 NTD$900,000 | 65,456 NTD$654,562 Stock Option - -
Implementation
Employee
12/2016 36 90,000 NTD$900,000 | 65,549 NTD$655,492 Stock Option - -
Implementation

Note 1: The Company issued new shares totalled 473,537 due to cash capital increase.

Note 2: The Company modified face value of shares from USD$1 to NTD$10.

As of 04/17/2017 (Unit: Share)

Authorized Capital
Share Type Remarks
Issued Shares Un-issued Shares Total Shares
Common 65,753,153 24,246,847 90,000,000 -

Note 1: Approved by the general declaration system to raise the issuance of securities: None

4.1.2 Status of Shareholders

As of 04/17/2017 (Unit: Person: Share)

Foreign
Government Financial Other Juridical Domestic . '|g
Item . o Institutions & Total
Agencies Institutions Persons Natural Persons
Natural Persons
Number of Shareholders 1 3 36 28 3,028 3,096
Shareholding (shares) 66,000 5,326,000 3,926,050 39,639,276 16,795,827 65,753,153
Percentage 0.10 8.10 5.97 60.27 25.56 100.00
This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation, Annual Report 2016

the Chinese text shall prevail.



48 Annual Report | info@eurocharm.com.tw | www.eurocharm.com.tw

As of 04/17/2017 (Unit: Person: Share)

4 01 03 Class of .Shareholding Number of Shareholding e
Sh h ld o (Unit: Share) Shareholders (Shares)

?‘re ° O l..ng 1~999 150 11,554 0.02
DlStrlbUtlon 1,000 ~ 5,000 2,372 4,496,520 6.84
Status 5,001 ~ 10,000 264 2,104,555 3.20

10,001 ~ 15,000 77 997,133 1.52

15,001 ~ 20,000 54 988,367 1.50

20,001 ~ 30,000 52 1,309,257 1.99

30,001 ~ 40,000 28 1,037,228 1.58

40,001 ~ 50,000 19 869,246 1.32

50,001 ~ 100,000 49 3,530,713 5.37

100,001 ~ 200,000 21 2,796,345 4.25

200,001 ~ 400,000 2 434,959 0.66

400,001 ~ 600,000 2 1,030,000 1.57

600,001 ~ 800,000 1 625,000 0.95

800,001 ~ 1,000,000 0 0 0.00

1,000,001 or over 5 45,522,276 69.23
Total 3,096 65,753,153 100.00

As of 04/17/2017 (Unit: Share)

Shareholder's Name Shareholding 4'1'4 I."lSt
Shares Percentage Of Ma] (0) §

New General Limited 13,833,217 21.04% Shareholders

Seashore Group Limited 24,769,059 37.67%
Cathay Life Insurance Co., Ltd 4,812,000 7.32%

Annual Report 2016 This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation,
the Chinese text shall prevail.
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4.1.5 Market Price, Net Worth, Earnings and Dividends
per Share in the previous two fiscal years

(Unit: NTS: thousand shares)

ltems 2015 2016 As of March 31, 2017

Market Price per Share

Highest Market Price 141.5 124.5 87.2
Lowest Market Price 48.5 72.3 757
Average Market Price 76.64 98.38 82.30

Net Worth per Share

Before Distribution 38.45 39.39 38.44

After Distribution 33.45 See Note -

Earnings per Share

Weighted Average Shares 64,580 65,069
thousand thousand 65,716 thousand shares
(thousand shares) shares shares
Diluted Earnings Per Share 7.5 7.25 1.52
Adjusted Diluted Earnings Per Share - - -
Dividends per Share
Cash Dividends 5 4 (See Note) -
Stock Dividends
Dividends from Retained Earnings - - -
Dividends from Capital Surplus - - -
Accumulated Undistributed Dividends - - -
Return on Investment
Price / Earnings Ratio (Note 1) 14.59 11.10 11.61
Price / Dividend Ratio (Note 2) 28.71 See Note -
Cash Dividend Yield 3.48 6.28 4.79

Note: The 2016 annual surplus distribution was approved by the board of directors but not yet approved by the
shareholders' meeting

This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation, Annual Report 2016
the Chinese text shall prevail.
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4.1.6 Dividend Policy and
Implementation Status

A. Dividend Policy

AstheCompanyisinthegrowingstage,the
dividend distribution may take the form
of a cash dividend and stock dividends
and shall take into consideration the
Company'’s capital expenditures, future
expansion plans, and financial structure
and funds requirement for sustainable
development needs, etc.

Unless otherwise required by the Statute
and the Applicable Public Company
Rules, the Company may distribute
profits in agreement with a proposal for
distribution of profits prepared by the
Directors and approved by the Members
by an Ordinary Resolution at any general
meeting. The Directors shall prepare
such proposal as follows:

I If there is any profit (after tax) of the
current fiscal year after final account,
it shall first be used to offset its losses
in previous years which have not been
previously offset (include the adjusted
amount of undistributed earnings);

Il. Set aside a special capital reserve or
reversal, if one is required, in accordance
with the Applicable Public Company
Rules or as requested by the authorities
in charge;

III. If there is any Profit, it shall be set aside
no more than 2% of the balance asabonus
to Directors and no less than 2% of the
balance as compensation to employees of

the Company, which may be distributed
under an incentive program approved
pursuant to Article 11.1 above. The
board of directors shall adopt the exact
percentages to be distributed as bonuses
to Directors and the compensation to
employees, and such resolution shall be
reported at the shareholders meeting. A
Director who also serves as an executive
officer of the Company may receive a
bonus in his capacity as a Director and
the compensation in his capacity as an
employee; and

IV. Any balance left over may be
distributed as Dividends in accordance
with the Statute and the Applicable
Public Company Rules and after taking
into consideration profits of the current
year and capital structure of the
Company, unless otherwise specifically
resolved by the board of the Directors
and the general meetings, the amount
of profits distributed to Members shall
not be lower than 20% of profits (after
tax) of the then current year and the
amount of cash dividends distributed
thereupon shall not be less than 50% of
the profits proposed to be distributed
of the then current year; in the event
that the Dividends per share distributed
in the current year is less than NT$1, the
Company may determine the Dividends
to be distributed partially or entirely by
stock dividends or cash dividends.

B. Proposed Distribution of Dividend

The proposal for the distribution of
2016 profits was passed at the meeting
of the Board of Directors. It is approved
that a total amount of NT$263,012,612
cash dividend will be distributed to the
shareholders; hence, a cash dividend of
NT$ 4 per share.

Annual Report 2016
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4.1.7 Impact on the Company’s
performance and EPS of stock
dividends proposed by this
shareholders’ meeting

The board of directors approved the 2016 earnings distribution
proposal on March 16, 2017, with a planned distribution of cash
dividendsamountingtoNT$ 4 pershare. The proposal will be submitted
to the shareholders’ meeting on June 15, 2017, for ratification. Since
only cash dividends are distributed, the overall business performance
of the Company will not be affected.

This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation, Annual Report 2016
the Chinese text shall prevail.
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4.1.8 Employee Bonus and
Directors' and Supervisors'
Remuneration

1. Quotas or range of employee bonuses and compensations
of directors and supervisors as specified in the Articles of
Incorporation:

Please refer to 4.1.6 Dividend Policy and Implementation Status
Section A.

2. Estimation basis for employee compensations of directors and
supervisors for this quarter, calculation basis for some shares
allocated as the stock bonus, and accounting procedures in
case of discrepancies between actually distributed amounts and
estimated figures:

The proportional foundation for the distribution of payable
employee and director compensations in 2016 shall be
determined based on the profits (employee bond of not less than
2%; directors and supervisors’ remuneration of not more than
2%). In the case of significant changes of distribution amounts
determined by the board of directors after year end, the initially
allocated annual expenses shall be adjusted. Further changes
on the date of the shareholders’ meeting resolution shall be
handled as accounting estimate changes. Annual adjustments
shall be entered into accounts by resolution of the shareholders’
meeting. If the shareholders’ meeting resolves to pay out
employee bonuses as stock, the number of shares allocated as
stock dividends shall be determined based on payable bonus
amounts divided by fair stock value. The term fair stock value

4.1.9 Buyback of Treasury Stock:

shall refer to the closing price on the day before the shareholders’
meeting resolution date (upon consideration of ex-right/ex-
dividend impacts).

3. Proposed distribution of employee bonuses approved by the
board of directors:

A.The Company charter prescribes the following fortheemployee
bonus and compensation for directors and supervisors:

- Employee cash bonus of NT$ 18,100,169
- Employee stock bonus of NT$ 0
- Directors’ Remuneration of NT$10,300,000

4. Proposed employee stock bonus and proportion of stock
bonus to net income after tax as indicated in individual financial
statements for this quarter and the total amount of employee
bonuses: None

5. Profit Distribution for Employees' Directors’ and Supervisors’
Remuneration for 2017 Approved in Board of Directors Meeting

In the 2015 financial statement, it was stated that the employee
bonus was NT$ 18,100 thousand dollars and the directors’
remuneration was NT$ 10,343 thousand dollars. In 2016, the
employee bonus distributed was NT$ 18,100 thousand dollars,
and the directors’ remuneration allocated was NT$ 10,343
thousand dollars. No discrepancy was found.

None

4.2.1 Current Status of Company Bonds:

I. Corporate Bonds: None

II. Convertible and Exchangeable Bonds, Shelf Registration for Issuing Bonds or

Corporate Bonds with Warrants: None

,.3 Preferred Shares: None

4.4 Global Depository Receipts: None

Annual Report 2016
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Type of Stock Option

Options

Options
12/31/2016

1st Tranche

08/06/2014

09/15/2012

2,000,000

sto beissuedasa
tanding shares (%)

3.13%

09/14/2014 - 09/14/2018

ion measures

Issue of new shares

Conditional conversion periods and percentages

2nd Year: up to 30%
3rd Year: up to 60%
4th year: up to 100%

Converted shares (shares)

1,565,000 shares

Exercised amount (NTS dollars)

NTS 61,974,000 dollars

Number of shares yet to be converted (shares) 202,000 shares
Adjusted exercise price for those who have yet to 36
exercise their rights (NT$ dollars)
i h f |
Unexercised shares as a percentage of tota 0.31%

issued shares (%)

Impact on possible dilution of shareholdings

This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation,

the Chinese text shall prevail.
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4.5.2 List of Executives Receiving
Employee Stock Options and the Top Ten
Employees with Stock Options

12/31/2016 (Unit: NTS thousands: thousand shares)

Exercised Unexercised
S_tock
Titl N 'g‘to Okf OPptloni e Converted Converted
ks ElS o tqc e;csehn 298 No. of Strike Amount Shares as a No. of Strike Amount Shares as a
RUEDS °| a:jes Shares Price (NTS Percentage Shares Price (NTS Percentage
SSUS Converted | (NTS) thousands) of Shares | Converted | (NT$) | thousands) | of Shares
Issued Issued
Assistant | Michael
Chairman Yu
Assistant | Antonio
Chairman Yu
General Jack
Manager Zhao'
Deputy
General Jzarr]g%s
Executives | Manager 633 0.96 401 | 36-40 | 15,260 0.61 232 36 | 8352 035
Deputy
General Avr\\lﬂy
Manager
Deputy P
General C?hannln
Manager
Deputy Cheng-
General Wen
Manager | Wang?
Associate Ko-
General Ming
Manager Tu
SShhih—
Manager eng
Chang
Chun-
Manager Hsing
Liao
Chi-
Manager Ming
Yu
Shen-
Employees | Manager [ pohg, 555 0.85 555 36-40 20,936 0.84 - 36 - -
M Ling
anager ung
Wu
Hung-
Manager Chung
Chen
Manager n}gg _u
Jen-
Manager | Cheng
Liao
Manager }gi‘?(gh

Note 1: General Manager Jack Zhao resigned on December 20, 2016.

Note 2: Cheng-Wen Wang was assigned Deputy General Manager on December 20, 2016.
4.6 Restricted Employee Stock Options: None
4.7 Status of New Shares Issuance in Connection with Mergers and Acquisitions: None

4.8 Financing Plans and Implementation

As of today, the Company does not have unfinished projects
of private equity or securities issuance nor completed
projects with low performance in the previous 3 years.
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I

Operational
Highlights

5.1 Business Activities

5.1.1 Business Scope

A. Main areas of business operations

The Company'’s operations primary focus on
the manufacturing, process, assembling and
trading of auto and motor parts and medical
equipment.

This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation, Annual Report 2016
the Chinese text shall prevail.
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B. Revenue Distribution

Unit: NTS thousands

2014 2015 2016
HEJEIEETE Total Sales (%) of Total Total Sales (%) of Total Total Sales (%) of Total
Sales Sales Sales

Motor Parts 3,056,561 80.46% 3,119,102 77.82% 3,251,747 78.08%
Medical Equipment 521,988 13.74% 448,548 11.19% 440,640 10.58%
Recreational Vehicle Parts 154,098 4.10% 351,843 8.78% 370,188 8.89%
Others 65,975 1.70% 88,694 2.21% 102,204 2.45%

Total 3,798,622 100.00% 4,008,187 100.00% 4,164,779 100.00%

C. Main Products
« Auto and Motor Parts: chassis, bodyworks, shields,
luggage and other metal related parts

« Medical Equipment: medical beds, patient lifters,
and shower chairs

- Recreational Vehicle Parts: motorcycle, snowmobile,
jet skies and other recreational vehicle parts

D. New Product (Service) Development

In Taiwan, the Company utilizes the advantage of Taiwan’s
advanced processing technology to manufacture and export
medical equipment. At the factory plant in Vietnam, it is the
competitive cost of producing metal parts that provide the
leverage for the Company to acquire new orders continuously.
Moving forward, we will further build and expand the territory
of metal processing on top of the foundation that has been
established. With the positive referrals from customer to
customer, the quality of our products will soon be widely
known to the international markets.

5.2 Market and Sales Overview

5.2.1 Current Status and Future Development

A. Motorcycle Market

I. Development and Structure of Motorcycles

Throughout the history of vehicle development, it
started from the first bicycle to the first motorcycle then
came the first automobile. When the first motorcycle
came out in 1769, it was powered by a steam engine. It
was not until 1860 that a gasoline engine was considered
practical. During the fast developing 19th century,
this type of internal combustion engine was also used

Annual Report 2016

in assembling bicycles which served as a motorcycle
prototype.In 1883, Gottlieb Daimler,a German engineer,
decided to experiment and utilize a four-stroke gasoline
engine on a bicycle. Following Daimler’s footsteps, Karl
Benz, an automobile engineer, invented and patented
his idea of adding electric ignition system.

This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation,
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The real breakthrough of the motorcycle evolution;
however, did not happen until 1895. Count Albert de Dion
and Georges Bouton, pioneers of the automobile industry,
designed a new engine and together became the de Dion-
Bouton, the world’s largest automobile manufacturer for a
time in France. During the period of the 1950s, England had
the biggest market share of manufacturing motorcycles
including BSA, Triumph, Royal Enfield, Norton and the iconic
manufacturers such as Matchless and Albert John Steven.
However, the English motorcycle industry quickly fell in the
1970s after the people in Japan mastered the efficiency of
machinery. By the time, Honda had dominated the market.

In the 21st century, customers were no longer content with
motorcycles simply being functional. The vehicles had
matured into being both practical and entertaining as riders
enjoy the speed and the thrills. This was when sports bikes
became largely popular. Manufacturers such as KTM (also
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known as Kraftfahrzeuge Trunkenpolz Mattighofen), Suzuki
Hayabusa and Harley-Davidson were three of the leading
businesses. Recently, two-stroke engines have gradually
been replaced to help preserve the environment.

Depending on the structural design, body, and purpose,
motorcycles are classified into various categories. For
example, engines are grouped into either single-cylinder
engine or multi-cylinder engine and four-stroke versus two-
stroke. Regarding the operations, motorcycles can be divided
into automatic or manual transmission vehicle. Based on the
volume of engine displacements, they can also be identified
as scooters (below 50cc), motorcycles (below 250cc) or
heavy-duty motorcycles ( above 250cc). Finally, depending
on the purposes, motorcycles could be categorized as the
following.

Type of Motorcycle Primary Purpose
Modeled race car’s streamlined exterior, sports bikes are built lightweight for high-speed performance.
Sport Bike They are equipped with multi-cylinders and the characteristics of a sports car. Long distance riding could
cause severe back pain.
Cruisers are assembled with small to medium displacements as these motorcycles aren’t built for frequent
Crusier shifts of acceleration. The riding positions are designed to feed forward and hands up high for the comfort
of riding. Typically, there are extra storage space
Standard Standards are versatile, practical street motorcycles. One of the easily identified characteristics of these
vehicles is the upright riding position. For example Honda’s CB series.
Scooters emphasize their ability to be easily maneuvered with a flat floorboard as a comfortable footrest.
Scooter . . . .
They are a more affordable alternative to cars and some of the designs specifically market to female riders.
Commercial Aside from providing person transport, commercial motorcycles are widely used for shipping in Asia. These
Motorcycle types of vehicles are durable and gas-saving.
Harley Davidson produced one of the most iconic choppers. They are, typically, designed with high
Choppers handlebars and raked-out forks. Popularized in the 1960s, they also symbolize a sense of carefreeness.
Recently, many Japanese manufacturers launched similar styles to recreate the retro concept.
Powered by electricity instead of an engine, electric motorcycles are equipped with lead-acid batteries
Electric Motorcycle | for storage. Shortly, this type of battery could be replaced by the fuel cell for better endurance and higher
performance.
Also known as dirt bikes, off-road motorcycles are designed to adapt rough, unpaved surface. The body
Off-Road is typically built lighter and provides a high ground clearance. The tires have knobs to offer more traction.
They are also modeled after the designs of MX and Trail.
Commonly referred to a water scooter, the watercraft could be ridden standing or sitting. It's designed
with a unique mechanism where if the rider fell off the craft, the string wrapped around the wrist would
Personal Water Craft ) . . . -
stop the engine from operating. Inspired by the design of a motorcycle, these scooters initial run on a two-
stroke cycle engine.

This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation,
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Manufacturing a motorcycle consists of a wide variety of
components. The commonly known parts include the chassis,
engine, exhaust system, transmission, steering, suspension
and the vehicle body. Motorcycles are primary powered by the
engine system while the car chassis supports the engine and
links the rest of the components. The exhaust system is closely
related to the engine performance. Through the transmission,
the power generated by the engine is then delivered to the
axle triggering the tiers. This results in a mobile vehicle with
the capability of steering. The suspension system, on the other
hand, functions as control and stopping on the road. Finally, the
motorcycle body is what covers all these parts and beautifies the
appearance of the vehicle.

Aside from the body, the designs of the position lamps and

Il. Global Industry of Motorcycles

In recent years, Asia has been the world’s largest motorcycle
consumer. The sales in Asia took up to 79.1% of the global
motorcycle salesin 2015. In addition to India, China and Indonesia
claiming the first, second and the third place in motorcycle
consumption, South-east Asian countries such as Vietnam
and Thailand follow close behind. Due to their geographic
advantage, Japanese manufacturers have gradually dominated
the motorcycle market. These Japanese manufacturers include
Honda, Yamaha, Kawasaki, and Suzuki. In Taiwan, San Yang Motor
and Kymco are the two major original brand manufacturers
(OBM). The rest of the motorcycle manufacturers have entered
either original equipment manufacturing (OEM) and partnered
with the Japanese manufacturers mentioned above. For those
that have not yet joined the supply chain, there is still a possibility
of collaboration.

As to the market in China, its conventional fuel motorcycle
industry had dropped significantly under the implementation
of the national emission standards. This had led to India being
the world's largest motorcycle market. Meanwhile, the rapid
climate change has raised the world’s awareness and concerns
for greenhouse gas emissions. One of the solutions of saving
this planet we live on is to replace the regular vehicles with
ones powered by electricity or ones that meet the emission
standard. As a result, the growth of the parts manufacturing
industry should maintain the previous rising slope as the
primary components will continue to be the same. Countries
in North America and Europe may hold potential growth in this
electric motorcycle industry with a matured market and steady
economy. On the other hand, the demand for motorcycles is
gradually rising in Africa and South America as the economy
develops along with its transport infrastructure. It is estimated
that these two continents will be one of the leading motorcycle
markets in the future.

As a whole, motorcycles are widely operated in developing
countries due to that they are relatively affordable and easier to
maneuver compared toanautomobile. The storage compartment

This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation,
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the speedometer cables have also been the dominating
factor of purchase for the customers. After the motorcycle’s
been assembled with individual parts, a wire harness has to
be installed to serve as the nervous system for transmitting
electricity and messages. This is to ensure the rider’s safety and
a smooth operation.

Operating its factories in both Vietnam and Taiwan, Eurocharm
develops tooling and manufactures metal-based motorcycle
parts (chassis, brake system components, clutch parts, shock
absorbers, engine components, fuel tanks, etc). Over the
past 40 years, the Company has established its significance of
being the leading automotive parts manufacturer in Vietnam.
The promising quality and the timely delivery have earned
Eurocharm the customers’ trust and a steady sales growth.

also provides the ease of shipping while the convenience to
park nearly anywhere makes it an everyday personal transport.
Asia, in particular, heavily depends on motorcycles due to its
high population density and the lack of public infrastructure.
According to Taiwan'’s Industrial Economics and Knowledge
Centre, the estimated 2017 worldwide fuel motorcycle sales will
reach 58 million.

However, based on the analysis from Global Motorcycle Market
Development, the increasing standard of living will lead to
motorcycle buyers converting into automobile buyers. As a
result, it is expected that the motorcycle market will begin to
show a downward trend. In 2015, the global market sales fell
4.5% in the scale of 61 million motorcycles market.

Sourced from Taiwan’s Industrial Economics and Knowledge Centre 2015/05
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lll. Motorcycle Trends in Vietham

Motorcycles have been the primary means
of transportation in Vietnam. This is due in
large part to the poor public transit system
and the lack of highway infrastructure. In
Hanoi and Ho Chi Ming City, the two most
populated cities in Vietnam, motorcycles
have undertaken more than 80% of the
urban transport needs.

The development of motorcycle industry
in Vietnam can be divided into 5 periods
chronologically, as follows:

Before 1995: Motorcycles are rarely seen,
and the people rely on bicycles as their
means of transportation. There were
approximately 2 to 3 million registered
imported motorcycles.

1995 - 1999: Manufacturers such as San
Yang Motor and Honda realized the
potential of the motorcycle market in
Vietnam and began setting up factories for
manufacturing and assembling. However,
the general public still can't afford to
purchase a motorcycle due to the relatively
low average income.

2000-2002: Motorcycles became a lot more
common as China started to import their
affordable motorcycles into the market.

info@eurocharm.com.tw

The industry has seen a rapid growth
regarding sales performance During the
peak seasons, the motorcycle sales could
reach 2 million motorcycles per year.

2003 - 2005: As the new policy from the
Vietnamese government in effect to
limit the motorcycle registration, the
sales performance has seen a substantial
decline. In addition, the inferior quality of
the Chinese motorcycles have started to
show, and the consumers have better and
more options. Towards the end of 2015,
foreign manufacturers with factories in
Vietnam had raised their market share had
to 53.6% altogether.

Since 2006: Along with the growth of the
economy and the lift of limited motorcycle
registration, motorcycle market is gradually
recovering. The annual sales in Vietnam are
approximately 2 million.

As the average standard of living escalated
in Vietnam, the government had made
an estimation in 2007 that by 2020, the
number of registered motorcycles will
increase to 33 million.

B. Medical Equipment Market

Eurocharm manufactures and exports
various medical equipment including
patient lifts, shower chairs, commode
chairs and medical beds to Europe, North
American and Japan. According to 2015
BMI’s statistics, they predicted the size of
medical equipment market worldwide in
2018 would reach US$382 billion based on
that it was US$324 billion in 2015.

North America was the largest market
for medical equipment consumption in
2015, accounting for 48.8% of the market
worldwide. Then, it was Western Europe
making up to 23.8%. Asia and the Pacific,
ranked the 3rd on the chart, accounting
for 20.2% of the global market. Accounted

Annual Report 2016

fora4.3% and a 2.9% are Central & Eastern
Europe and the Middle East & Africa.
However, due to the slower economic
growth and the impact of deflation in
recent years, the European markets have
been declining significantly. On the
other hand, based on the 9% increase
in Asia-Pacific (APAC) region compound
annual growth rate from 2013 to 2016, it
is estimated that the market growth rate
of the emerging countries such as China,
India, and South Korea would raise at least
15% in the next following 3 years.

In 2015, the North American market
appeared to be growing at a faster pace
compared to its performance in 2014.

www.eurocharm.com.tw

Further analysis pointed this to the non-
dollar area being affected by the dollar
exchangerate distortion. The strong dollar
performance had directly compressed
the medical equipment market shares of
other countries.

In the long run, it is expected to see a
gradual stability in the market shares after
the short-term exchange rate fluctuation
and the implementation of new monetary
policies. Overall, the ranking of regional
markets remains unaffected in the
coming years. North America will still be
the dominating market due to its matured
health insurance systems about other
countries.

This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation,
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Factoring the influences such as the Greek
government-debt crisis, Islamist terrorist
attacks and the European migrant crisis,
Western Europe's economic growth had
been moving at a slow pace. In the recent
years, to boost the European economy, the
European Central Bank had weakened the
euro over its quantitative easing monetary
policy. As a result, the euro fell more than
10% against the dollar which significantly
affected the performance of the medical
equipment market. In 2015, the market size
in Western Europe alone was approximate
US$77.72 billion which accounted for
23.8% of the global market. Compared to
the scale in 2014, that market share had
dropped 12.4%. However, in euros (70.65
billion euros), the percentage had in fact

This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation,
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risen 5.9%.

Currently, six of the top 10 countries with
population ages 65 and above are in
Western Europe. It is expected that the
issue of the aging population will continue
to simmer and, as a result, the demand for
medical care products will increase. This is
a market where the Company will prioritize
in the next development plan.

The driving forces of economic growth in
Central and Eastern Europe depend largely
on the euro zone countries. The scale of
the medical equipment market in 2015 was
approximate US$10.98 billion. However,
due to the EU economic sanctions imposed
against Russia and the tensions between
Russia and Ukraine, the Russian market

the Chinese text shall prevail.
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had dropped 38.6% from 2014 to 2015. This
significant decrease was mainly caused by
the 20% depreciation in dollar exchange
and had directly affected the overall
market performance in Central and Eastern
Europe.

Despite the external factors, if the market
growthweretobe conductedin the original
currency of Russia, the medical market
would be showing a slight increase of 3%.
It is evident that the demand for medical
supplies and equipment had not dropped
with its economic situation. Therefore, the
market demand is still worthy of attention
as the estimated economic growth for
other countries in Central and Eastern
Europe apart from Ukraine and Russia is
3%.

Annual Report 2016
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The leading medical supply market in Asia-Pacific
continues to be dominated by Japan, accounting for
roughly 40% of the APAC market. The issues of aging
population and monetary policy remain two of the
biggest influencing factors for Japan's market growth in
2015. China, on the other hand, has increasingly become

info@eurocharm.com.tw
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policy in 1979 began to emerge. Reaching 1.38 billion,
China has the highest population in the world. With its
imbalanced population structure, however; the country
will soon face the same challenges as Japan did. The
demand for medical equipment catered tot he seniors is
expected to rise.

an important market as the problem from one-child

The 2015 medical equipment market can be
divided into six broad categories based on
the types of products. These categories are
medical consumables, radiology products,
dental supplies, orthopedics and implants,
assistive devices and others. Among them,
others take up to approximately 28.2% of
the sold medical equipment. The second
largest section is the radiology products
accounting for 24.6%. This type of products
is in high demand mainly because the
emerging countries are fast expanding
their health facilities and require numerous
imaging diagnose products. Also, they are
considered to be relatively more expensive
as these specialty medical products are
only operated by a radiologic technologist.
In APAC, it is likely to see a steady growth
in radiology products. Nonetheless,
cost-effective  medical products are

100 %
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Sources: Espicom BMI (03/2016); IEK (05/2016)
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comparatively more popular in North
America and Europe as healthcare became
more and more affordable.

In addition, the longer life span in the 21st century has the
aging population demanding more of medical consumables
(15.7%) and assistive devices (12.5%). As the structure of world
population shifts, there is still plenty of room for these two types
of products to grow. The least two categories are orthopedics
and implants (11.9%), and dental products (7.1%) which are also
expected to rise in demand with relation to the subject of aging.

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Not to mention the issue with aging population also leads to a
higher expense on healthcare. Countries such as China and the
United States have implemented new policies towards their
healthcare systems. They aim to provide more affordable service
and products to encourage regular health examinations and
treatments. This will, eventually, change the allocation of medical
resources and individual’s consumption pattern.

Sources: Espicom BMI (03/2016); IEK (05/2016)
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Products
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Orthopaedics & Implants Dental Products
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5.2.1 Current
Status and Future
Development

Motorcycle Industry

Eurocharm’s products belong to the middle
stream of the industry as the Company
manufactures chassis and parts. Downstream
in the motorcycle industry refers to the
assembled and ready-for-sale motorcycles.
With a broader definition, the middle
stream can range from building engines to
tire productions. Upstream is primary the
manufacturing of components for the middle
stream products. See the illustrated table

below.
- Bearing Spark Pl
© PRI AE - Rotary Tuner Brak
« Variable Speed RIEKES
Upst Wheel rValve T ITE - Bearing Ball
pstream .Valve Guide | Crankshaft Seal 9
- Differential - Sterring steam
. - Fuel Pipe 9
. Cogwheel Carburetor
- Steering - Tire-Pressure
Middle « Engine System System Monitoring
+ Brake System System
Stream « Transmission + Body Frame
System - Common Parts
Downstream Motorcycle

Sourced from Taiwan’s Industrial Economics and Knowledge Centre 2011/04

This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation, Annual Report 2016
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Upstream

Electronic, plastic and
hardware parts

Middle Stream

R&D and Manufacturing
of Medical Equipments

Middle Stream

Sales agents and
wholesalers of
medical equipments

Sourced from Taipei Exchange (TPEX)
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5.2.3
Product Trends

Motorcycle Industry

As the issue of global warming and air pollution continues
to simmer, automotive manufacturers are launching
environmental-friendly products to help preserve the planet.
With the current research and development towards advanced
technology, the automotive manufacturers are exchanging
ideas with their long-term suppliers who are the parts
manufacturers. This is beneficial to both the upstream and
middle stream companies as they can apply newly developed
technologies to manufacture higher quality products and at
the same time, reduce the processing waste to ease off the
pollution.

In addition, the demand for motorcycles has been rising over
the years as countries in Southeast Asia starting to develop
economically. Manufacturers such as Honda, Yamaha, Piaggio,
and Suzuki had already taken this opportunity to invest in
factory establishments and the relatively cheap labor costs
in Southeast Asia. Besides supplying the motorcycle needs
domestically, the factories also export to neighboring countries
with the country’s competitive shipping cost.

A few of the fast-growing countries in Southeast Asia including
Indonesia, Vietnam, and Thailand are valued as markets with
the most potential. Their economy and public infrastructures
are maturing and would allow them the capacity to consume
motorcycles. In Vietnam, Eurocharm has established its place
for being the major motorcycle parts supplier. Besides seeking
other potential markets for export or investment, the Company
has begun to shift its focus from trading domestically to
shipping the products internationally. Along with the idea of
Association of Southeast Asian Nations (ASEAN), Eurocharm
wishes to increase its competitiveness by adding more
machinery such as the laser 3D cutting system to enhance the
product quality.

Medical Equipment Industry

Eurocharm is considered a middle
stream manufacturer in the medical
equipment industry. The Company
manufactures and exports the
equipment to original brand
manufacturers.

This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation,
the Chinese text shall prevail.
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Medical Equipment Industry

Influenced by the increasingly aging population, equipment such as hearing and
mobility aids are popular among seniors with self-care capability. Issues associated
with sub-replacement fertility also continue to affect world’s population structure. In
addition, due to the shortage of labors and caretakers, the demand self-care medical
devices and equipment will continue to rise.

Since the beginning of 2014, the United States President Obama began to implement
the parity medical policy, the number of the non-guaranteed population has been
reduced to 9.2%(2015) from 15.7%(2009). This signals an increase in market demand
for the expansion of insurance coverage and the drop in medical treatment costs. On
the other hand, the rising elderly population in the US has been driving its medical
expenditure. It is expected to reach 22% of the total government spending in 2023.
From 2016 to 2023, the compound growth rate is estimated to be up to 7.3%. Diseases
such as cardiovascular disease, hypertension, diabetes, osteoarthritis and so on are all
the primary medical expenditures that will affect the medical supply market demand.

According to the Statistics Bureau, Ministry of Internal Affairs and Communications,
Japan continues to have the highest proportion of the world's aging population. As of
March 1, 2016, the percentage of population ages 65 and above has reached 27%. The
estimate shows that by 2055, the number will grow to 41%.

65

5.2.4 Competition

As the Company’s principal business in Vinh Phuc Province,
Vietnam is automotive and motorcycle parts manufacturing,
there are two major domestic competitors, Cosmos Industrial
Co., Ltd and Kyoei Manufacturing Co., Ltd. Established in 2005,
Cosmos produces metal components in the same province.
Kyoei, headquartered in Japan, manufactures motorcycle and
recreational chassis locally in Vietnam.

In the medical equipment department, Eurocharm’s major
competition which also manufactures medical beds, rails
and lifts in Taiwan is Li Wei Co., Ltd. Founded in 1994, Li Wei
operates facilities in both Taiwan and China.

5.2.5 Research and Development

Eurocharm aims to provide higher efficiency in processing
technology and better quality products. Since the product
designs and the specifics are customized according to each
customers’requestordirectly passed down from the customers,
the Company’s research and development (R&D) department
focuses on reducing production cost and the processing time.
The team specializes in the development of measuring tools,
fixtures and robotic arm machinery. Additionally, Eurocharm
cooperates with its customers and suppliers to deliver further
technical training and workshops for employee development.

This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation, Annual Report 2016
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Eurocharm Holdings
Co., Ltd.

R&D Dept., Eurocharm
Innovation

Tooling design of
automotive and
motorcycle parts and
medical equipment

Tooling production
of automotive and
motorcycle parts and
medical equipment

R&D Team

R&D Dept., VPIC1

Tooling design of

Tooling production
automotive and

of automotive and
motorcycle parts and
medical equipment

motorcycle parts and
medical equipment

Unit: Person
Year
Education 2013 2014 2015 2016

PhD Degree - - - -
Master Degree - - 1 1
Undergraduate Degree 31 34 45 47
College Degree 30 27 32 33
Total 61 61 78 81

R&D Expenses in Previous 5 Years

Unit: NTS thousands: %

Category/Year 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
R&D 18,389 30,839 34,065 38,369 42,991
Net Revenue | 3,069,299 | 3,473,538 | 3,798,622 | 4,008,187 | 4,164,779
% 0.60 0.89 0.90 0.96 1.03

Annual Report 2016
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R&D Achievements in Previous 5 Years

In 2016, Eurocharm had budgeted
NT$20,000,000 (not to exceed) to

introduce new robotic arms and the
production of iron and aluminium wires.

With this investment, the Company plans

Purchased SolidWork, a computer to elevate the manufacturing automation

and enhance the productivity of the

machinery. As for the development in
medical equipment production, the
Company plans to move into the market of

ODM from OEM. Budgeted NT$10,000,000

develop its own medical equipment brand

and market via existing customers.

A.Increase existing customers’ order numbers,

as well as, seek for new customers

B. Develop niche markets for higher profits, i.e.

recreational vehicles

C. Improve productivity and provide better

product consistency

D. Raise the Company’s viability and attract

talents via joining the capital market

5.2.6 Market and
Sales Overview

l. Market Analysis

Main Products and Sales Regions

Unit: NTS thousands

Sales
Regions

2014 2015 2016

Amount % Amount % Amount

%

Vietnam

2,901,416 | 76.38 | 2,973,947 | 74.20 | 3,084,786

74.07

Others

897,206 | 23.62 | 1,034,240 | 25.80 | 1,079,993

25.93

Total

3,798,622 | 100.00 | 4,008,187 | 100.00 | 4,164,779

100.00

Business
Development Plan

Long Term:

Year Achievement Description
. . Promoted multi-machine operations to
2012 Shorter Processing Time simplified product processing
2013 Improved Product Design | graphic system, to simulate and test the
durability of medical equipments
Purchased a 3D laser cutting machine to
2014 Reduced Production Cost | increase production flexibility and reduce
tooling cost
Purchased a laser cutting system to )
2015 | Better Product Quality increase manufacturing precision for (not to exceed), Eurocharm intends to
luxurious vehicle parts
. . Imported automated stamping
2016 :Erpﬁrzce)\rﬁd Production production and increased the number of
Y robotic arms to replace manual handling
Short Term:

A.Continuetoinvestinresearch and development
to diversified product lines and stay competitive

B. Expand operating locations to best serve
existing customers and explore potential markets

C. Reach out to potential European customers
and move towards globalization

D. Enhance product development capability and
integrate resources from customers and suppliers
for the business to be mutually beneficial

Il. Market Share

+ Motorcycle Industry

Based on the 2016 total approximate sales of NT$
124.82 billion from Vietnam'’s five largest motorcycle
manufacturers and Eurocharm Group's 2015
motorcycle parts sales of NT$ 3.25 billion, the Group’s
motorcycle market share in Vietnam is approximately
2.61%.

+ Medical Equipment Industry

According to Taiwan’s Industrial Economics and
Knowledge Centre, the global medical equipment
market in 2015 is worth US$ 323.9 billion, and the
assistive equipment takes up to 12.5% of the market
share. Since Eurocharm Group’s 2016 medical
equipment sales are US$ 440 million, the Group's
global market share is approximately 0.136%.

This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation, Annual Report 2016
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[Il. Supply, Demand and Future Growth

+ Motorcycle Industry

Compared to the numbers in 2015, the motorcycle market in Vietnam has
recovered with the total sales of 31.2 million motorcycles in 2016 from the
largest five manufacturers. Besides the demand for fuel motorcycles, there
has been a steady increase in electric motorcycle sales. Along with the growth
of demand in recreational vehicles in North America and Europe, Eurocharm’s
sales performance will continue to thrive.

Recently, Vietnam’s Ministry of Transport had passed Bill No.39/2013/TT-
BGTVT and No. 41/2013/TT-BGTVT to regulate the technical standards and
safety of electric vehicles.The two provisions came into effect on January 1,
2014. With the insurance that all the electric vehicles produced after 2014 are
subjected to comply the regulations, the younger consumers are encouraged
to purchase electric motorcycles for short-distance transport within the city
where there will be easily accessed charging stations. Eurocharm is prepared
to enter the market of electric vehicle components to respond to market
changes.

Annual Report 2016 This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation,
the Chinese text shall prevail.
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» Medical Equipment Industry

The current ten largest medical equipment markets are
the United States, Japan, Germany, China, France, England,
Italy, Canada, Russia, and Brazil. Among the top ten
countries, undoubtedly; the United States holds the world’s
biggest market. As Obama continues to promote public
healthcare along with the increasing number of people
purchasing an insurance plan, the medical equipment
market appears to be an uprising slope. It is estimated that
in 2018, the US market will reach approximately US$164.6
billion. However, since the health parity act has been in
effect, various medical equipment are at risk facing price
cutting. Cost-effective products have become preferable
to the consumers. As a result, there will be a shift in market
shares and brand images. For Eurocharm, this is a great
opportunity to expand our customer base as the medical
equipment manufacturers look for new suppliers for cost
cutting.

Closely following the size of the US medical equipment
market is Japan’s, the demand for orthopedic aids and
assistive equipment is climbing at a steady growth rate due
to the aging population. Meanwhile, in Western Europe,
Germany has the largest market demand when it comes to
medical equipment. The total sale of medical supplies was
USS 22.67 billion in 2015. These are Eurocharm’s current
target markets because of their growing demand for
medical equipment.

IV. Competitive Niche

- Diversified product lines to satisfy the demand for one-
stop purchasing

- Mass production for cost-effective and competitive
products

+ Globalization vision with product management and
investment in improved automated production

- Trusting employee relations and high productivity
« Well-maintained long-term partnerships with customers

- International certification (ISO 9001, ISO 14001, ISO/TS
16949, ISO 13485, OHSAS 18001)

This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation,
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V. Foreseen Favourable and Unfavourable
Factors and Countermeasures

Favourable Factors

A. Motorcycle Industry

1. The infrastructure in Vietnam is still at the
development stage. The day-to-day transport
relies largely on motorcycles.

Due to the postwar baby boom, Viethnam has the
youngest population in Asia with approximately 70% of
the population between 15-64 years old. The median
population is 28 years old. With the country’s lack of
complete infrastructure and public transport system,
motorcycles have become most of their means to
commute.

2. The scale of ASEAN economy continues to grow
along with the demand for motorcycles.

Founded in Bangkok on August 8, 1967, Association of
Southeast Asian Nation (ASEAN) was established with the
primary objective to accelerate the economic growth of
the participated countries. It is to promote stability and
peace among countries and respect one another’s laws
and regulations.

Since then, countries including Singapore, Thailand,
Cambodia, Indonesia, Malaysia, Vietnam, Brunei, Myanmar,
Laos and the Philippines have joined and benefited from
the organization. In 2010, the ASEAN-China Free Trade
Area (ACFTA) came into effect which allows the ASEAN
members to trade with People’s Republic of China at
reduced tariffs. The potential market is estimated to reach
NTS$ 2 trillion

According to the Vietnamese Ministry of Industry and Trade
information Centre, ASEAN has become an important
trading partner of Vietnam. The average annual trade
volume has grown 17% in recent years. Also, the trade
amount between Vietnam and ASEAN has preceded the
amount between Vietnam and outside ASEAN countries
including European Union, Japan, and the United States. It
is a positive prospect for ASEAN to reach other free trade
area agreements for mutual trading benefits. Eurocharm
aims to take full advantage of this and export products
outside of the market in Vietnam.

3. Eurocharm possesses an extraordinary
management team.

Eurocharm has rooted in Vietnam for over 10 years. The
management team has a keen eye for market forecast and
can strategize and adapt to the market changes swiftly. In
addition, the Company has the industry’s leading tooling
design and stamping technology. Along with the trusted
service and quality, Eurocharm received the Ford QI
Quality Certification.

Annual Report 2016
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B. Medical Equipment Industry

1. Due to the aging population, the demand for medical
assistive equipments continues to increase.

As the distribution of population shifts towards older ages,
governments across the world have been establishing long-term
care facilities, nursing homes, and retirement homes. This then,
indirectly, increases the demand for related medical equipment
including shower chairs and medical beds.

Unfavourable Factors and Countermeasures

A. Motorcycle Industry

1. The growth in Vietham's motorcycle market has
slowed.

In recent years, manufacturers have been expanding their
factory capacity in order to stay competitive. The result is an
approximate production number of 5 million motorcycles per
year in Vietnam alone. This reveals that the local motorcycle
market has already been saturated and the manufacturers intend
to move into exporting for a stable sales performance.

Countermeasures:

Besides exporting automotive and motorcycle parts as a source
of income, Eurocharm also coordinated with Honda, Yamaha
and Piaggio to explore completely built up (CBU) automobile
export opportunities. In 2015, the number of CBU automobiles,
from the three manufacturers, imported in Taiwan reached
300 thousand. Relatively, since the exported products are CBU
automobiles instead of parts, the standard for quality control is
also much higher. As Eurocharm continues to deliver on quality
and reliability, customers, likewise, began to invest trust in the
Company.

2. The core product design capability still lies in the
hands of OBMs.

At the current stage, Eurocharm is an original equipment
manufacturer (OEM). The original product designs are provided
by the original brand manufacturers (OBM). Capable of
manufacturing and processing according to customers’ designs,

B. Medical Equipment Industry

1. The Company juggles between producing high-
quality refined medical equipments while competing
with low-quality affordable products.

After the financial crisis in 2008, most countries are unable to
support medical expenses as much as they used to. Under the
pressure of limited budget, health care institutions gradually
move towards importing equipment from China which is
relatively cheaper.

Countermeasures:

Eurocharm’s medical equipment are supplied to a niche market
which specializes in long-term home care or patient care. The
customers are located in various developed countries including
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2. American and Japanese medical equipment markets
continue to expand as the government implements
healthcare supporting polices.

These new policies to promote quality yet affordable healthcare
include social insurance programs such as Medicaid and
Medicare. In Japan, the federal government had budgeted US$
4.1 billion to help with the increasing medical expenditure.

the Company, however; does not have the necessary talents to
develop engineering designs.

Countermeasures:

In upcoming years, Eurocharm is prepared to strengthen the
R&D department with product design capability. Joining forces
with the customers, the Company plans to install drawing design
facilities and software to develop and test new products. This
integration will not only benefit the Company in profits but also
reinforce our place as a leading automotive and motorcycle
manufacturer in Vietnam.

3. The cost of largely imported raw materials could be
fluctuated by the exchange rate.

To ensure the quality of the automotive and motorcycle parts,
Eurocharm’s raw materials are supplied by customer certified
supplier. As a result, this US dollar denominated imported
materials could influence the pricing of the products sold in
Vietnamese dollars greatly as the exchange rate fluctuates.

Countermeasures:

In 2016, Eurocharm began domestic procurement along with
importing customer certified raw materials. The ratio of local raw
materials has gradually increased from 50% to 80%. Due to this
shift, the exchange rate has only minimal effect on Company'’s
operation cost. In addition, with the unified purchase system
every quarter, the Company is able to easily manage materials
and reduce the risk of running low or waste.

France, Japan, and the United States. Under the circumstances
that the target markets are consumers in economically
developed countries, the product quality is considered more
important than price competitiveness. From the sales growth
year after year, it is believed that the customers trust and rely on
Eurocharm’s products.

Also, as the minimum wages and social insurance expenditure
increase in China, Eurocharm has a comparative advantage
manufacturing medical equipmentin Vietnam. If the competition
chooses to source cheaper materials, it should eventually reflect
on the quality of the equipment. Additionally, the Company
has the capacity of developing medical equipment tooling
which sets it apart from the rest of competition. Eurocharm
has, on various occasions, co-developed with customers or self-
developed tooling or products.

This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation,

the Chinese text shall prevail.
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5.2.7 Production Process and
Major Uses of Primary Products

« Major Uses of Primary Products

Primary Products Major Uses
Automotive and Chassis, brake system parts, clutch parts, shock absorbers,
Motorcycle Parts engine components, fuel tanks and others
Medical Equipments Medical beds, patient lifting, shower and commode chairs

» Production Process of Primary Products

Automotive and Motorcycle Part

: Plating

Aluminum Die Casting

Medical Equipment

D50

This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation, Annual Report 2016
the Chinese text shall prevail.
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5.2.8 Condition of Raw
Material Suppliers

Primary Raw Material Primary Supplier Supply Condition
Company A’s Subsidiary, Vulcan, Hanoi Steel
Iron Plate Centre, CSMV, VNTEC, SMC Good
A idi Vul Xin Y
Iron Pipe/iron Bar Company A’s Subsidiary, Vulcan, Xin Yong Good
Cheng
C A’s Subsidiary, C B’
Aluminum Ingot ompany As suosiclary, Lompany 53 Good

Subsidiary

5.2.9 Major Suppliers in the Last Two Calendar Years

Unit: NTS thousands

2015 2016 2017 (As of March 31)
Item Comban Relation Comban Relation Comban Relation
Pany 1 aAmount | Percent with Pany | Amount | Percent with Pany | Amount | Percent with
Name Name Name
Issuer Issuer Issuer
Honda Honda Honda
Trading 749,829 30.52 None Trading 733,755 29.68 None Trading 156,951 27.08 None
Others 1,706,897 69.48 Others 1,738,580 70.32 Others 422,651 72.92
Net Net Net
Purchases 2,456,726 | 100.00 Purchases 2,472,335 | 100.00 Purchases 579,602 | 100.00

Note: Net purchases are net purchases of consolidated financial statements for the latest year.

5.2.10 Major Customers in the Last Two Calendar Years

Unit: NTS thousands

2015 2016 2017 (As of March 31)
ltem Relation Relation Relation
Company . Company . Company .
Amount | Percent with Amount | Percent with Amount Percent with
Name Name Name
Issuer Issuer Issuer
1 A 2,040,986 | 50.92 None A 2,082,372 | 50.00 None A 452,344 45,03 None
2 B 359,348 8.96 None B 392,882 943 None B 68,867 6.86 None
3 C 301,264 7.52 None C 302,108 7.25 None C 107,793 10.73 None
Others 1,306,589 | 32.60 Others 1,387,417 | 33.32 Others 375,517 37.38
Net Sales | 4,008,187 | 100.00 Net Sales | 4,164,779 | 100.00 Net Sales 1,004,521 100.00

Note: Net sales are net sales of consolidated financial statements for the latest year

Annual Report 2016
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Unit: NT$ thousand piece

2015 2016
Capacity Quantity Amount Capacity Quantity Amount
Motorcycle
Parts 121,608 109,082 3,048,511 119,843 111,603 3,182,353
Medical
?dlca 381 350 384,486 477 456 375,451
Equipment
Others 1,768 1,600 89,370 1,851 1,747 90,861
Total 123,757 111,032 3,522,367 122,171 113,806 3,648,665
Unit: NT$ thousand piece
2015 2016
Local (Vietnam) Export Local (Vietnam) Export
Quantity Amount Quantity Amount Quantity Amount Quantity Amount
Motorcycle Parts | 104,008 2,885,045 1,762 234,406 106,537 2,982,582 2,017 269,165
Medical - - 342 448,340 - - 457 440,639
Equipment
Others 1,059 88,694 2,144 347,309 1,220 83,083 1,516 389,309
Total 105,067 2,973,739 4,248 1,030,055 107,757 3,065,665 3,990 1,099,113
5.3 Human Resources
Unit: person: year: age
Year 2015 2016 2017 (As of March 31)
Direct Labour 2,842 2,691 2,606
Number of Indirect Labour 844 841 819
Employees
Total 3,686 3,532 3,425
Average Age 28.66 29.69 30.71
Average Years of Service 5.37 6.08 6.27
Ph.D. - - -
Masters 4 4 4
Education
Bachelor’s Degree 247 272 266
College or Below High School 3,435 3,256 3,155
This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation, Annual Report 2016

the Chinese text shall prevail.
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5.4 Environmental
Protection Expenditure

A. According to laws and regulations if it is required to apply for a permit for installing
anti-pollution facilities, or permit of pollution drainage, or to pay anti-pollution fees, or
to organize and set up an exclusively responsible unit/office for environmental issues,
the description of the status of such applications, payment or establishment shall be
made.

Pollution Control Facility and Pollutant Discharge Permit

Olg(z:a?\lijzi;et(ijon License Acquired Date License Number
Approved Environmental Impact | o4/29/5003 1462/QD-CT
Approved E\rs‘;’é;‘;m*e‘ﬁ?ta' Impact | 46/30/2011 1515/QD-CT
VPICT Approved Environmental Impact | og/56/5013 2289/QD-UBND
Wastewater Discharge Permit 03/06/2007 700/GP-UBND
Haza'd%:;?g’targtt?;’°d“°er 11/12/2013 | QLCTNH26.000010.T

Above licenses do not specify dates of expiry. Aside from following the waste disposal
guidelines, Eurocharm in Taiwan is not required to install pollution control facility
or apply for a pollutant discharge permit because the Company does not produce
pollution during the production process.

Pollution Control Expenses

When VPIC1 first established its operating facilities in Khai Quang Industrial Zone, the
Company had agreed to pay wastewater treatment fee. In 2016, the Company paid a
total of NT$2,114 thousand.

B. Setting forth the Company's investment in the major anti-pollution facilities, the use
purpose of such facilities and the possible effects to be produced.

www.eurocharm.com.tw

12/31/2016; Unit: VND$ millions

- Unit Acquired Book
Facility Number Date Cost Value Purpose

01/2011

1 Wastewater Treatment Plant 3 1,188 864 Wastewater Treatmen
05/2013

2 Electroplating Wastewater Treatment System 1 11/2004 3,249 271 Wastewater Treatmen
12/2002

3 Wastewater Treatment System 3 02/2005 3,388 1,996 Wastewater Treatmen
08/2006

Annual Report 2016
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A. Describing the process undertaken by the company on environmental pollution
improvement for the most recent 2 fiscal years and up to the prospectus' publishing
date. If there had been any pollution dispute, its handling process shall also be
described.

5.5 .
Labor Relations

Setting forth all employee benefits, continuing education, training, retirement

None

systems, and the status of their implementation, as well as the status of agreements
between labor and management, and all measures aimed at preserving the rights
and interests of employees.

This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation, Annual Report 2016
the Chinese text shall prevail.
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1. Employee Welfare Measures

Eurocharm values employees as valuable assets and they
key to a successful business. In order to fully take care of
the employees, the Company has established the following
welfare measures:

For the employees employed at the subsidiary in Taiwan,
Eurocharm provides the mandatory health and labor
insurance in accordance with the Labour Standard Law
in Taiwan as well as travel and accident insurance for the
employees going on business trips. In addition, the Company
has set up a system for individual retirement accounts to
protect employee benefits.

2. Advanced Education and Training

Eurocharm regards employee training as highly as the
attitude of an employee. In order to accomplish better
productivity, both the onboarding training and on-the-
job training are essential.

4. Retirement System and Implementation Status

In Taiwan, the Company follows closely with the Labour
Standards Act in accordance with regional laws and
regulations. Under the system, Eurocharm contributes
6% or more of a worker's monthly wage into an
individual pension account overseen by the Bureau of
Labor Insurance.

At Eurocharm’s operating base in Vietnam, the Company
has been paying social insurance fees on a monthly basis
to the local institution. Once the employee has reached
the legal retirement age, s/he is entitled to the pension.

6. Code of Conduct and Ethic

The Company safeguards employee rights and interests
in accordance with the law and has formulated welfare
management guidelines that clearly state various benefits,
rights, and interests. Actual implementation is based on these
guidelines,

A. All employees should be responsible and comply with the
Company'’s policies, regulations, and measures.

Annual Report 2016
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For the employees employed at the subsidiary in
Vietnam, Eurocharm provides the mandatory medical and
unemployment insurance by the Labour Law in Vietnam. In
addition, the Company has established a periodic evaluation
for promotions, salary adjustments, and bonuses as an
incentive to raise overall productivity and performance. On
special occasions or holidays, the Company collaborates
with the trade union hosting activities and dinner parties for
employee entertainment.

3. Finance Related Certifications & Licenses

There had been no occurrence of license acquirement in 2016.

5. Labour-Management Agreements

In addition to labor contracts concluded in accordance
with relevant laws after employees assume their duties, the
Company has also established a grievance channel via email
and a labor union to provide open communication channels
between labor and management.

B. All employees should protect the company’s honor and
work with your correspondent teams with Company’s interest
as the priority.

C. All the managers should be the role model and provide
the necessary guidance. The staff should listen and obey the
command given by the supervisors instead of making excuses
for misbehaving conducts.

This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation,

the Chinese text shall prevail.
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D. Employees are not allowed to leave work stations without  H. All employees are subject to comply the relevant business
approval. laws and regulations.
E.Allemployeesshould reporttothe correspondentmanagers  I. Employees should not behave in any way that can damage
based on the company’s hierarchy, except emergencies. personal or Company’s reputation.
F. Employees are not permitted to photograph, film or record  J. Employees should not accept bribery of any form including
within the premises of the company. but not limited to money, gifts and irrelevant invitations.
G.All employees are subject to the trade secret, non- K. Employees are not authorized to utilize the name of the
competition and intellectual property law. Employees may  Company except handling sales related matters.
not leak confidential information directly or indirectly for
personal interest or the interest of others.
7. Personal Safety Measures and Work Environment
A. For the safety of the employees, the Company has covered  hydrants.
labour, health and group insurance. . . .
group D. The Company provides basic health and safety training to
B. The Company’s labor safety and health committee holds all the employees and professional workshops for operational
quarterly meeting to discuss and implement the relevant managers who are responsible for specialized machinery and
policies and regulations equipment.
C. For a safe working environment, the periodic maintenance  E. The Company supervises the investigation and statistics of
is implemented on relevant facilities including the fire the occupational accidents within the organization.
Describing the loss suffered by the Company due to labor disputes occurring in the most recent 2
fiscal years and up to the prospectus' publishing date, and disclosing the estimated amount expected
to be incurred for the present and future as well as the preventive measures. If a reasonable estimate
cannot be made, an explanation of why it cannot be made shall be provided.
The Company'’s labour disputes are primarily caused by mishandling of the equipment and traffic
collisions while employees travel to work. All the past and current disputes have been settled and
compensated. A number of compensations are minimal and does not affect the Company’s overall
operation.
5.6 Important Contracts
Contract Commencement/ Restrictive
Borrower Lender TermiirEtem DEiE Amount Agreement Feees
Fnurzgsgtaign First Bank 08/22/2016-08/22/2017 EqT.ﬁ.gg Pledge: Land and building of Eurocharm Innovation None
Guarantors: Eurocharm Holdings Co., Ltd.
lE“'OChta.rm Bank SinoPac 12/19/2016-12/19/2017 NT.I?.3° - "9 None
MinEII IO Pledge: NT$ 30 million promissory note
Eurocharm NTS 30 . 8
Tevalien Yuata Bank 02/19/2016-02/19/2017 = Guarantor: Eurocharm Holdings Co., Ltd. None
Fubon Bank - US$ 2.5 Guarantor: Steven Yu
VPIC1 ) 06/06/2016-06/06/2017 A None
Vietnam million Pledge: US$ 2.8 millions
E.SUN . } .
APEX Commane Berlk 08/23/2016-08/23/2017 USS 1 million Guarantor: Eurocharm Holdings Co., Ltd. None
VNS 500 Supplement investment quota for tooling, parts
VPIC1 VIB 11/15/2016-11/15/2017 billion and medical machineries 9 None
VPICT Bangkok 03/31/2016-03/31/2026 US$ 2 million Raw materials and other capital needs None
08/25/2016-08/25/2017 (Automatically - . .
VPIC1 CTBC renewed for another year) USS 3 million Guarantor: Eurocharm Holdings Co., Ltd. None

This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation,

the Chinese text shall prevail.
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: Contract Commencement/ Restrictive
Supplier Purchaser e Agreement A
. 06/05/2009 (Automatically General Agreement for .
VPIC1 Honda Vietnam Co., Ltd. renewed) Purchace of Parts Confidential
VPICT Yamaha MotL%Yietnam Co,, 01/05/20%?;\@\\/4;8;11atically Supply Agreement Confidential
02/09/2006 (Termination will only
VPIC1 Exedy Vietnam Co., Ltd. be decided upon writing by both Supply Agreement Confidential
parties
Kyoei Manufacturing Vietnam 04/21/2004 (Automatically General Agreement for Sale .
VPICT Co., Ltd renewed) and Purchasing Confidential
i\ 11/05/2007 (Automaticall General Purchase-Suppl .
VPIC1 Piaggio Vietnam Co., Ltd. renewed) Y Agreement Y Confidential
- . 09/15/2008 (Automatically General Agreement for :
VPIC1 Nissin Brake Vietnam Co., Ltd. renewed) Purchase of Parts Confidential
VPIC1 FranceBed Co., Ltd. 07/28/222%&'}&';8)"“&“3”3’ General Agreement of Trade | Confidential
VPIC1 Piaggio & C.S.PA. 07/11/2012 (Perpetual Contract) General terms of Purchaes Confidential
: : 03/31/2015 (Automaticall ;
VPIC1 Honda Italia Industriale S.PA. renewed for another year Supply Agreement Confidential
VPIC1 Polaris Industries Inc. 12/05/2014 (Perpetual Contract) Master Supply Agreement Confidential
5.6.3 Purchase Agreement
. Contract Commencement/ Restrictive
Supplier Purchaser Termination Date Agreement Clauses
Honda Trading Vietnam VPICT 05/01/2011 (Automatically Retaining Sale and Purchase None
Company Ltd. renewed) Agreement
Hanoi Steel Cﬁgtre Company VPICT 01/03/20r1ei(glbjéggnatically Principle Contracts None
5.6.4 Lease Agreement
Contract At
Lesse Lessor Commencement/ Amount Agreement R%ﬁ;ﬂgg;’e
Termination Date
Shen Y BENol0, Lane 315, Xinsha
en Yuan atNo ane inShu
IErtjr:g\clgtai:m Metal Co., | 01/16/2016-01/15/2018 NTS 1?&;2?#5‘3”‘1/ Road XmZhuang District, None
Ltd. New Taipei City, Taiwan
242
Section A: VNS 682,157/ o
Exedy Vietnam Co VPICT OVO(XS?()];\;%/C?II/)%OW square meter/year fLeatse VfICE's f%all\;!e_;, and \
N actory to Exe ietnam one
Ltd. renewed for two Section B: VN$249,249/ T
years) square meter/year
: Lease VPIC's facilities and
Hsien Yuan 12/31/2011 :
- VN$56,846/square factory to Hsien Yuan
Techn%lggzt\életnam VPICT (leég?r{é%l%?ggte)d meter/year Techno Ogal \éietnamCo., None
. . td.
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5.6.5 Insurance Contract
Contract ..
Insured Insurance Company Commencement/ Agreement Recsl';rl:csggle
Termination Date
Eurocharm 12/23/2016 -
MSIG Ming Tai Insurance Property Insurance of NT$ 3.5 million None
Innovation 9 12/23/2017 perty
. 07/12/2016 -
VPIC1 Petrolimex Insurance Corp. 07/11/2017 Inventory Insurance of VN$ 222,151,122,938 None
) . 08/01/2016 - .
VPIC1 VinhPhucBao Minh Co. 08/01/2017 Fire Insurance of VN$ 96,188,322,753 None
Fubon Insurance Vietnam 08/01/2016 - .
VPIC1 Co, Ltd. 08/01/2017 Personal Accident Insurance of 3,512 employees None
Fubon Insurance Vietnam 11/30/2016 - .
VPIC1 Co., Ltd. 11/30/2017 Fire Insurance of VN$ 191,072,346,184 None
Vietin Bank Insurance 12/26/2016 -
VPIC1 Company - Hanoi Branch 12/26/2017 Inventory Insurance of VN$ 82,370,985,770 None
Insurance Type: Product Liability Insurance
VPICT | ACEI C Ltd 04/06/2016 - ~ - N
nsurance Lompany Lid. 04/05/2017 AHM’s Estimated Revenue: US$ 1.5 million one
(patient lifters)
Petrolimex insurance 10/01/2016 -
VPIC1 corporation 09/30/2017 Product Recall Insurance None
Petrolimex insurance 01/01/2017 -
VPIC1 corporation 12/31/2017 Product Recall Insurance None
This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation, Annual Report 2016
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|
-} VI. Financial
Information

6.1 Five-Year Financial Summary

6.1.1 Condensed Balance Sheet

Consolidated Condensed Balance Sheet - Based on IFRS
Unit: NTS thousands

Year Financial Summary for The Last Five Years As of March
Item 31,2017
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Current assets 1,225,468 1,283,553 2,138,801 2,444,054 2,496,319 2,393,356
Investment 72,269 83,018 100,414 113,755 134,671 134,161
Property, Plant and Equipment 779,028 747,255 695,259 670,600 651,041 591,572
Intangible assets 6,777 6,414 3,934 6,978 5,437 5422
Other assets 373 808 1,114 1,114 1,114 2,390
Total assets 2,083,915 2,121,048 2,939,522 3,236,501 3,288,582 3,126,901
Before distribution 707,222 576,415 706,378 680,635 600,217 558,033
Current
liabilities After distribution 536,600 405,793 480,617 355,519 rorre -
Distributed
Non-current liabilities 67,312 61,269 66,249 58,845 46,327 41,004
Before distribution 774,534 637,684 772,627 739,480 706,544 599,037
Total
. legs N tY t
liabilities After distribution 603,912 467,062 546,866 414,364 orTe -
Distributed
Equi i | harehol
quity attributable to shareholders |, 5,5 5, 1,483,364 2,166,895 2,497,021 2,582,038 2,527,864
of the parent
Capital stock 568,742 568,742 643,492 649,322 658,192 657,532
Capital surplus 436,632 439,825 794,848 813,038 829,726 835,030
. Before distribution 381,784 536,096 709,190 982,046 1,128,919 1,228,857
Retained
earnings PRI Not Yet
After distribution 211,162 365,474 483,429 656,930 L - Refere
Distributed .
financi
Other equity interest - - - - - - certifie
Other components of equity (77,777) (61,299) 19,365 52,615 (34,799) (193,555)
Non-controlling interest - - - - - - Note 1
Before distribution 1,309,381 1,483,364 2,166,895 2,497,021 2,582,038 2,527,864 18th, 2
Total equity Not Yet Note 2:
After distribution 1,138,759 1,312,742 1,941,134 2,171,905 L - N
Distributed distribt
decisio

Annual Report 2016 This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation,
the Chinese text shall prevail.
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6.1.2 Condensed Statement of Comprehensive Income/Condensed Statement of Income

Consolidated Condensed Statement of Comprehensive Income-Based on IFRS

Unit: NT$ thousands (except earnings per share)

v Financial Summary for The Last Five Years
ear Q12017
ltem 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Operating revenue 3,069,299 3,473,538 3,798,622 4,008,187 4,164,779 1,004,521
Gross profit 569,636 542,530 612,576 792,614 748,384 187,658
Income from operations 399,316 338,233 373,001 528,866 513,020 132,581
Non-operating income and expenses 17,726 82,712 82,773 122,583 128,687 1,774
Income before tax from continuing
. 417,042 420,945 455,774 651,449 641,707 134,355
operations
Net income (Loss) from continuing
. 380,575 318,675 344,099 484,120 471,793 99,938
operations
Loss of discontinued operations - - - - - -
Net income (Loss) 380,575 318,675 344,099 484,120 471,793 99,938
Other comprehensive income
(39,471) 22,737 80,281 47,747 (87,218) (158,756)
(income after tax)
Total comprehensive income 341,104 341,412 424,380 531,867 384,575 (58,818)
Net income attributable to shareholders 380,575 318,675 344,099 484120 471,793 99,938
of the parent
Net income attributable to non-
controlling interest
C hensive i ttributable t
HREIEEE ITEns CULL S 341,104 341,412 424,380 531,867 384575 | (58,818)
Shareholders of the parent
Comprehensive income attributable to
non-controlling interest
Earnings per share 6.79 5.60 5.77 7.50 7.25 1.52

nce: Every consolidated certified by a CPA.
al statement has been
d by a CPA. Note 1: The Company was established on July 18th, 2011.

: The Company was established on July
011.

The numbers above are the amounts after
ution based on the shareholder meetings’
ns

This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation,
the Chinese text shall prevail.

Reference: Every consolidated financial statement has been

Note 2: Above information has been certified by a CPA.
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6.1.3 Auditors’ Opinions from 2012 to 2016

Year Accounting Firm CPA Audit Opinion

2012 Ernst & Young Mars Hong & Steven Chang No Reservations
2013 Ernst & Young Mars Hong & Steven Chang No Reservations
2014 Ernst & Young Mars Hong & Steven Chang No Reservations
2015 Ernst & Young Mars Hong & Steven Chang No Reservations
2016 Ernst & Young Mars Hong & Steven Chang No Reservations

6.2 Financial Analysis

A. Consolidated Financial Analysis — Based on IFRS

Financial Analysis for the Last Five Years
Year As of March
31,2017
ltem 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Debt Ratio 3717 30.06 26.28 22.85 21.48 19.16

Financial : :
structure (o) | Ratio of long-term capital to property, 17672 20671| 32120 38113| 40372 43424

plant and equipment

Current ratio 173.28 222.68 302.78 359.08 378.11 428.89
Solvency (%) Quick ratio 122.67 166.13 241.66 285.94 302.37 348.11
Interest earned ratio (times) 30.25 12217 416.47 483.55 779.77 1,075.84
Accounts receivable turnover (times) 6.59 8.10 743 6.60 6.95 6.95
Average collection period 55 45 49 55 52 52
Inventory turnover (times) 6.72 9.58 9.88 8.61 8.70 8.73
Operating Accounts payable turnover (times) 54 38 37 424 42 41.8
performance Average days in sales 6.01 8.76 9.41 8.92 10.15 10.90
Property, plant an(.:I equipment turnover 388 455 597 5.87 6.30 6.47

(times)
Total assets turnover (times) 1.45 1.65 1.50 1.30 1.28 1.25
Return on total assets (%) 18.49 15.29 13.64 15.71 14.48 1248
Return on stockholders' equity (%) 31.99 22.82 18.85 20.76 18.58 15.65
Profitability Pre-tax income to paid-in capital (%) 73.33 74.01 70.83 100.33 97.90 81.73
Profit ratio (%) 12.40 9.17 9.06 12.08 11.33 9.95
Earnings per share (NT$) 6.79 5.60 5.77 7.50 7.25 1.52
Cash flow ratio (%) 93.28 83.08 48.12 74.79 100.51 10.43
Cash flow Cash flow adequacy ratio (%) 169.43 170.92 155.43 147.40 151.66 127.87
Cash reinvestment ratio (%) 25.92 13.55 5.37 7.79 8.89 1.57
Operating leverage 1.34 1.44 1.44 1.32 1.31 1.28

Leverage

Financial leverage 1.04 1.01 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

Annual Report 2016 This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation,
the Chinese text shall prevail.
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Year

Financial Analysis for the Last Five Years
As of March

Item

2012

31,2017

2013 2014 2015 2016

Analysis of financial ratio differences for the last two years,

period.

received have been on time.

reinvestment continues to increase.

1) The ratio of long-term capital to property, plant and equipment: The ratio increases because of the growth in respective sales
performance and the amount of 2016 dividend payment being less than the profit in the respective year.

2) Current ratio: The Company's growth in respective sales performance is causing the substantial increase in cash flow.
3) Quick ratio: The Company's growth in respective sales performance is causing the substantial increase in cash flow.

4) Interest earned ratio: A lower interest rate due to the relatively less amount of loan at current period compared to the previous
5) Pre-tax income to paid-in capital: The number of pre-tax income to paid-in capital increases is due to the sales growth of high-
margin product and the depreciation of Taiwan New Dollars relative to US dollars.

6) Cash flow ratio: The ratio increases because of the growth in respective sales performance and the scheduled payments

7) Cash reinvestment ratio: Due to the growth in respective sales performance and the rising cash flow, the ratio of cash

Reference: Every consolidated financial statement has been
certified by a CPA.

Calculation formulas are as follows:
1. Financial Structure
(1) Debt Ratio = Total Liabilities / Total Assets

(2) Long Term Fund to Fixed Asset Ratio = (Total Equities+Non-
Current Liability) / Net Fixed Asset

2. Liquidity
(1) Current Ratio = Current Assets / Current Liabilities

(2) Quick Ratio = (Current Assets - Inventories - Prepaid Expenses)
/ Current Liabilities

(3) Times Interest Earned = Net Income before Income Tax and
Interest Expense / Current Interest Expense

3. Operating Performance

(1) Account Receivable (including Account Receivable and
Operating Notes Receivables) Turnover Rate = Net Sales /
Average Account Receivable (including Account Receivable and
Operating Notes Receivables) Balance

(2) Average Collection Days = 365 / Account Receivable Turnover
Rate

(3) Inventory Turnover Rate = Cost of Sales / Average Inventory

(4) Account Payable (including Account Payable and Operating
Notes Payables) Turnover Rate = Cost of Sales / Average Account
Payable (including Account Payable and Operating Notes
Payables) Balance

(5) Average Days of Sales = 365 / Inventory Turnover Rate

(6) Fixed Asset Turnover Rate = Net Sales / Net Average Fixed
Asset

(7) Total Asset Turnover Rate = Net Sales / Average Total Asset

This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation,

the Chinese text shall prevail.

4. Profitability

(1) Return on Asset [Income After Tax + Interest Expense X ( 1 -
Tax Rate)] / Average Total Asset

(2) Return on Equity = Income After Tax / Average Total Equity
(3) Net Margin Rate = Income After Tax / Net Sales

(4) Earnings Per Share = (Income Attributed to Parent Company
Owner - Preferred Share Dividend) / Weighted Average Number
of Outstanding Shares

5. Cash Flow

(1) Cash Flow Ratio = Operating Activity Net Cash Flow / Current
Liability

(2) Net Cash Flow Adequacy Ratio = Operating Net Cash Flow for

the Last Five Years / (Capital Expenditure + Increased Inventory +
Cash Dividend) for the Last Five Years

(3) Cash Re-Investment Ratio = (Operating Activity Net Cash Flow
- Cash Dividend) / (Gross Fixed Asset + Long Term Investment +
Other Non-Current Asset + Working Capital)

6. Leverage

(1) Operating Leverage = (Net Sales - Variable Operating Cost &
Expense) / Operating Income

(2) Financial Leverage = Operating Income / (Operating Income
- Interest Expense)

Annual Report 2016
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6.3 Supervisors’ or Audit
Committee’s Report in the
Most Recent Year

2016 Audit Committee’s Review Report

The Board of Directors has prepared the Company’s 2016 Business Report, Financial
Statements, and proposal for allocation of profits. The CPA firm of Ernst & Young was retained
to audit Eurocharm Holdings Corporation Limited’s Financial Statements and has issued an
audit report relating to the Financial Statements. The Business Report, Financial Statements
and profit allocation proposal have been reviewed and determined to be correct and accurate
by the Audit Committee members of Eurocharm Holdings Corporation Limited. According
to Article 14-4 of the Securities and Exchange Act and Article 219 of the Company Law, we
hereby submit this report.

To Eurocharm Holdings Co., Ltd. 2017 Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting

Eurocharm Holdings Co., Ltd.

Chairman of the Audit Committee: Wei-Ming Lin

March 16, 2017

Annual Report 2016 This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation,
the Chinese text shall prevail.
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Please refer to Appendix 1.

6.5 CPA-Audited Financial Statement in the Most Recent Year

None

85

the Chinese text shall prevail.

None
[ 0]
b
Unit: NT$ thousands: %
Year Difference
2016 2015
Item Amount %
Current Assets 2,496,319 2,444,054 52,265 2.14
Investment 134,671 113,755 20,916 18.39
Fixed Assets 651,041 670,600 (19,559) (2.91)
Intangible Assets 5,437 6,978 (1,541) (22.08)
Other Assets 1,114 1,114 - -
Total Assets 3,288,582 3,236,501 52,081 1.61
Current Liabilities 660,217 680,635 (20,418) (3.00)
Long-term Liabilities 46,327 58,845 (12,518) (21.27)
Total Liabilities 706,544 739,480 (32,936) (4.45)
Capital stock 658,192 649,322 8,870 1.37
Capital surplus 829,726 813,038 16,688 2.05
Retained Earnings 1,128,919 982,046 146,873 14.96
Other Adjustments (34,799) 52,615 (87,414) (166.14)
Eﬁsto‘:kho'ders ' 2,582,038 2,497,021 85,017 3.40
This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation, Annual Report 2016
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Year Difference
2016 2015

Iltem Amount %

Analysis of changes in financial ratios (increase/decrease by over 10%; total amounts of increases/decreases are equivalent to 1%
of the total asset value of the respective year NT$32,886 thousand):

1) Investment: The result of the investment is benefited by the rise in sales from EXEDY.
2) Retained Earnings: The Company continued to profit in 2016 and the dividend payments did not exceed profits in 2016.

3) Other Adjustments: The appreciation of the Taiwanese dollar against the US dollarin 2016 resulted in a decrease in the cumulative
conversion

The above differences are expected in regular Company operations and the impact on the Company’s financial situation is minimal.

Reference: Every consolidated financial statement has been certified by a CPA

7.2 Analysis of Financial Performance

Unit: NTS thousands: %

Year Difference
2016 2015
Item Amount %

Operating Income 4,164,779 4,008,187 156,592 3.91
Operating Cost 3,416,393 3,215,602 200,791 6.24
Operating Gross Margin 748,384 792,614 (44,230) (5.58)
Operating Expenses 235,364 263,748 (28,384) (10.76)
Operating Net Income 513,020 528,866 (15,846) (3.00)
Non- ing |

on-operating Income 128,687 122,583 6,104 498
and Expenses
Income Before Tax 641,707 651,449 (9,742) (1.50)
Income After Tax 471,793 484,120 (12,327) (2.55)

Analysis of changes in financial ratios (increase/decrease by over 10%; total amounts of increases/decreases are equivalent to 1%
of the total asset value of the respective year NT$32,886 thousand):

1) Operating Expenses: The difference is the result of employees' retirements according to the government's new pension
regulations in 2015.

The above differences are expected in regular Company operations and the impact on the Company’s financial situation is
minimal.

Reference: Every consolidated financial statement has been certified by a CPA

Annual Report 2016 This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation,
the Chinese text shall prevail.
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. Effect of Change on the Company’s future business: The - Future Response Actions: According to the business growth
Company establishes sales goals based on the global economy, shown in the above tables, the Company will require additional
industry condition, customer’s assembling plan and other working capital to finance the business going forward. Therefore,
relevant metrics. the teams will continue to budget the cash flow and study every

expenditure.

7.3 Analysis of Cash Flow

7.3.1 Cash Flow Analysis for the Current Year
Unit: NTS thousands: %

Year Variance
2016 2015
Item $ %
Operating Activity 663,602 509,032 154,570 30.37
Investment Activity (279,479) (3,449) (276,030) 8003.19
Financing Activity (316,266) (226,215) (90,051) 39.81

Analysis of financial ratio change:
Operating Activity: The Increase is due to the sales growth and on-time payments.

Investment Activity: The increase is due to the rise in debt instrument investments for which no active market
exists.

Financing Activity: The increase is due to the growth in cash dividends compared to 2015.

Reference: Every consolidated financial statement has been certified by a CPA

7.3.2 Remedy for Cash Deficit and Liquidity Analysis: None

7.3.3 Cash Flow Analysis for the Coming Year
Unit: NT$ thousands:

Estimated Estimated Net | Estimated Cash C:ss:gj:::w Leverage(;fga.st;\ Surplus
Cash and Cash Cash Flow from | Outflow from from Cash Surplus end
Equivalents, Operating Investment e (Deficit)
Beginning of Year Activities Activities Investment Financing

Activities (M+Q2)3)+4)
@

Plans Plans

(1) ()] (3)

1,415,450 643,491 (264,797) (277,359) 1,516,785 - -

Analysis of financial ratio change:
1) Operating Activities: It is estimated to see an increase as the Company expects growth in operating profits.
2) Investment Activities: It is estimated to see a decrease as the Company expects to purchase fixed assets.

3) Financing Activities: It is estimated to see a decrease as the Company expects to pay cash dividends

Remedy for expected shortfall of cash and liquidity analysis: N/A

This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation, Annual Report 2016
the Chinese text shall prevail.
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7.4 Major Capital Expenditure Items

7.4.1 Major Capital Expenditure Items and Source of Capita: None

7.4.2 Expected Benefits: None

7.5 Investment Policy in Last

Year, Main Causes for Profits or
Losses, ImiJrovement Plans and the

Investment P

A. Relnvestment Plan

The Company’s reinvestment plan is primarily
targeted at the relevant automotive and industrial
manufacturing industries. The execution is
carried out by based on the Subsidiary Operation
Policy, Investment Cycle from the internal control
and Asset’s Acquisition and Disposal Program.
The other implementation and measures will
be discussed by the board of directors or at the
shareholders meeting.

C. Reinvestment Plan for the Upcoming Year

In order to meet the existing customers’ needs,
Eurocharm plans to coordinate with them and
expands its operating facilities towards other
ASEAN countries. Besides the initial plan of
acquiring factory plant in the south of Vietnam,
the Company will continue to purchase new
technology and machinery for productivity
growth. Depending on the direction of business
development, the Company will expand its size
of the operation and raise its scale of capital after
careful evaluations.

Annual Report 2016

ans for the Coming Year

B. Primary Reason for Reinvestment Loss and Gain

12/31/2016; Unit: NTS thousands

. 2016 Reinvestment .
Reinvestment . Description
Loss and Gain

Eurocharm Innovation 553 875 Operations in Good
(B.V.L) ! Condition

Eurocharm Innovation 20,787 Operatlon:s .|n Good
Condition

VPICT 522,370 Operatlon_s.m Good
Condition

APEX 2964 Operatlon's .|n Good
Condition

OPTIMAL 243 Operat|on.s .|n Good
Condition

VHS 11,900 Operatlon:s.ln Good
Condition

EXEDY 30,992 Operatlon§ .ln Good
Condition

Cash dividends
VPIC 10,927 measured by the cost
of financial assets

This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation,

the Chinese text shall prevail.
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7.6 Analysis of Risk Management

7.6.1 Risk Management and Structure

The Company’s risk management’s organizational
structure is divided into the execution department
(managers and audit committee) and the management
department (board of directors).

Risk Management policies:

I. Any associated risk events should be reported to
the immediate supervisors, audit committee, general
managers, chairman and the board of directors.

Il. The risk assessment is carried out by the general
manager and used as a record of tracking business
performance.

lll. The Company has established policies and
implementations towards Internal Control, Internal
Audit Implementation and Self-Assessed Internal
Control Procedures. Department managers are each
responsible for closely monitoring the associated risks.
The audit committee is to perform risk assessment
and report directly to the direct supervisors if any
irregularities were discovered.

7.6.2 Effects of Changes in Interest

Rates, Foreign Exchange Rates and

Inflation on Corporate Finance, and
Future Response Measures

I. Interest rate: The changes in interest rate has no
significant effect on the business operation as the
Company’s 2016 annual interest income and interest
expense have minimal influences on the pre-tax net
profit.

Il. Foreign exchange rate: The changes in foreign
exchange rate has no significant effect on the business
operation as the Company’s 2016 foreign exchange
gain is accounted for 0.04% of the consolidated
revenue. In addition, the Company monitors the
exchange rate movement closely to minimize the risk
of an exchange rate.

lll. Inflation: In recent years, the high demand for
raw materials from emerging countries has inflated
the global markets significantly. In order to reduce
the inflation risk and lower the production cost, the
Company will be actively seeking methods to improve
processing and adjusting product pricing accordingly.

This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation,

the Chinese text shall prevail.

7.6.3 Policies, Main Causes of
Gain or Loss and Future Response
Measures with Respect to High-
risk, High-leveraged Investments,
Lending or Endorsement
Guarantees, and Derivatives
Transactions

I. The Company did not engage in any high-risk or
high-leveraged investments. The transactions and
procedures related to lending and endorsement are
based on the Company’s “Procedures for Lending”
and “Procedures for Endorsement Guarantee.”
Furthermore, derivative transactions follow the
“Procedures for Acquisition and Disposal of Assets.”

Il. Approved by the board of directors, the
Company guaranteed endorsement NT$32,279,000
NT$90,000,000 and NT$187,218000 respectively to its
subsidiaries Apex Precision Industrial Ltd., Eurocharm
Innovation Co., Ltd. and Vietnam Precision industrial
No.1 Co., Ltd. As at the end of 2016, the amount spent
was $0.

7.6.4 Future Research &
Development Projects and
Corresponding Budget

The Company’s future R&D plan utilizes new auxiliary
materials to enhance casting product quality, reduce
defected product, enhance casting product material
conversion rate and develop high power wind power
products.

The Company’s R&D expenses account for 0.96% and
1.03% of sales amount for 2015 and 2016 respectively.
Future R&D expenditure is mainly for collaboration
with customers in developing new products and
production process, enhancement of molds and
increasing operational productivity. As such, related
R&D expenditure will be invested in accordance with
actual needs.

Annual Report 2016
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7.6.5 Effects of and Response to Changes
in Policies and Regulations Relating to
Corporate Finance and Sales

The Company is registered in the Cayman Islands while its
subsidiaries are registered in Taiwan, Vietnam and the British
Virgin Islands. The Company does not operate in the Cayman
Islands. Fluctuation in Vietnam'’s internal exchange rate is
stable. The political relationship between Taiwan and Vietnam
is stable. The Company and its important subsidiaries conduct
all their businesses in accordance with regulations of their
respective territories. The Company’s major products including
automotive and motorcycle parts and medical equipment
are not considered part of the restricted industry. Therefore,
in the latest year and as of the date when annual report was
published, critical policy changes or regulation changes in
Taiwan, Vietnam, the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin
Islands are not expected to pose significant influences on the
Company’s finances and sales.

However, due to the Company has customers and suppliers
across the world, in the event of changes in respective
government’s policy, economy, tax or interest rate, or in the
event of incidents involving politics, diplomacy or society, a
business of the Company’s client or the Company might be
affected accordingly.

7.6.6 Effects of and Response to Changes
in Technology and the Industry Relating
to Corporate Finance and Sales

The Company’s clients include leading vendors across the
world. Given the close collaboration relationship between
both parties now, the Company is, therefore, able to access
to information of the latest technology through such
relationship. Losing such important clients is equal to losing
critical sources to understand changes in technology as well
as shifts in the industry. Failure to master market trend and the
trend for future product development will keep the Company
from launching products needed by the market and operation
may suffer from a significant and adverse impact. As such, the
Company continuously pursues the advancement of metal
processing and tooling. On the other hand, the Company also
follows clients’ steps closely in order to obtain, at any time,
the latest technology information in the market, understand
future changes in the industry and master market trend as well
as product future development direction.

At current phase, the Company focuses its development
on automotive, motorcycle and recreational vehicle parts
and medical assistive equipment. With the popularity of
environmental protection consciousness, the security need
for lightweight vehicle products is in demand. This allows
the Company’s business to enjoy continued growth. There
is no replacing technology or product in a short time going
forward. Therefore, changes in technology and industry are
not expected to pose significant influence on the Company’s
finance business.

Annual Report 2016
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7.6.7 The Impact of Changes in Corporate
Image on Corporate Risk Management,
and the Company’s Response Measures

The Company enjoys a good business reputation in the
international market, and this has established the Company’s
credibility and position in this industry. After being listed, the
emphasis on corporate image is larger than ever. The Company
will continue to expand its international sales territory and
maximize its profit through high productivity. There is no
change of company image which leads to crisis management
in the latest year and as of the date when annual report was
published.

7.6.8 Expected Benefits from, Risks
Relating to and Response to Merger and
Acquisition Plans

None, no such plans.

7.6.9 Expected Benefits from, Risks
Relating to and Response to Factory
Expansion Plans

All of the Company’s plant expansions have gone through
complete, careful and assessment processes by responsible
units, and have already taken comprehensive considerations
of investment benefits and potential risks.

7.6.10 Risks Relating to and Response to
Excessive Concentration of Purchasing
Sources and Excessive Customer
Concentration

The main raw materials the Company uses are iron pipes,
iron, iron rolls, aluminum, steel, coating, etc. The purchasing
decisions are made based on the factors including quality,
price, delivery and flexibility. These suppliers are replaceable,
and none of the raw materials is exclusive. Therefore, thereis no
risk or concern over an excessive concentration of purchasing.

Concerning the issue with excessive customer concentration,
percentages of the Company'’s sales to its largest and second
largest clients does not exceed 10%. However, the operating
income of the two customers takes up to 59.43% of the
consolidated operating income. As the Company’s largest
and second largest customers hold 90% of the market share
in Vietnam and the Company being their main supplier, the
situation of excessive customer concentration is expected.
As a result, the Company has been actively developing new
customers to diversify and lower the impact of excessive
customer concentration.

This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation,

the Chinese text shall prevail.
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7.6.11 Effects of, Risks Relating to and
Response to Large Share Transfers or
Changes in Shareholdings by Directors,
Supervisors, or Shareholders with
Shareholdings of over 10%

No aforementioned cases in the latest year and as of the date
when annual report was published.

7.6.12 Effects of, Risks Relating to and
Response to the Changes in Management
Rights

In the latest year and as of the date when annual report was
published, the management rights has not changed. The
Company has also established a professional management
system. Therefore, the changes in management rights should
have minimal effect on the Company.

7.6.13 The Company and the Company’s
director, supervisor, general manager,
actual responsible person and major
shareholders holding more than 10%

of shares shall prescribed litigation or
non-litigation incidents. With respect
to subsidiary’s finalized or pending
major litigation, non-litigation and
administrative dispute incidents, the
disputed facts, target amount, litigation
commencement date, major parties
involved and processing status as of
annual report publish date shall all be
disclosed if results for aforementioned
incidents may have significant influence
over shareholder’s equity or securities
price.

None.

7.6.14 Other Major Risks

None.

7.7 Other Important Matters

None.

This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation,
the Chinese text shall prevail.
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VIII. Special Disclosure

8.1 Summary of Affiliated Companies
8.1.1 Enterprise Organization Chart

Please refer to page 9 of the annual report.

8.1.2 Subsidiary Basic Information

q Date of A . . . .
Name of Enterprise Establishment Address Paid-in Capital | Major Business or Production Items
5th Floor, No. 708-
Eurocharm Holding 2, ZhongZheng Road, NT$643,492 . .
Co., Ltd. L XinZhuang District, New thousand Investment in share holding
Taipei City, Taiwan 242
P.O. BOX957, Offshore
Eurocharm Innovation Incorporations Centre, Road US$17,000 ¢ c
Co., Ltd.(B.V.1.) 08/2001 Town, Tortola, British Virgin thousand Investmentinishare holding
Islands
n No. 15, Lane 315, Xinshu Rd, Trading business and manufacturing
Eurochacr(;n Il_r:(r;ovatlon 04/1974 Xinzhuang District, New T;gifésnodo automotive and motorcycle parts and
v Taipei City, 242 medical equipment
" - Khai Quang Industrial Zone, Trading business and manufacturing
In(;/lﬁmglmNF;rfcclgo[ltd 12/2001 Vinh Yen City, Vinh Phuc Uts&ig’r?go automotive and motorcycle parts and
: v Province, Viethnam medical equipment
Hsien Yuan Khai Quang Industrial Zone, USD $1,250 Trading business and manufacturing
Technology Vietnam 06/2010 Vinh Yen City, Vinh Phuc thousand automotive and motorcycle parts and
Co., Ltd. Province, Vietnam medical equipment
" Khai Quang Industrial Zone, Trading business and manufacturing
Exedy Vll_(:(tjnam e 02/2006 Vinh Yen City, Vinh Phuc lﬁ}%j:a’?‘go automotive and motorcycle parts and
: Province, Vietnam medical equipment
Apex Precision 04/2015 Offshore Chambers, P.O.Box | USD $2,000 aﬁ?gg‘gtglésg;?sma&g'@; cqg%;:ér;nn%
Industrial Ltd. 217, Apia, Samoa thousand medical equipment
Trading business and manufacturing
; 7 Offshore Chambers, P.O. Box USD $900 5
Optimal Victory Ltd. 09/2016 217, Apia, Samoa thousand automotive and motorcycle parts and
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8.1.3 Private Placement Securities
in the Most Recent Years

www.eurocharm.com.tw

None
8.1.4 The Shares in the Company Held or Disposed of by Subsidiaries in
the Most Recent Years
Name of Enterprise Title Name(s)
Director Steven Yu, Antonio Yu, Michael Yu, Steven
Chang, Bryan Peng, Wei-Min Lin, Gen-Yu Fong
Eurocharm Holdings Co., Ltd.

General Manager Steven Yu

Eurocharm Innovation Co., Ltd.(B.V.l.) Director Steven Yu, Antonio Yu, Michael Yu

Director Steven Yu, Antonio Yu, Michael Yu

Eurocharm Innovation Co., Ltd. Supervisior Tian-Hong Yu

General Manager Steven Yu

Director Steven Yu, Antonio Yu, Michael Yu

Vietnam Precision Industrial No.1 Co., Ltd. Supervisior Hung-YiKao
General Manager Andy Wu
. . . Zheng-Long Wang, Zheng-Zhou Wang,
Hsien Yuan Technology Vietnam Co.,Ltd. Director Steven Yu, Michael Yu, Wei-Quan Chen
) . Mitsuhiko Takenaka, Shogo Okamura, Hideki
Exedy Vietnam Co., Ltd. Director Kanai, Y. Osanai. Steven Yu
Apex Precision Industrial Ltd. Director Steven Yu
Optimal Victory Ltd. Director Steven Yu
This is the English translation. In case of discrepancies between the Chinese Text and the English translation, Annual Report 2016

the Chinese text shall prevail.



94 Annual Report | info@eurocharm.com.tw | www.eurocharm.com.tw

8.1.5 Operating Summary for Respective Subsidiaries

Unit: In addition to Earnings Per Share being NTS, the other is NT/VND$ thousands

Paid in Total Operatin Operatin Current Earnings Per
Name of Enterprise . Total Asset L Net Value P 9 P 9 Income 9
Capital Liability Income Benefit Share (NTD)
(Loss)
E h
uroF arm 655,492 3,288,582 706,544 2,582,038 4,164,779 513,020 471,793 7.25
Holdings Co., Ltd.
Eurocharm
Innovation Co., Ltd. 615,652 2,606,913 - 2,606,913 - (83) 553,875 | See Note 1
(B.V.L)
Eurochénh 58,500 304,149 181,476 122,673 455,902 15,759 17,037 291
Innovation Co., Ltd.
Vietnam Precision
Industrial No.1 Co., 388,970 2,816,857 448,919 2,367,938 3,938,143 532,022 522,370 See Note 1
Ltd.
Hsien Yuan
Technology Vietnam 23,179,239 | 65,784,259 | 13,571,802 52,212,457 | 127,485,294 | 22,866,563 17,978,193 See Note 1
Co.,Ltd.
Exedy Vietnam Co.,
Ltd 66,083,544 | 378,127,684 | 71,321,483 | 306,806,201 | 634,475,272 | 108,307,180 | 102,867,021 See Note 1
Apex Precision
. 62,460 103,552 4,997 98,554 79,377 14,741 12,763 2.04
Industrial Ltd.
Optimal Victory Ltd. 28,238 28,981 - 28,981 - - 743 0.26

Note 1: Earnings per share cannot be calculated because this is not an incorporated company.
Note 2: Numbers for Hsien Yuan Technology Vietnam Co., Ltd. and Exedy Vietnam Co., Ltd. are in Vietnamese Dollars.

8.1.6 Affiliated Enterprise Consolidated
Financial Statements
Please refer to appendix 1.

8.1.7 Affiliation Report

None

8.2 In the latest year and as of the date
when this annual report was published,
any cases of securities private placement

None

8.3 In the latest year and as of the date

when this annual report was published,
cases of subsidiary holding or disposing
the Company’s shares

8.4 Other necessary supplementary
explanation

None

8.5 Explanation of major differences
from ROC shareholder equity protection
regulations

None

8.6 Information Disclosure as prescribed
in Clause 2, Paragraph 2, Article 36 of
Securities of Exchange Law

None

8.7 Differences from Republic of China

None
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English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements and Footnotes Originally Issued in Chinese
EUROCHARM HOLDINGS CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015 and for the years then ended

(Amounts Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars unless Otherwise Specified)
. "~ —— T L

1. HISTORY AND ORGANIZATION

Eurocharm Holdings Co., Ltd. (“the Company”) was incorporated in 18 July 2011. The
Company’s subsidiaries are engaged in manufacturing and selling motorcycle and auto
equipment parts, medical equipment, machine parts, and providing assembling services.

The Company’s common shares were publicly listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange (TWSE) in
23 September 2014 and started trading in 25 September 2014. The Company’s registered office is
at PO Box472, 2nd Floor, Harbour Place, 103 South Church Street, George Town KY1-1106,
Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands. The main business locations are Khai Quang Industrial Zone,
Vinh Yen City, Vinh Phuc Province, VietNam and No.15, Ln. 315 and Xinshu Rd., Xinzhuang
Dist., New Taipei City, Taiwan (R.0.C.)

2. DATE AND PROCEDURES OF AUTHORIZATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR
ISSUE

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and subsidiaries (“the Group™) for the
years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on

March 16, 2017.

3. NEWLY ISSUED OR REVISED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

(1) Standards or interpretations issued, revised or amended, which are recognized by Financial
Supervisory Commission (“FSC”), but not yet adopted by the Group at the date of issuance
of the Group’s financial statements are listed below.

(a) [AS 36 “Impairment of Assets” (Amendment)

This amendments relate to the amendment issued in May 2011 and requires entities to
disclose the recoverable amount of an asset (including goodwill) or a cash-generating
unit when an impairment loss has been recognized or reversed during the period. The
amendment also requires detailed disclosure of how the fair value less costs of
disposal has been measured when an impairment loss has been recognized or reversed,
including valuation techniques used, level of fair value hierarchy of assets and key
assumptions used in measurement. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2014,
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EUROCHARM HOLDINGS CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (CONTINUED)
(Amounts Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars unless Otherwise Specified)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

IFRIC 21 “Levies”

This interpretation provides guidance on when to recognize a liability for a levy
imposed by a government (both for levies that are accounted for in accordance with
IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and those where the
timing and amount of the levy is certain). The interpretation is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014.

IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” (Amendment)

Under the amendments, there would be no need to discontinue hedge accounting if a
hedging derivative was notated, provided certain criteria are met. The interpretation is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014.

IAS 19 “Employee Benefits” (Defined benefit plans: employee contributions)

The amendments. apply to contributions from employees or third parties to defined
benefit plans. The objective of the amendments is to provide a policy choice for a
simplified accounting for contributions that are independent of the number of years of
employee service, for example, employee contributions that are calculated according
to a fixed percentage of salary. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after July 1, 2014,

Improvements to International Financial Reporting Standards (2010-2012 cycle):
IFRS 2 "“Share-based Payment”

The annual improvements amend the definitions of 'vesting condition' and 'market
condition' and add definitions for 'performance condition' and 'service condition'
(which were previously part of the definition of 'vesting condition'). The amendments
prospectively apply to share-based payment transactions for which the grant date is on
or after July 1, 2014.

IFRS 3 “Business Combinations”

The amendments include: (1) deleting the reference to "other applicable IFRSs" in the
classification requirements; (2) deleting the reference to "IAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets or other IFRSs as appropriate", other
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (CONTINUED)
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contingent consideration that is not within the scope of IFRS 9 shall be measured at
fair value at each reporting date and changes in fair value shall be recognized in profit
or loss; (3) amending the classification requirements of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
to clarify that contingent consideration that is a financial asset or financial liability can
only be measured at fair value, with changes in fair value being presented in profit or
loss depending on the requirements of IFRS 9. The amendments apply prospectively
to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after July 1, 2014.

IFRS 8 “Operating Segments”

The amendments require an entity to disclose the judgements made by management in
applying the aggregation criteria to operating segments. The amendments also clarify
that an entity shall only provide reconciliations of the total of the reporiable segments'
assets to the entity's assets if the segment assets are reported regularly. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014.

IFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”

The amendments to the Basis for Conclusions of IFRS 13 clarify that when deleting
paragraph B5.4.12 of JFRS 9 Financial Instruments and paragraph AG79 of IAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement as consequential amendments
from IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement, the JASB did not intend to change the
measurement requirements for short-term receivables and payables.

1AS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment”

The amendments clarify that when an item of property, plant and equipment is
revalued, the accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is adjusted to equal
the difference between the gross carrying amount and the carrying amount of the asset.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014.

IAS 24 “Related Party Disclosures”
The amendments clarify that an entity providing key management personnel services
to the reporting entity or to the parent of the reporting entity is a related party of the

reporting entity. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after July 1, 2014.
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IAS 38 “Intangible Assets™

The amendments clarify that when an intangible asset is revalued, the accumulated
amortization at the date of revaluation is adjusted to equal the difference between the
gross carrying amount and the carrying amount of the asset. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014.

(D) Improvements to International Financial Reporting Standards (2011-2013 cycle):
IFRS 1 "First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards”

The amendments clarify that an entity, in its first IFRS financial statements, has the
choice between applying an existing and currently effective IFRS or applying early a
new or revised IFRS that is not yet mandatorily effective, provided that the new or
revised IFRS permits carly application.

IFRS 3 “Business Combinations”

This amendments clarify that paragraph 2(a) of IFRS 3 Business Combinations
excludes the formation of all types of joint arrangements as defined in IFRS 11 Joint
Arrangements from the scope of IFRS 3; and the scope exception only applies to the
financial statements of the joint venture or the joint operation itself. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014.

IFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”

The amendments clarify that paragraph 52 of IFRS 13 includes a scope exception for
measuring the fair value of a group of financial assets and financial liabilities on a net
basis. The objective of the amendments is to clarify that this portfolio exception
applies to all contracts within the scope of IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement or IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, regardless of whether they meet
the definitions of financial assets or financial liabilities as defined in IAS 32 Financial
Instrumenis: Presentation. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after July 1, 2014.
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IAS 40 “Investment Property”

The amendments clarify the interrelationship of IFRS 3 and IAS 40 when classifying
property as mvestment property or owner-occupied property; in determining whether a
specific transaction meets the definition of both a business combination as defined in
IFRS 3 Business Combinations and investment property as defined in IAS 40
Investment Property, separate application of both standards independently of each
other is required. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after July 1, 2014.

(g) IFRS 14 “Regulatory Deferral Accounts”

IFRS 14 permits first-time adopters to continue to recognize amounts related to rate
regulation i accordance with their previous GAAP requirements when they adopt
IFRS. However, to enhance comparability with entities that already apply IFRS and do
not recognize such amounts, the Standard requires that the effect of rate regulation
must be presented separately from other items. IFRS 14 is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2016.

(h) IFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements” (Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint
Operations)

The amendments provide new guidance on how to account for the acquisition of an
interest in a joint operation that constitutes a business. The amendments require the
entity to apply all of the principles on business combinations accounting in IFRS 3
“Business Combinations”, and other IFRS (that do not conflict with the guidance in
IFRS 11), to the extent of its share in a joint operation acquired. The amendments also
requires certain disclosure. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2016.

(1) IAS 16"Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38 “Intangible Assets” —
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization

The amendments clarify that the use of revenue-based methods to calculate
depreciation of an asset is not appropriate because revenue generated by an activity
that includes the use of an asset generally reflects factors other than the consumption
of the economic benefits embodied in the asset, such as selling activities and change in
sales volumes or prices. The amendments also clarify that revenue is generally
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Q)

(k)

M

presumed to be an inappropriate basis for measuring the consumption of the economic
benefits embodied in an intangible asset. This presumption, however, can be rebutted
in certain limited circumstances. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2016.

IAS 16" Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 41 “Agriculture” — Agriculture:
Bearer Plants

The IASB decided that bearer plants should be accounted for in the same way as
property, plant and equipment in IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment, because their
operation is similar to that of manufacturing. Consequently, the amendments include
them within the scope of IAS 16, and the produce growing on bearer plants will
remain within the scope of IAS 41. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2016.

IAS 27"“Separate Financial Statements” — Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements

The IASB restored the option to use the equity method under IAS 28 for an entity to
account for investments in subsidiaries and associates in the entity’s separate financial
statements. In 2003, the equity method was removed from the options. This
amendments removes the only difference between the separate financial statements
prepared in accordance with IFRS and those prepared in accordance with the local
regulations in certain jurisdictions. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2016.

Improvements to International Financial Reporting Standards (2012-2014 cycle):
IFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”

The amendments clarify that a change of disposal method of assets (or disposal groups)
from disposal through sale or through distribution to owners (or vice versa) should not
be considered to be a new plan of disposal, rather it is a continuation of the original
plan. The amendments also requires identical accounting treatment for an asset (or
disposal group) that ceases to be classified as held for sale or as held for distribution to
owners. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2016.
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IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”

The amendments clarify that a servicing contract that includes a fee can constitute
continuing involvement in a financial asset and therefore the disclosures for any
continuing involvement in a transferred asset that is derecognized in its entirety under
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures is required. The amendments also clarify
that whether the IFRS 7 disclosure related to the offsetting of financial assets and
financial liabilities are required to be included in the condensed interim financial
report would depend on the requirements under IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2016.

IAS 19 “Employee Benefits”

The amendments clarify the requirement under IAS 19.83, that market depth of high
quality corporate bonds is assessed based on the currency in which the obligation is
denominated, rather than the country where the obligation is located. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or afier January 1, 2016.

IAS 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”

The amendments clarify what is meant by “elsewhere in the interim financial report”
under IAS 34; the amendments states that the required interim disclosures must either
be in the interim financial statements or incorporated by cross-reference between the
interim financial statements and wherever they are included within the greater interim
financial report. The other information within the interim financial report must be
available to users on the same terms as the interim financial statements and at the same
time. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2016.

(m) Disclosure Initiative — Amendment to IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements”:

The amendments contain (1) clarifying that an entity must not reduce the
understandability of its financial statements by obscuring material information with
immaterial information or by aggregating material items that have different natures or
functions. The amendments reemphasize that, when a standard requires a specific
disclosure, the information must be assessed to determine whether it is material and,
consequently, whether presentation or disclosure of that information is warranted, (2)
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clarifying that specific line items in the statement(s) of profit or loss and OCI and the
statement of financial position may be disaggregated, and how an entity shall present
additional subtotals, (3) clarifying that entities have flexibility as to the order in which
they present the notes to financial statements, but also emphasize that
understandability and comparability should be considered by an entity when deciding
on that order, (4) removing the examples of the income taxes accounting policy and
the foreign currency accounting policy, as these were considered unhelpful in
illustrating what significant accounting policies could be, and (5) clarifying that the
share of OCI of associates and joint ventures accounted for using the equity method
must be presented in aggregate as a single line item, classified between those items
that will or will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016.

(n) IFRS 10“Consolidated Financial Statements”, IFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities”, and IAS 28“Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures” —
Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception

The amendments contain (1) clarifying that the exemption from presenting
consolidated financial statements applies to a parent entity that is a subsidiary of an
investment entity when the investment entity measures all of its subsidiary at fair
value, (2) clarifying that only a subsidiary that is not an investment entity itself and
provides support services to the investment entity is consolidated when all other
subsidiaries of an investment entity are measured at fair value, and (3) allowing the
investor, when applying the equity method, to retain the fair value measurement
applied by the investment entity associate or joint venture to its interests in
subsidiaries. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2016.

The abovementioned standards and interpretations issued by IASB and recognized by FSC are

applicable for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017. The Group assesses that
there will be no significant impact on the Group’s financial statements then.
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(2) Standards or interpretations issued, revised or amended, by IASB but not yet recognized by
FSC at the date of issuance of the Group’s financial statements are listed below,

(a) IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

The core principle of the new Standard is for companies to recognize revenue to depict
the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in amounts that reflect the
consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services. An entity recognises revenue in accordance with that core principle by
applying the following steps:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

The new Standard includes a cohesive set of disclosure requirements that would result
in an entity providing users of financial statements with comprehensive information
about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising
from the entity's contracts with customers. The Standard is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2018.

(b) IFRS 9"Financial Instruments”

The TASB has issued the final version of IFRS 9, which combines classification and
measurement, the expected credit Joss impairment model and hedge accounting. The
standard will replace TAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
and all previous versions of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (which include standards
issued on classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities and hedge
accounting).

Classification and measurement: Financial assets are measured at amortized cost, fair
value through profit or loss, or fair value through other comprehensive income, based
on both the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the financial
asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics. Financial liabilities are measured at
amortized cost or fair value through profit or loss. Furthermore there is requirement
that ‘own credit risk’ adjustments are not recognized in profit or loss.
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Impairment: Expected credit loss model is used to evaluate impairment. Entities are

required to recognize either 12-month or lifetime expected credit losses, depending on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

Hedge accounting: Hedge accounting is more closely aligned with risk management
activities and hedge effectiveness is measured based on the hedge ratio.

The new standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018.

(c) IFRS 10“Consolidated Financial Statements” and IAS 28 “Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures” — Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Ventures

The amendments address the inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10
Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures, in dealing with the loss of control of a subsidiary that is contributed to an
associate or a joint venture. IAS 28 restricts gains and losses arising from
contributions of non-monetary assets to an associate or a joint venture to the extent of
the interest attributable to the other equity holders in the associate or joint ventures.
IFRS 10 requires full profit or loss recognition on the loss of control of the subsidiary.
IAS 28 was amended so that the gain or loss resulting from the sale or contribution of
assets that constitute a business as defined in IFRS 3 between an investor and its
associate or joint venture is recognized in full.

IFRS 10 was also amended so that the gains or loss resulting from the sale or
contribution of a subsidiary that does not constitute a business as defined in IFRS 3
between an investor and its associate or joint venture is recognized only to the extent
of the unrelated investors’ interests in the associate or joint venture.

The effective date of the amendments has been postponed indefinitely, but early
adoption is allowed.

(d) IFRS 16" Leases”

The new standard requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance
sheet model (subject to certain exemptions). Lessor accounting still uses the dual
classification approach: operating lease and finance lease. The Standard is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019,
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(e) IAS 12"Income Taxes” — Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses

The amendments clarify how to account for deferred tax assets for unrealized losses.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2017.

(f) Disclosure Initiative — Amendment to IAS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”:

The amendments relate to changes in liabilities arising from financing activities and to
require a reconciliation of the carrying amount of liabilities at the beginning and end
of the period. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
January 1, 2017.

(g) IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” — Clarifications to IFRS 15

The amendments clarify how to identify a Iﬁerformance obligation in a contract,
determine whether an entity is a principal or an agent, and determine whether the
revenue from granting a licence should be recognized at a point in time or over time.
The amendment are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018.

(h) IFRS 2 “Shared-Based Payment” — Amendments to IFRS 2

The amendments contains (1) clarifying that vesting conditions (service and
non-market performance conditions), upon which satisfaction of a cash-settled
share-based payment transaction is conditional, are not taken into account when
estimating the fair value of the cash-settled share-based payment at the measurement
date. Instead, these are taken into account by adjusting the number of awards included
in the measurement of the liability arising from the transaction, (2) clarifying if tax
laws or regulations require the employer to withhold a certain amount in order to meet
the employee’s tax obligation associated with the share-based payment, such
transacitons will be classified in their entirety as equity-settled share-based payment
transacitons if they would have been so classified in the absence of the net share
settlement feature, and (3) clarifying that if the terms and conditions of a cash-settled
share-based payment transaction are modified, with the result that it becomes an
equity-settled share-based payment transaction, the transaction is accounted for as an
equity-settled transaction from the date of the modification. The equity-settled
share-based payment transaction is measured by reference to the fair value of the
equity instruments granted at the modification date and is recognised in equity, on the
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modification date, to the extent to which goods or services have been received. The
liability for the cash-settled share-based payment transaction as at the modification
date is derecognised on that date. Any difference between the carrying amount of the
liability derecognised and the amount recognised in equity on the modification date is
recognised immediately in profit or loss. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or afier January 1, 2018.

() Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts —
Amendments to IFRS 4

The amendments help to resolve issues arising from the different effective dates for
IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (January 1, 2018) and the new insurance contracts
standard about to be issued by the [ASB (still to be decided, but not before January 1,
2020). The amendments allow entities issuing insurance contracts within the scope of
IFRS 4 to mitigate certain effects of applying IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” before
the TASB’s new insurance contracts standard becomes effective. The amendments
introduce two approaches: an overlay approach and a temporary exemption. The
overlay approach allows an entity applying IFRS 9 to remove from profit or loss the
effects of some of the accounting mismatches that may occur from applying IFRS 9
before the new insurance contracts standard is applied. The temporary exemption
enables eligible entities to defer the implementation date of IFRS 9 until 2021 (these
entities that defer the application of IFRS 9 will continue to apply TAS 39).

(j) Transfers of Investment Property — Amendments fo IAS 40

The amendments relate to the transfers of investment property. The amendments clarify
that a change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of
investment property and there is evidence of the change in use, the entity should transfer
property into and out of investment property accordingly. A mere change in
management’s intentions for the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change
in use. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or afier January 1,
2018.
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(k) Improvements to International Financial Reporting Standards (2014-2016 cycle):

@

IFRS 1 "First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards”

The amendments revise and amend transition requirements relating to certain standards
and delete short-term exemptions under Appendix E for first-time adopter. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018.

IFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities”

The amendments clarify that the disclosure requirements in IFRS 12, other than those in
paragraphs B10-B16, apply to an entity’s interests that are classified as held for sale or
discontinued operations. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2017.

IAS 28 “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures”

The amendments clarify that when an investment in an associate or a joint venture is
held by, or is held indirectly through, an entity that is a venture capital organisation, or a
mutual fund, unit trust and other qualifying entities including investment-linked
insurance funds, the entity may elect to measure that investment at fair value through
profit or loss in accordance with IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” on an
investment-by-investment basis. Besides, if an entity that is not itself an investment
entity has an interest in an associate or joint venture that is an investment entity, the
entity may, when applying the equity method, elect to retain the fair value measurement
applied by that investment entity associate or joint venture to the investment entity
associate's or joint venture's interests in subsidiaries on an investment-by-investment
basis. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2018.

IFRIC 22 “Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration”

The interpretation clarifies that when applying paragraphs 21 and 22 of IAS 21 “The
Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates”, in determining the spot exchange rate
to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (oi' part of it) on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to advance
consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which an entity initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
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consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, then the entity must
determine a date of the transactions for each payment or receipt of advance
consideration. The interpretation is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2018.

The abovementioned standards and interpretations issued by IASB have not yet endorsed by
FSC at the date when the Group’s financial statements were authorized for issue, the local
effective dates are to be determined by FSC. As the Group is still currently determining the
potential impact of the standards and interpretations listed under (a) and (g), it is not practicable
to estimate their impact on the Group at this point in time. All other standards and
interpretations have no material impact on the Group.

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(1)Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 have
been prepared in conformity with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial
Reports by Securities Issuers and International Financial Reporting Standards, International
Accounting Standards, and Interpretations developed by the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee or the former Standing Interpretations Committee as endorsed by
the FSC.

(2)Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
financial instruments that have been measured at fair value. The consolidated financial
statements are presented in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars (“NT$”) unless otherwise
specified.

(3)Basis of consolidation

Preparation principle of consolidated financial statements

Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:
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(a)power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee)
(b)exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
(c)the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

(a)the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee
(b)rights arising from other contractual arrangements
(c)the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the acquisition date, being the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the
parent company, using uniform accounting policies. All intra-group balances, income and
expenses, unrealized gains and losses and dividends resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a change of control, is accounted
for as an equity transaction.

Total comprehensive income of the subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the parent and
to the NClIs even if this results in a deficit balance of the NClIs.

If the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it:

(a)derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary;

(b)derecognizes the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest;

(c)recognizes the fair value of the consideration received;

(d)recognizes the fair value of any investment retained;

(e)recognizes any surplus or deficit in profit or loss; and

(Dreclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognized in other
comprehensive income to profit or loss.
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The consolidated entities are listed as follows:

Percentage of ownership (%)

As of December 31,
Investor Subsidiary Main businesses 2016 2015
The Company Eurocharm Innovation Investment activities 100.00% 100.00%
Co., Ltd. (B.V.I)
Eurocharm Innovation Eurocharm Innovation Manufacturing and sales 100.00% 100.00%
Co., Ltd. (B.V.I) Co., Ltd. of motor parts and
medical equipment
Eurocharm Innovation Vietnam Precision Manufacturing and sales 100.00% 100.00%
Co., Ltd. (B.V.I.) Industrial No.1 Co,, of motor parts and
Ltd. medical equipment
Eurocharm Innovation Apex Precision Trading activities 100.00% 100.00%
Co., Ltd. (B.V.L.) Industrial Ltd.
Eurocharm Innovation Optimal Victory Ltd.  Trading activities 100.00% 100.00%
Co., Ltd. (B.V.I.) (Note)

Note: Eurocharm Innovation Co., Ltd. (B.V.1.) has set up Optimal Victory Ltd. during 2016.
(4)Foreign currency transactions

The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in NT$, which is also the
Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group entities at their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency
closing rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date. Non-monetary items measured at f{air
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value is determined. Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions.
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All exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating
monetary items are taken to profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for the

following:

(a)Exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings for an acquisition of a
qualifying asset to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs are
included in the borrowing costs that are eligible for capitalization.

(b)Foreign currency items within the scope of IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are accounted for based on the accounting policy for financial instruments.

(c)Exchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms part of a reporting entity’s net
investment in a foreign operation is recognized initially in other comprehensive income
and reclasstfied from equity to profit or loss on disposal of the net investment.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognized in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognized in other comprehensive income.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognized in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss.

(5)Translation of financial statements in foreign currency

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into NT$ at the closing rate of
exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their income and expenses are translated at an
average rate for the period. The exchange differences arising on the translation are recognized
in other comprehensive income. On the disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation, recognized in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the separate component of equity, is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss when the gain or loss on disposal is recognized.

The following partial disposals are accounted for as disposals:

(a)when the partial disposal involves the loss of control of a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation; and

(b)when the retained interest after the partial disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement or a
partial disposal of an interest in an associate that includes a foreign operation is a financial
asset that includes a foreign operation.
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On the partial disposal of a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation that does not result in
a loss of control, the proportionate share of the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences recognized in other comprehensive income is re-attributed to the non-controlling
interests in that foreign operation. In partial disposal of an associate or joint arrangement
that includes a foreign operation that does not result in a loss of significant influence or joint
control, only the proportionate share of the cumulative amount of the exchange differences
recognized in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss.

Any goodwill and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and expressed in its functional currency.

(6)Current and non-current distinction
An asset is classified as current when:

(a)The Group expects to realize the asset, or intends to sell or consume it, in its normal
operating cycle

(b)The Group holds the asset primarily for the purpose of trading

(c)The Group expects to realize the asset within twelve months after the reporting period

(d)The asset is cash or cash equivalent unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or
used to settle a liability for at least twelve months afier the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is classified as current when:

(a)The Group expects to settle the liability in its normal operating cycle

(b)The Group holds the liability primarily for the purpose of trading

(c)The liability is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period

(d)The Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option
of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect

its classification.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
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(7)Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term, highly
liquid time deposits (including ones that have maturity within 3 months) or investments that
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

(8)Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities within the scope of TIAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement are recognized initially at fair value plus or minus, in the case
of investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.
(a)Financial assets
The Group accounts for regular way purchase or sales of financial assets on the trade date.
Financial assets of the Group are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, held-to-maturity investments, available-for-sale financial assets and loans and
receivables. The Group determines the classification of its financial assets at initial

recognition.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading
and financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss.
A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

i. it is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the
near term,

ii. on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are
managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

iii. it is a derivative (except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a
designated and effective hedging instrument).
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If a contract contains one or more embedded derivatives, the entire hybrid (combined)
contract may be designated as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss; or a
financial asset may be designated as at fair value through profit or loss when doing so
results in more relevant information, because either:

i. it eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency; or

ii. a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or
investment strategy, and information about the group is provided internally on that basis
to the key management personnel.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognized in profit or loss. Dividends or interests on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are recognized in profit or loss (including those received during
the period of initial investment). If financial assets do not have quoted prices in an active
market and their fair value cannot be reliably measured, then they are classified as financial
assets measured at cost on balance sheet and carried at cost net of accumulated impairment
losses, if any, as at the reporting date.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as
available-for-sale or those not classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, held-to-maturity financial assets, or loans and receivables.

Foreign exchange gains and losses and interest calculated using the effective interest
method relating to monetary available-for-sale financial assets, or dividends on an
available-for-sale equity instrument, are recognized in profit or loss. Subsequent
measurement of available-for-sale financial assets at fair value is recognized in equity until
the investment is derecognized, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognized in
profit or loss.

If equity instrument investments do not have quoted prices in an active market and their
fair value cannot be reliably measured, then they are classified as financial assets measured
at cost on balance sheet and carried at cost net of accumulated impairment losses, if any, as
at the reporting date.
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Held-to-maturity financial assets

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities
are classified as held-to-maturity when the Group has the positive intention and ability to
hold it to maturity, other than those that are designated as available-for-sale, classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, or meet the definition of loans and
receivables.

After initial measurement held-to-maturity financial assets are measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method, less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fee or transaction costs. The
effective interest method amortization is recognized in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market other than those that the Group upon
initial recognition designates as available for sale, classified as at fair value through profit
or loss, or those for which the holder may not recover substantially all of its initial
investment,

Loans and receivables are separately presented on the balance sheet as receivables or debt
instrument investments for which no active market exists. After initial measurement, such
financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
rate method, less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fee or transaction costs. The effective interest
method amortization is recognized in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a
financial asset other than the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is impaired.
A financial asset is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more loss events that has occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset. The carrying amount of the financial asset impaired, other than
receivables impaired which are reduced through the use of an allowance account, is
reduced directly and the amount of the loss is recognized in profit or loss.
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A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale equity
instrument below its cost is considered a loss event.

Other loss events include:

1. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor; or

ii. a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or

ifi. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

iv. the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

For held-to-maturity financial assets and loans and receivables measured at amortized cost,
the Group first assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment exists
individually for financial asset that are individually significant, or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exits for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. If there is objective evidence
that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the assets carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows. The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
financial assets original effective interest rate. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate,
Interest income is accrued based on the reduced carrying amount of the asset, using the rate
of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss.

Receivables together with the associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery. If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment
was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account. If a future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is

credited to profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, where there is evidence of
impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the acquisition cost
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and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognized in profit or loss — is removed from other comprehensive income and recognized
in profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed through profit or
loss; increases in their fair value after impairment are recognized directly in other
comprehensive income.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available-for-sale, the amount recorded for
impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the amortized cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognized in profit or loss. Future interest income continues to be accrued based on the
reduced carrying amount of the asset, using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The interest income is
recognized in profit or loss. If, in a subsequent year, the fajr value of a debt instrument
increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognized in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognized when:

i The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired

ii. The Group has transferred the asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset have been transferred

iii. The Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying
amount and the consideration received or receivable including any cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognized in other comprehensive income, is recognized in profit or loss.

(b)Financial liabilities and equity

Classification between liabilities or equity

The Group classifies the instrument issued as a financial liability or an equity instrument
in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement and the definitions of a
financial liability, and an equity instrument.
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Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. The transaction costs of an equity transaction
are accounted for as a deduction from equity (net of any related income tax benefit) to the
extent they are incremental costs directly attributable to the equity transaction that
otherwise would have been avoided.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or
financial liabilities measured at amortized cost upon initial recognition.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

i. it is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in
the near term;

il on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that
are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

iii. it is a derivative (except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a
designated and effective hedging instrument).

If a contract contains one or more embedded derivatives, the entire hybrid (combined)
contract may be designated as a financial liability at fair value through profit or loss; or a
financial liability may be designated as at fair value through profit or loss when doing so
results in more relevant information, because either:

i. it eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency; or

il. a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information about the group is provided
internally on that basis to the key management personnel.
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Gains or losses on the subsequent measurement of liabilities at fair value through profit or
losses including interest paid are recognized in profit or loss.

If the financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss do not have quoted prices in an
active market and their fair value cannot be reliably measured, then they are classified as
financial liabilities measured at cost on balance sheet and carried at cost as at the reporting
date.

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost include interest bearing loans and
borrowings that are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate method after
initial recognition. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are

derecognized as well as through the effective interest rate method amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or

cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified
(whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor), such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts and the consideration
paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognized in

profit or loss.

(c)Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
balance sheet if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the

recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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(9)Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

(a)In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
(b)In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants in
their economic best interest.
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observabie
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

(10)Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value item by item.

Costs incurred in bringing each inventory to its present Jocation and condition are accounted
for as follows:

Raw materials — Purchase cost on a first in, first out basis
Finished goods and work in progress — Cost of direct materials and labor and a proportion of

manufacturing overheads based on normal operating
capacity but excluding borrowing costs.
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Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(11)Investments accounted for using the equity method

The Group’s investment in its associate is accounted for using the equity method other than
those that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale. An associate is an entity over
which the Group has significant influence. A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the joint venture.

Under the equity method, the investment in the associate or an investment in a joint venture
is carried in the balance sheet at cost and adjusted thereafter for the post-acquisition change
in the Group’s share of net assets of the associate or joint venture. After the interest in the
associate or joint venture is reduced to zero, additional losses are provided for, and a liability
is recognized, only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture. Unrealized gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and the associate or joint venture are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s related interest in the associate or joint venture.

When changes in the net assets of an associate or a joint venture occur and not those that are
recognized in profit or loss or other comprehensive income and do not affects the Group’s
percentage of ownership interests in the associate or joint venture, the Group recognizes
such changes in equity based on its percentage of ownership interests. The resulting capital
surplus recognized will be reclassified to profit or loss at the time of disposing the associate
or joint venture on a prorata basis.

When the associate or joint venture issues new stock, and the Group’s interest in an
associate or a joint venture is reduced or increased as the Group fails to acquire shares newly
issued in the associate or joint venture proportionately to its original ownership interest, the
increase or decrease in the interest in the associate or joint venture is recognized in
Additional Paid in Capital and Investment accounted for using the equity method. When the
interest in the associate or joint venture is reduced, the cumulative amounts previously
recognized in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss or other
appropriate items. The aforementioned capital surplus recognized is reclassified to profit or
loss on a pro rata basis when the Group disposes the associate or joint venture.
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The financial statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting
period as the Group. Where necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting
policies in line with those of the Group.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the
investment in the associate or an investment in a joint venture is impaired in accordance
with IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. If this is the case the
Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable
amount of the associate or joint venture and its carrying value and recognizes the amount in
the ‘share of profit or loss of an associate’ in the statement of comprehensive income in
accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of Assets. In determining the value in use of the
investment, the Group estimates:

(a)lts share of the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated
by the associate or joint venture, including the cash flows from the operations of the
associate and the proceeds on the ultimate disposal of the investment; or

(b)The present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to arise from dividends to
be received from the investment and from its ultimate disposal.

Because goodwill that forms part of the carrying amount of an investment in an associate or
an investment in a joint venture is not separately recognized, it is not tested for impairment
separately by applying the requirements for impairment testing goodwill in IAS 36
Impairment of Assets.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint venture, the Group measures
and recognizes any retaining investment at its fair value. Any difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence and the
fair value of the retaining investment and proceeds from disposal is recognized in profit or
loss. Furthermore, if an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture
or an investment in a joint venture becomes an investment in an associate, the entity
continues to apply the equity method and does not remeasure the retained interest.

(12)Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of dismantling and
removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located and borrowing costs for
construction in progress if the recognition criteria are met. Each part of an item of property,
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plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is
depreciated separately. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced in intervals, the Group recognized such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciation, respectively. The carrying amount of those parts that are
replaced is derecognized in accordance with the derecognition provisions of IAS 16
Property, plant and equipment. When a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized
in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria
are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as
incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated economic lives of the
following assets:

Buildings 5~50 years
Machinery and equipment 3~15 years
Mold equipment 1~6 years
Transportation equipment 3~15 years
Office equipment 3~7 years
Other equipment 3~8 years

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is
derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is recognized in profit or
loss.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

(13)Leases

Group as a lessee

Finance leases which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental
to ownership of the leased item, are capitalized at the commencement of the lease at the fair
value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease
payments. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the
lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance charges are recognized in profit or loss.
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A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no
reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the
asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease
term.

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Group as a lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognized over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are
recognized as revenue in the period in which they are earned,

{14)Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost
of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is its fair value as at the date of
acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated
intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and
expenditure is reflected in profit or loss for the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life is reviewed at least at the end of each financial year. Changes in the expected
useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in
the asset is accounted for by changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate,
and are treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment
annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of
indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be
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supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a
prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are

recognized in profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

Computer software

The cost of computer software is amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
life (1 to 6 years).

A summary of the policies applied to the Group’s intangible assets is as follows:

Computer software Patents
Useful lives Limited Limited
Amortization method used Amortized on a straight-line basis Amortized on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful life over the estimated useful life
Internally generated or acquired Acquired Acquired

(15)Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any indication that
an asset in the scope of IAS 36 Impairment of Assets may be impaired. If any such
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group
estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (“CGU”) fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and
is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired
and is written down to its recoverable amount.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether
there is any indication that previously recognized impairment Josses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or
cash-generating unit’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is
reversed only if there has been an increase in the estimated service potential of an asset
which in turn increases the recoverable amount. However, the reversal is limited so that the
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carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment
loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.

A cash generating unit, or groups of cash-generating units, to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually at the same time, irrespective of whether there is
any indication of impairment. If an impairment loss is to be recognized, it is first allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash generating unit (group of
units), then to the other assets of the unit (group of units) pro rata on the basis of the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit (group of units). Impairment losses relating to
goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods for any reason.

An impairment loss of continuing operations or a reversal of such impairment loss is
recognized in profit or loss.

(16)Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or conétructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probably that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. Where the Group expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the
liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time
is recognized as a finance cost.

(17)Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable. The following specific recognition criteria must
also be met before revenue is recognized:

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when all the following conditions have been
satisfied:
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(a) the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer;

(b) neither continuing managerial involvement nor effective control over the goods sold
have been retained;

(c) the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

(d) it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
entity; and

(e) the costs incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Interest income

For all financial assets measured at amortized cost (including loans and receivables and
held-to-maturity financial assets) and available-for-sale financial assets, interest income is
recorded using the effective interest rate method and recognized in profit or loss.

Dividends
Revenue is recognized when the Group’s right to receive the payment is established.

(18) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or
sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective assets. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

(19)Post-employment benefits

All regular employees of the Company and its domestic subsidiaries are entitled to a pension
plan that is managed by an independently administered pension fund committee. Fund assets
are deposited under the committee’s name in the specific bank account and hence, not
associated with the Company and its domestic subsidiaries. Therefore fund assets are not
included in the Group’s consolidated financial statements. Pension benefits for employees of
the overseas subsidiaries and the branches are provided in accordance with the respective
local regulations.

For the defined contribution plan, the Company and its domestic subsidiaries will make a
monthly contribution of no less than 6% of the monthly wages of the employees subject to
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the plan. The Company recognizes expenses for the defined contribution plan in the period
in which the contribution becomes due. Overseas subsidiaries and branches make
contribution to the plan based on the requirements of local regulations.

Post-employment benefit plan that is classified as a defined benefit plan uses the Projected
Unit Credit Method to measure its obligations and costs based on actuarial assumptions.
Re-measurements, comprising of the effect of the actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the
asset ceiling (excluding net interest) and the return on plan assets, excluding net interest, are
recognized as other comprehensive income with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
earnings in the period in which they occur. Past service costs are recognized in profit or loss
on the earlier of:

(a) the date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
(b) the date that the Group recognizes restructuring-related costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or
asset, both as determined at the start of the annual reporting period, taking account of any
changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of
contribution and benefit payment.

(20)Share-based payment transactions

The cost of equity-settled transactions between the Group and its subsidiaries is recognized
based on the fair value of the equity instruments granted. The fair value of the equity
instruments is determined by using an appropriate pricing model.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognized, together with a corresponding increase
in other capital reserves in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at
each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has
expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The income statement expense or credit for a period represents the
movement in cumulative expense recognized as at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognized for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for equity-settled
transactions where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are
treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.
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Where the terms of an equity-settled transaction award are modified, the minimum expense
recognized is the expense as if the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the
award are met. An additional expense is recognized for any modification that increases the
total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it vested on the date of
cancellation, and any expense not yet recognized for the award is recognized immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of either the entity
or the employee are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new
awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the
computation of diluted earnings per share.

(21)Income taxes

Income tax expense (income) is the aggregate amount included in the determination of profit
or loss for the period in respect of current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, using the tax rates
and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. Current income tax relating to items recognized in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity is recognized in other comprehensive income or equity and not in profit or
loss.

The 10% surtax on undistributed retained earnings is recognized as income tax expense in
the subsequent year when the distribution proposal is approved by the Shareholders’
meeting.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

i. Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

ii. In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint arrangements, where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except:

1. Where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss

il. In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint arrangements, deferred tax assets are
recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The measurement of
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or
loss. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. Deferred tax assets are reassessed at each
reporting date and are recognized accordingly,
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Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists
to set off current income tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

5. SIGNIGICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements require management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting
period. However, uncertainty about these assumption and estimate could result in outcomes that
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future
periods.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

(a)Fair value of financial instruments

Where the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet
cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using valuation techniques
including the income approach (for example the discounted cash flow model) or market
approach. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of
the financial instruments. Please refer to Note 12 for more details.

(b)Pension benefits

The cost of post-employment benefit and the present value of the pension obligation under
defined benetit pension plans are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation
involves making various assumptions. These include the determination of the discount rate
and future salary increases. Please refer to Note 6 for more details.

(c)Estimated impairment of trade receivable

The Group considers the estimated future cash flows if there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss has been incurred. The loss of impairment is measured as the difference

48




English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements and Footnotes Originally Issued in Chinese
EUROCHARM HOLDINGS CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (CONTINUED)
(Amounts Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars unless Otherwise Specified)

between the assets carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
which dose not include credit loss that has not occurde. The present value of the estimated
future cash flow is discounted at the financial assets original effective interest rate. There
would be material loss of impairment, when future cash flows are less than the Group
expected.

(d)Share-based payment transactions

The Group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees by reference to the
fair value of the equity instruments at the date at which they are granted. Estimating fair value
for share-based payment transactions requires determining the most appropriate valuation
model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also
requires determining the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the
expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about
them. The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share-based payment
transactions are disclosed in Note 6.

(e)Income tax

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations and the
amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of international business
relationships and the long-term nature and complexity of existing contractual agreements,
differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to
such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already
recorded. The Group establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible
consequences of audits by the tax authorities of the respective counties in which it operates.
The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax
audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible
tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues
depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective Group company's domicile.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all carryforward of unused tax losses and unused tax
credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available or there are sufficient taxable temporary differences against which the
unused tax losses, unused tax credits or deductible temporary differences can be utilized.
The amount of deferred tax assets determined to be recognized is based upon the likely timing
and the level of future taxable profits and taxable temporary differences together with future
tax planning strategies.
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6.CONTENTS OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTS

{1)Cash and cash equivalents

As of December 31,
2016 2015
Cash on hand $607 $623
Checking and savings 458,580 343,936
Time deposits 382,391 492,326
Total $841,578 $836,885

(2)Debt instrument investments for which no active market exists

As of December 31,
2016 2015
Time deposits $573,872 $456,626

As of December 31,

2016 2015
Current $573,872 $456,626
Non-current - -
Total $573,872 $456,626

Debt instrument investments for which no active market exists were not pledged.

(3)Notes receivables

As of December 31,
2016 2015
Notes receivables arising from operating activities $206 $68
Less: allowance for doubtful debts (57) (57)
Total $149 $11

Notes receivables were not pledged.
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(4)Trade receivables and Trade receivables-related parties

As of December 31,
2016 2015

Trade receivables $545,425 $608,683
Less: allowance for doubtful debts (12,273) (12,721)

Subtotal 533,152 595,962
Trade receivables from related parties 20,518 24,054
Less: allowance for doubtful debts - -

Subtotal 20,518 24,054
Total $553,670 $620,016

Trade receivables are generally on 15-90 days terms. The movements schedule for the
provision of impairment against trade receivables and trade receivables-related parties is as

follow :
Individually  Collectively
impaired impaired Total

As of January 1, 2016 $- $12,721 $12,721

Charge/(reversal) for the current period - - -

Write off - - -

Effect of exchange rate changes - (448) (448)
As of December 31, 2016 $- $12,273 $12,273

As of January 1, 2015 $- $634 $634

Charge/(reversal) for the current period - 12,426 12,426

Write off - (648) (648)
Effect of exchange rate changes - 309 309

As of December 31, 2015 $- $12,721 $12,721

Aging analysis of trade receivables and trade receivables-related parties that are past due at the
end of the reporting period but not impaired is as follows:

Past due but not impaired
Neither past due Less than 30

nor impaired days 31~90 days 91~270 days Total
Dec. 31,2016 $498,068 $40,783 $14.,819 $- $553,670
Dec. 31, 2015 613,351 1,163 5,502 - 620,016
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(5)Inventories

(a)Details of inventories are as below :

As of December 31,
2016 2015
Raw materials and Supplies $143,816 $152,458
Work in progress 118,543 149,557
Finished goods 106,976 72,761
Merchandises 5,676 5,576
Total $375,011 $380,352

(b)The cost of inventories recognized in expenses amounted to NT$3,416,393 thousand and
NT$3,215,602 thousand for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

The following losses (gains) were included in cost of sale :

For the year ended December 31,

2016 2015
Loss from (Gains on recovery of) inventory
market decline $1,989 $(5,562)
Loss in inventory write-off obselencense 9,935 11,000
Loss (gain) from physical 27) (68)
Total $11,897 $5,370

The Group recognized gains on recovery of inventory market decline because some of the
inventories previously provided with market loss or obsolescence were disposed.

(c)Inventories were not pledged.

(6)Financial assets carried at cost

As of December 31,
2016 2015

Stock $11,007 $11,007
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As of December 31,
2016 2015
Current $- $-
Non-current 11,007 11,007
Total $11,007 $11,007

(a)The above investments in equity instruments of unlisted entities are measured at cost. The
fair value of these investments are not reliably measurable due to the fact that the variability
in the range of reasonable fair value measurements is significant for that investment and
that the probabilities of the various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably
assessed and used.

(b)Financial assets measured at cost were not pledged.
(7)Investments accounted for under the equity method
(a)Details of investments accounted for under the equity method are as below :

As of December 31,
2016 2015
Carrying  Percentage of Carrying  Percentage of

Investee companies amount Ownership amount Ownership
Investments in associates:
Exedy Vietnam Co., Ltd. $89.430 20.00% $70,370 20.00%
Hsieh Yuan Technology Vietnam Co., Ltd. 34,234 45.00% 32,378 45.00%
Total $123,664 $102,748

(b)Investments in associates

The Group’s investments in Exedy Vietnam Co., Ltd. and Hsieh Yuan Technology Vietnam
Co., Ltd. are not individually material. The aggregate carrying amounts of the Group’s
interests in Exedy Vietnam Co., Litd. and Hsieh Yuan Technology Vietnam Co., Ltd. were
NT$123,664 thousand and NT$102,748 thousand for the years ended December 31, 2016
and 2015, respectively. The aggregate financial information based on the Group’s share of
Exedy Vietnam Co., Ltd. and Hsieh Yuan Technology Vietnam Co., Ltd. is as follows:
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For the year ended December 31,

2016 2015
Profit or loss from continuing operations $42,892 $26,099
Other comprehensive income (post-tax) - -
Total comprehensive income $42,892 $26,099

The aforementioned associates had no contingent liabilities or capital commitments and
were not under pledge as of December 31, 2016 and 20135.

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the balances of investments accounted for under the
equity method were NT$123,664 thousand and NT$102,748 thousand, respectively. For the
years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, shares of investment income from these
associates and joint ventures amounted to NT$42,892 thousand and NT$26,099 thousand,
respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, share of other
comprehensive income from these associates and joint ventures amounted to NT$(1,404)
thousand and NT$269 thousand.

(c)Investments accounted for under the equity method were not pledged.

(d)For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, Vietnam Precision Industrial No.1 Co.,
Ltd. received distribution from Exedy Vietnam Co., Ltd. in amount of NT$9,120 thousand
and NT$5,368 thousand, respectively, which were accounted for as a reduction to the
carrying amount of the investment.

" (e)For the year ended December 31, 2016, Eurocharm Innovation Co., Ltd. (B.V.1.) received

distribution from Hsieh Yuan Technology Vietnam Co., Ltd. in amount of NT$8,640
thousand, which was accounted for as a reduction to the carrying amount of the investment.

(8)Property, plant and equipment

Construction in

Machinery progress and
and Transportation Office Other equipment awaiting
Land Buildings equipment equipment Equipment  Equipment exarination Total
Cost:
Asof Jan. 1, 2016 852,420 $183,599 $1,335,992 74,518 $10,984  $103,417 $8,825 $1,769,755
Additions - 1,375 49,087 4,860 2,189 14,361 85,419 157,291
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Disposals - - (11,500) (992) (1,186) (1,810) - (15,488)
Transfers - 2,703 39,681 1,060 “ - (43,444) -

Exchange differences - (6,313) (49,284) (2,639 (313) (4,194) (314) (63,057)
As of Dec. 31,2016 $52,420 $181,364 51,363,976 $76,807  $11,674 §$111,774 $50486  £1,848,501

AsofJan. 1, 2015 $52,420 $182.565 1,204,408 $72,763 $9,207 $91,613 $17,669  $1,630,645

Additions - 255 110,212 1,943 2,610 13,336 5,787 134,143

Disposals - (1,339 (8,244) (1,057 910) (2,576) - (14,126)
Transfers - - 14,843 - - - (14,843) -

Exchange differences - 2,118 14,773 869 77 1,044 212 19,093

As of Dec. 31, 2015 $52,420 $183,599 §1,335992 574,518 $10,984 $103,417 58,825  §1,769,755

Depreciation and impairment:

AsofJan. 1, 2016 3-  §88,247  $862,398 $58,928 $6,733 $82,849 5 51,099,155

Depreciation - 10,548 118,141 5,238 2,400 18,144 - 154,471

Disposals - - (10,742) (927) (1,186) (2,450 - (15,305)
Transfers - - - - - - - -

Exchange differences - (3,022) (32,443) (2,137 (212) (3,047) - (40,861)
As of Dec. 31, 2016 - $95773  $937.354 861,102 $7,735 $95.496 - $1,197,460

As of Jan. 1, 2015 $-  $77,993  $740,929 $53,327 $5,567 $57,570 3- $935,386

Depreciation - 10,462 116,949 5,801 1,991 26,550 - 161,753

Disposals - (1,339) (7,629) (984) (910) (2,576) - (13,438)
Transfers - - - - - - - -

Exchange differences - 1,131 12,149 784 85 1,305 - 15,454

As of Dec. 31, 2015 $-  $88,247  $862,398 $58,928 $6,733 $82,849 5 §1,099,155

Net carrying amount as of:

Dec. 31, 2016 $52,420  $85,591 $426,622 $15,705 $3,939 516,278 $50,486 $651,041

Dec. 31, 2015 $52,420  $95,352  $473,594 $15,590 $4,251 $20,568 $8,825 $670,600

Significant components of buildings primarily comprised the main buildings and the facilities,
which are depreciated based on their respective useful economic life of 50 years and 5 to 20

years.

Please refer to Note 8 for more details on property, plant and equipment under pledge.
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(9Intangible assets

Computer

software Patents Total
Cost:
AsofJan. 1, 2016 $23,465 $228 $23.693
Additions 1,994 - 1,994
Deduction-derecognition (620) - (620)
Exchange differences (753) - (753)
As of Dec. 31, 2016 $24,086 $228 $24,314
As of Jan. 1, 2015 $17,422 $64 $17,486
Additions 6,525 164 6,689
Deduction-derecognition (660) - (660)
Exchange differences 178 - 178
As of Dec. 31, 2015 $23,465 $228 $23,693
Amortization:
As of Jan. 1, 2016 $16,681 $34 $16,715
Amortization 3,148 194 3,342
Deduction-derecognition (620) - (620)
Exchange differences (560) - (560)
As of Dec. 31, 2016 $18,649 $228 $18,877
Asof Jan. 1, 2015 $13,552 $- $13,552
Amortization 3,568 34 3,602
Deduction-derecognition (660) - (660)
Exchange differences 221 - 221
As of Dec. 31, 2015 $16,681 $34 $16,715
Net carrying amount as of:
Dec. 31, 2016 $5,437 $- $5,437
Dec. 31, 2015 $6,784 $194 $6,978
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Amortization of intangible assets is as follows:

For the year ended December 31,

2016 2015
Operating costs $2 $9
Sales and marketing expenses $1 $3
General and administrative expenses $3,039 $3,318
Research and development expenses $300 $272

(10)Other non-current assets

As of December 31,

2016 2015

Refundable deposits $400 $400
(11)Short-term borrowings
As of December 31,

Interest Rates (%) 2016 2015
Secured bank loans 0.9502%~1.420% $40,000 $20,000
Unsecured bank loans 1.50%~2.00% 8,070 47,127
Total $48,070 $67,127

The Group’s unused short-term lines of credits amount to NT$470,011 thousand and
NT$296,316 thousand as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Please refer to Note 8 for more details on trade receivables, property, plant and equipment
pledged as security for short-term borrowings.

(12)Other payables
As of December 31,
2016 2015
Accrued expense $170,286 $164,442
Payables on equipment 417 3,365
Accrued interest 9 35
Total $170,712 $167,842

57




English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements and Footnotes Originally Issued in Chinese
EUROCHARM HOLDINGS CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED)
(Amounts Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars unless Otherwise Specified)

(13)Other non-current liabilities

As of December 31,

2016 2015
Net defined benefit liability $15,594 $31,326
Guarantee deposits received 7,805 4,600
Other non-current liabilities 5,000 5,000
Total $28,399 $40,926

(14)Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plan

Expenses under the defined contribution plan for the years ended December 31, 2016 and
2015 were NT$2,025 thousand and NT$2,073 thousand, respectively.

Defined benefits plan

The Group’s Taiwan domestic subsidiaries adopt a defined benefit plan in accordance with
the Labor Standards Act of the R.O.C. The pension benefits are disbursed based on the units
of service years and the average salaries in the last month of the service year. Two units per
year are awarded for the first 15 years of services while one unit per year is awarded after the
completion of the 15th year. The total units shall not exceed 45 units. Under the Labor
Standards Act, the Group’s Taiwan domestic subsidiaries contribute an amount equivalent to
2% of the employees’ total salaries and wages on a monthly basis to the pension fund
deposited at the Bank of Taiwan in the name of the administered pension fund committee.
Before the end of each year, the Group’s Taiwan domestic subsidiaries assess the balance in
the designated labor pension fund. If the amount is inadequate to pay pensions calculated for
workers retiring in the same year, the Group’s Taiwan domestic subsidiaries will make up the
difference in one appropriation before the end of March the following year.

The Ministry of Labor is in charge of establishing and implementing the fund utilization plan
in accordance with the Regulations for Revenues, Expenditures, Safeguard and Utilization of
the Labor Retirement Fund. The pension fund is invested in-house or under mandation, based
on a passive-aggressive investment strategy for long-term profitability. The Ministry of Labor
establishes checks and risk management mechanism based on the assessment of risk factors
including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk, in order to maintain adequate manager
flexibility to achieve targeted return without over-exposure of risk. With regard to utilization
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of the pension fund, the minimum earnings in the annual distributions on the final financial
statement shall not be less than the earnings attainable from the amounts accrued from
two-year time deposits with the interest rates offered by local banks. Treasury Funds can be
used to cover the deficits after the approval of the competent authority. As the Group’s
Taiwan domestic subsidiaries does not participate in the operation and management of the
pension fund, no disclosure on the fair value of the plan assets categorized in different classes
could be made in accordance with paragraph 142 of IAS 19. The Group’s Taiwan domestic
subsidiaries expects to contribute NT$918 thousand to its defined benefit plan during the 12
months beginning after December 31, 2016.

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the maturities of the Group’s Taiwan domestic
subsidiaries defined benefit plan were expected in 2046 and 2045.

Pension costs recognized in profit or loss for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015:

For the year ended December 31,

2016 2015
Current period service costs $669 $1,671
Net interest of defined benefit 406 1,024
Total $1,075 $2,695

Changes in the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets are as follows:

As of December 31,
Dec.31, 2016 Dec.31, 2015 Jan.1, 2015

Defined benefit obligation $37.882 $39,415 $55,694
Plan assets at fair value (21,370) (6,907) (10,202)

Subtotal 16,512 32,508 45,492
Net defined benefit expected to contribute during

the 12 months (918) (1,182) (1,237)
Other non-current liabilities — net defined benefit

liability on the consolidated balance sheets $15,594 $31,326 $44,255
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Reconciliation of liability (asset) of the defined benefit plan is as follows:

Present value Net defined
of defined benefit
benefit Fair value of liability
obligation plan assets (asset)
AsofJan, 1, 2015 $55,694 $(10,202) $45,492
Current period service costs 1,671 - 1,671
Net interest expense (revenue) 1,253 (229) 1,024
Past service cost, gains and losses arising from
settlements - - -
Subtotal 58,618 (10,431) 48,187
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability
(asset):
Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes
in demographic assumptions (106) - (106)
Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes
in financial assumptions 2,095 (40) 2,055
Experience adjustments (16,446) - (16,446)
Re-measurement on defined benefit assets - - -
Subtotal (14,457) (40) (14,497)
Payments from the plan (4,746) 4,746 -
Contributions by employer - (1,182) (1,182)
Effect of exchange rates - - -
As of Dec. 31, 2015 39,415 (6,907) 32,508
Current period service costs 669 - 669
Net interest expense (revenue) 492 (86) 406
Past service cost, gains and losses arising from
settlements - - -
Subtotal 40,576 (6,993) 33,583
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability
(asset):
Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes
in demographic assumptions 108 - 108
Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes
in financial assumptions 114 (5) 109
Experience adjustments (413) - (413)
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Re-measurement on defined benefit assets - - -

Subtotal (191) (5) (196)
Payments from the plan (2,503) 2,503 -
Contributions by employer - (16,875) (16,875)
Effect of exchange rates - - -
As of Dec. 31, 2016 $37,882 $(21,370) $16,512

The following significant actuarial assumptions are used to determine the present value of the
defined benefit obligation: ‘

As of December 31,
2016 2015
Discount rate 1.20% 1.25%
Expected rate of salary increases 1.00% 1.00%

Sensitivity analysis:

Effect on the defined benefit obligation

2016 2015
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
defined benefit defined benefit defined benefit defined benefit

obligation obligation obligation obligation
Discount rate increase by 0.5% $- $1,093 $- $1,095
Discount rate decrease by 0.5% 1,218 - 1,225 -
Future salary increase by 0.5% 1,215 - 1,222 -
Future salary decrease by 0.5% - 1,100 - 1,103

The sensitivity analyses above are based on a change in a significant assumption (for
example: change in discount rate or future salary), keeping all other assumptions constant.
The sensitivity analyses may not be representative of an actual change in the defined benefit
obligation as it is unlikely that changes in assumptions would occur in isolation of one
another.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity
analyses compared to the previous period.
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(15)Equities
(a)Common stock

The Company’s authorized capital was both NT$900,000 thousand as of December 31,
2016 and 2015, divided into 65,549 thousand shares and 64,932 thousand shares, each at a
par value of NT§1, respectively. Total issued stock capital were NT$655,492 thousand and
NT$649,322 thousand, respectively. Each share has one voting right and a right to receive
dividends.

For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company’s employees exercised
stock options for 617 thousand shares and 583 thousand shares in amount of NT$22,002
thousand and NT$22,462 thousand, respectively.

The Company issued employee stock option on September 15, 2012, During the 2016
employees exercised 75 thousand shares in amount of NT$2,700 thousand, which have not
been issued for new shares as of December 31, 2016 and were recorded under the caption
of capital collected in advance.

(b)Capital surplus
As of December 31,
2016 2015
Additional paid-in capital $827,743 $808,887
Employee stock option 1,263 3,640
Other 720 511
Total $829,726 $813,038

According to the Company Act, capital reserve shall not be used except for making good
the deficit of the company. When a company incurs no loss, it may distribute the capital
reserves related to the income derived from the issuance of new shares at a premium or
income from endowments received by the company. The distribution could be made in
cash or in the form of dividend shares to its shareholders in proportion to the number of
shares being held by each of them.
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(c)Retained earnings and dividend policies

(1)Retained earnings and dividend policies

According to the Company’s old Articles of Incorporation, unless otherwise required by
the Statute and the Applicable Public Company Rules, the Company may distribute
profits in accordance with a proposal for distribution of profits prepared by the
Directors and approved by the Members by an Ordinary Resolution at any general
meeting. The directors shall prepare such proposal as follows:

1. the proposal shall begin with the Company’s annual net income and offset its losses
in previous years that have not been previously offset, if any;

ii. set aside a special capital reserve or reversal, if one is required, in accordance with
the Applicable Public Company Rules or as requested by the authorities in charge;

iii. set aside no more than 2% of the balance as bonus to Directors and no less than 2%
of the balance as bonus to employees of the Company, which may be distributed
under an incentive programme approved pursuant to Article above. The Directors
shall specify the exact percentages or amounts to be distributed as bonuses to
Directors and employees in preparing the proposal for distribution of profits, and the
Members may amend such proposal prior to its approval. A Director who also serves
as an executive officer of the Company may receive a bonus in his capacity as a
Director and a bonus in his capacity as an employee; and

iv. Any balance left over may be distributed as dividends in accordance with the Statute
and the Applicable Public Company Rules and after taking into consideration profits
of the current year and capital structure of the Company, unless otherwise
specifically resolved by the board of directors and the general meetings, the amount
of profits distributed to Members shall not be lower than 20% of profits (after tax) of
the current year and the amount of cash dividends distributed thereupon shall not be
less than 50% of the profits proposed to be distributed of the current year; in the
event that the Dividends per share distributed in the current year is less than NT$1,
the Company may determine the Dividends to be distributed partially or entirely by
stock dividends or cash dividends.

The Company’s shareholders’ meeting held on June 23, 2016 approved the resolution
of amending the Articles of Incorporation. According to the revised Articles of
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Incorporations, unless otherwise required by the statute and the applicable public
company rules, the Company may distribute profits in accordance with a proposal for
distribution of profits prepared by the directors and approved by an Ordinary
Resolution at a general shareholders’ meeting. The directors shall prepare such
proposal as follows:

1. If there is any profit (after tax) of the current fiscal year after final account, it shall
first be used to offset its losses in previous years which have not been previously
offset (include the adjusted amount of undistributed earnings);

ii. Set aside a special capital reserve or reversal, if one is required, in accordance with
the applicable public company rules or as requested by the authorities in charge;

iii. If there is any profit, it shall be set aside no more than 2% of the balance as
compensation to directors and no less than 2% of the balance as compensation to
employees of the Company, which may be distributed under an incentive
programme approved pursuant to Article 11.1 above. The board of directors shall
adopt the exact percentages to be distributed as compensation to directors and the
compensation to employees, and such resolution shall be reported in the
shareholders meeting. A director who also serves as an executive officer of the
Company may receive a compensation in his capacity as a director and the
compensation in his capacity as an employee;

ilii. Any balance left over may be distributed as dividends in accordance with the statute
and the applicable public company rules and after taking into consideration profits
of the current year and capital structure of the Company, unless otherwise
specifically resolved by the board of directors and the shareholders’ meetings, the
amount of profits distributed to shareholders shall not be lower than 20% of profits
(after tax) of the current year and the amount of cash dividends distributed
thereupon shall not be less than 50% of the profits proposed to be distributed of the
current year; in the event that the dividends per share distributed in the current year
is less than NT$1, the Company may determine the dividends to be distributed
partially or entirely by stock dividends or cash dividends.

As the Company is in the growing stage, the dividend distribution may take the form
of a cash dividend and/or stock dividends and shall take into consideration the
Company’s capital expenditures, future expansion plans, and financial structure and
funds requirement for sustainable development needs etc.
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(2)Special reserve

Following the adoption of TIFRS, the FSC on 6 April 2012 issued Order No.
Financial-Supervisory-Securities-Corporate-1010012865, which sets out the following
provisions for compliance:

On a public company’s first-time adoption of the TIFRS, for any unrealized revaluation
gains and cumulative translation adjustments (gains) recorded to shareholders’ equity
that the company elects to transfer to retained earnings by application of the exemption
under IFRS 1, the company shall set aside an equal amount of special reserve.
Following a company’s adoption of the TIFRS for the preparation of its financial
reports, when distributing distributable earnings, it shall set aside to special reserve,
from the profit/loss of the current period and the undistributed earnings from the
previous period, an amount equal to “other net deductions from shareholders’ equity for
the current fiscal year, provided that if the company has already set aside special reserve
according to the requirements in the preceding point, it shall set aside supplemental
special reserve based on the difference between the amount already set aside and other
net deductions from shareholders’ equity. For any subsequent reversal of other net
deductions from shareholders’ equity, the amount reversed may be distributed.

(3)The appropriations of earnings for the Year 2016 and 2015 were approved through the
Board of Directors’ meeting and Shareholders’ meeting held on March 16, 2017 and
June 23, 2016, respectively. The details of the distributions are as follows:

Appropriation of earnings Dividend per share (in NT$)
2016 2015 2016 2015
Common stock- cash dividend $263,013 $325,116 $4 $5

Please refer to Note 6(18) for further details on employees’ compensation and
remuneration to directors and supervisors.

(16)Share-based payment plans
Certain employees of the Group are entitled to share-based payment as part of their

remunerations; services are provided by the employees in return for the equity instruments
granted. These plans are accounted for as equity-settled share-based payment transactions.

65




English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements and Footnotes Qriginally Issued in Chinese
EUROCHARM HOLDINGS CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (CONTINUED)
(Amounts Expressed in Thousands of New Tatwan Dollars unless Otherwise Specified)

Share-based pavment plan for employees of the parent entity

On September 15, 2012, the Company was authorized to issue employee share options with a
total number of 2,000,000 units. Each unit entitles an optionee to subscribe for one share of
the Company’s common shares. The exercise price of the option was NT$40. The optionee
may exercise the options in accordance with certain schedules as prescribed by the plan
starting 2 years from the grant date. Settlement upon the exercise of the options will be made
through the issuance of new shares by the Company.

The fair value of share options is estimated at the grant date using a binomial option
pricing-model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the share options
were granted.

The contractual term of each option granted is six years. There are no cash settlement
alternatives. The Group does not have a past practice of cash settlement for these employee
share options.

The relevant details of the aforementioned share-based payment plan are as follows:

Total number of Exercise price of
Date of grant | share options granted | share options (NT$)
2012.09.15 2,000,000 $36

(a)The following table lists the inputs to the model used for the plan granted during the year
ended December 31, 2012:

For the year ended

Dec. 31,2012
Dividend yield (%) 5%
Expected volatility (%) 39.63%
Risk-free interest rate (%) 0.8987%
Expected option life (Years) 6 years
Weighted average share price ($) $40
Option pricing model Black-scholes

The expected life of the share options is based on historical data and current expectations
and is not necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that may occur. The expected
volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility over a period similar to the
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life of the options is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the
actual outcome.

(b)The following table contains further details on the aforementioned share-based payment

plan:
For the year ended December 31,
2016 2015
Weighted Weighted
Number of average exercise Number of  average exercise
share options  price of share  share options  price of share
outstanding  options (NT8)  outstanding  options (NT$)
Outstanding at beginning of period 894,000 $38 1,523,000 $40
Granted - - - -
Exercised (692,000) 36 (583,000) 38.53
(Notel) (Note2)
Forfeited - - (46,000) 38
Expired - - - -
Outstanding at end of period 202,000 $36 894,000 $38
Exercisable at end of period 202,000 154,000

Note 1 : The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of these option was
$98.06.

Note 2 : The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of these option was
$69.14.

(¢)The information on the outstanding share options as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 is as

follows:
Range of Weighted average remaining
exercise price contractual life (Years)
As of Dec. 31, 2016 $36 1.75 years
share options outstanding at the
end of the period
As of Dec. 31, 2015 $38 2.75 years

share options outstanding at the
end of'the period
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(d)The expense recognized for employee services received during the years ended December
31,2016 and 2015, is shown in the following table:

For the year ended December 31,
2016 2015
£856 $1,558

Total expense arising from equity-settled

share-based payment transactions

(17)Operating revenue

For the year ended December 31,

2016 2015
Sale of goods $4,183,097 $4,015,625
Less: Sales returns, discounts and allowances (19,751) (8,791)
Subtotal 4,163,346 4,006,834
Revenue arising from rendering of services 1,433 1,353
Total $4,164,779 $4,008,187

(18)Summary statement of employee benefits, depreciation and amortization expenses by
function during the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015:

For the year ended December 31,
2016 2015
Operating | Operating | Total | Operating | Operating | Total
costs expenses | amount COosts €xpenses | amount

Employee benefits expense

Salaries $660,301| $89,860| $750,161| $582,046| $98,473| $680,519

Labor and health insurance 1,737 3,286 5,023 1,858 3,528 5,386

Pension 929 2,171 3,100 1,403 3,365 4,768

Other employee benefits expense 10,425 4,993 15,418 9,469 4,967 14,436
Depreciation 149,482 4,989 154,471 156,829 4,924 161,753
Amortization 2 3,340 3,342 9 3,593 3,602

The Company recorded the compensations to employees and to directors and supervisors for
the year ended December 31, 2016 in amount of NT$18,100 thousand and NT$10,300
thousand, respectively. Employees’ compensation and remuneration to directors and
supervisors for the year ended December 31, 2015 in amount of NT$18,100 thousand and
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NT$10,343 thousand, respectively. The aforementioned employees’ compensation and
remuneration to directors and supervisors for the year ended December 31, 2016 were
estimated based on post-tax net income of the period and recognized as salary expenses. The
number of stocks distributed as employees’ compensation, if any, shall be calculated based
on the closing price one day earlier than the date of shareholders’ meeting and considered
the impacts of ex-right/ex-dividend.

The Company’s shareholder’s meeting has determined the employees’ compensation and

directors’ renumeration, all in cash, to be NT$18,100 thousand and NT$10,343 thousand,

respectively, in a meeting held on June 23, 2016, No material differences existed between

the estimated amount and the actual distribution for the year ended December 31, 2015.
(19)Non-operating income and expenses

(a)Other income

For the year ended December 31,

2016 2015
Interest income ' $46,964 $38,175
Rental income 19,138 19,151
Dividends income ' 10,927 9,070
Others 14,719 11,975
Total $91,748 $78,371

(b)Other gains and losses

For the year ended December 31,

2016 2015
Gains (losses) on disposal of property, plant and $(828) $(670)
equipment
Foreign exchange gains (losses), net (1,677) 32,083
Others (2,624) (11,950)
Total $(5,129) $19,463
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(c)Finance costs

For the year ended December 31,
2016 2015
Interest on borrowings from bank $824 $1,350

(20)Operating leases
(a)Operating lease commitments — Group as lessee
The Group has entered into commercial leases on certain plant. These leases have average
lives between one and two years with no renewal option included in the contracts. There

are no restrictions placed upon the Group by entering into these leases.

Future minimum rentals payable under operating leases as of December 31, 2016 and
2015, are as follows:

As of December 31,

2016 2015
Not later than one year $2,291 $2,311
More than one year but less than five years 191 -
Total $2,482 $2,311

Operating lease expenses recognized are as follows:

For the year ended December 31,
2016 2015
Minimum lease payment $2,324 $2,923

(b)Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor
The Group has entered into commercial property leases with remaining terms of between

one and two years. All leases include a clause to enable upward revision of the rental
charge on an annual basis according to prevailing market conditions.
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Future minimum rentals receivable under operating leases as of December 31, 2016 and
2013, are as follows:

For the year ended December 31,
2016 2015
Not later than one year $6,797 $10,222

The Group recognized rent income in amount of NT$19,138 thousand and NT$19,151
thousand for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

(21)Components of other comprehensive income

For the year ended December 31, 2016

Income tax

relating to

Reclassification components of Other
Arising adjustments other comprehensive
during the  during the comprehensive income, net of
period period Subtotal income tax
Not to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
Remeasurements of defined benefit $196 $- $196 $- $196
plans
May be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
Exchange differences arising on (86,010) - (86,010) - (86,010)
translation of foreign operations
Share of other comprehensive (1,404) - (1,404) - (1,404)
income of associates and joint
ventures accounted for under the
equity method
Total of other comprehensive income ~ $(87,218) $- $(87,218) $- $(87,218)
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For the year ended December 31, 2015

Income tax
relating to
Reclassification components of Other
Arising adjustinents other comprehensive
duringthe  during the comprehensive  income, net of
period period Subtotal income tax
Not to be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods:
Remeasurements of defined benefit  $14,497 3- $14,497 $- $14,497
plans
May be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
Exchange differences arising on 32,981 - 32,981 - 32,981
translation of foreign operations
Share of other comprehensive 269 - 269 - 269
income of associates and joint
ventures accounted for under the
equity method
Total of other comprehensive income $47,747 $- $47.747 $- $47,747

(22)Income tax

(a)The major components of income tax expense (income) are as follows:

Income tax expense (income) recognized in profit or loss

Current income tax expense (income):
Current income tax charge
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of
prior periods
Deferred tax expense (income):
Deferred tax expense relating to origination and
reversal of temporary differences
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Deferred tax expense relating to origination and - -
reversal of tax loss and tax credit
Total income tax expense (income) $169,914 $167,329

(b)Income tax relating to components of other comprehensive income:

For the year ended December 31,
2016 2015

Deferred tax expense (income):
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans $- $-

(c)Reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by
applicable tax rates is as follows:

For the year ended December 31,

2016 2015

Accounting profit (loss) before tax from continuing

operations $641,707 $651,449
Tax payable at the enacted tax rates $170,338 $181,778
10 % surtax on undistributed retained earnings 3,669 1,904
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purposes (5,965) (18,600}
Tax effect of deferred tax assets/liabilities - -
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of prior 2,247

periods 1,872
Total income tax expense (income) recognized in $169,914 $167,329

profit or loss
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(d)Deferred tax assets (liabilities) relate to the following:

Temporary differences

Unrealized loss on inventory

valuation

Unrealized exchange loss (gain)

Bonus for unused vacation
Revaluatien surplus of land

Deferred tax income/{expense)

For the year ended December 31, 2016

Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) $(17,205)

Reflected in balance sheet as follows:

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax liabilities

Temporary differences
Unrealized loss on inventory

valuation

Unrealized exchange loss (gain)

Bonus for unused vacation
Revaluatien surplus of land

Deferred tax income/(expense)

Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) $(17,156)

Reflected in balance sheet as follows:

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax liabilities
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Deferred tax Deferred tax Deferred tax Deferred tax
income income (expense) income assets (liabilities) Ending
Beginning (expense)  recognized in other  (expense) acquired in balance as of
balance as of recognized in  comprehensive  charged directly business Exchange  Dec. 31,
Jan. I,2016 profit or loss income to equity combinations  differences 2016
$538 3- 3- 8- 8- $- 8538
(1,509) (9 - - - - (1,518)
176 - - - - - 176
(16,410) - - - - - (16,410)
5(9) g- 3- 3- 3-
$(17,214)
$714 $714
$(17,919) $(17,928)
For the year ended December 31, 2015
Deferred tax Deferred tax Deferred tax Deferred tax
income income (expense) income assets (liabilities) Ending
Beginning (expense)  recognized in other  (expense) acquired in balance as at
balance as at recognized in - comprehensive  charged directly business Exchange  Dec, 31,
Jan. 1, 2015  profit or loss income to equity combinations  differences 2015
$538 $- 3- $- 3- 3- $538
(1,460) (49) - - - - (1,509
176 - - - - - 176
(16,410) - - - - - (16,410)
$(49) 8- 3- 3- 8-
$(17,205)
$714 714
$(17,870) $(17,919)
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(e)Imputation credit information — for the subsidiary, Eurocharm Innovation Co., Ltd.

As of December 31,
2016 2015
Balances of imputation credit amounts $26,197 $15,798

The expected creditable ratio for 2016 and actual creditable ratio for 2015 were 29.77%
and 26.32%, respectively.

Earnings of Eurocharm Innovation Co., Ltd. generated in the years ended December 31,
1997 or before have been fully appropriated.

(f)The assessment of income tax returns

As of December 31, 2016, the assessment of the income tax returns of the Company’s
subsidiaries is as follows:

The assessment of income tax returns

Subsidiary- Eurocharm Innovation Co., Ltd. Assessed and approved up to 2014
Subsidiary- Vietnam Precision Industrial No.1 Co., Ltd. = Assessed and approved up to 2014

(23)Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net profit for the year attributable
to ordinary equity holders of the parent entity by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent entity after dilution by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary
shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into
ordinary shares.
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For the year ended December 31,

2016 2015
(a)Basic earnings per share
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company (in thousand NT$) $471,793 $484,120
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
for basic earnings per share (in thousands) 65,069 64,580
Basic earnings per share (NT$) $7.25 $7.50
(b)Diluted earnings per share
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company (in thousand NT$) $471,793 $484,120
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
for basic earnings per share (in thousands) 65,069 64,580
Effect of dilution:
Employee bonus—stock (in thousands) 263 180
Employee stock options (in thousands) 111 539
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
after dilution (in thousands) 65,443 65,299
Diluted earnings per share (NTS$) $7.21 $7.41

No other transactions that would significantly change the outstanding common shares or
potential common shares incurred during the period subsequent to reporting date and up to
the approval date of financial statements.

7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(1)Significant transactions with related partics

(a)Sales
For the year ended December 31,
2016 2015
Associates $190,252 $201,781
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The sales prices for related parties were not comparable. Terms of collection for related
parties shall be the same for those applied to general clients, Receivables shall be
finalized on a monthly basis and shall be collected within 15 to 90 days after accounts
have been finalized.

(b)Purchases
For the year ended December 31,
2016 2015
Associates $69,807 $58,014
Other related parties 7,522 7,626
Total $77.329 $65,640

The purchasing prices to related parties were not comparable. Terms of payment to
related parties shall be the same for those applied to general suppliers. Payables shall be
finalized on a monthly basis and shall be paid within 30 to 90 days after monthly closing.

(c)For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Group were charged by associates
for processing and therefore recognized processing expense in amount of NT$49,487
thousand and NT$44,223 thousand, respectively.

(d)For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Group charged associates for
processing and therefore recognized processing income in amount of NT$168 thousand
and NT$142 thousand, respectively, which were recorded under the caption of operating
revenues.

(e)For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Group dealt with sales services on
behalf of other related parties and therefore recognized commissions income in amount
of NT$1,265 thousand and NT$1,661 thousand, respectively, which were recorded under
the caption of operating revenues.

(H)For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Group were charged by associates
due to product defect and therefore recognized compensation in amount of NT$733
thousand and NT$0, respectively, which were recorded under the caption of other gains
and losses.

(g)For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Group charged associates for
processing product defect and therefore recognized compensation income in amount of
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NT$3,310 thousand and NT$0, respectively, which were recorded under the caption of
other incomes.

(h)Trade receivables from related parties

As of December 31,
2016 2015
Associates $20,518 $24,054
(i)Trade payables to related parties
As of December 31,
2016 2015
Associates $12,180 $10,992
Other related parties 666 10,979
Total $12,846 $21,971
(j)Lease transactions with related parties
Lessor Lease Duration Rental expense Payments
For the year ended Dec. 31, 2016
Other related party No.10, Ln. 315, Jan. 16, 2016~ $1,920 monthly paid
Xinshu Rd., Jan. 15, 2018 by cash
Xinzhuang Dist.
For the vear ended Dec. 31, 2015
Other related party ~ No.10, Ln. 315, Jan. 16, 2014~ $1,920 monthly paid
Xinshu Rd., Jan. 15,2016 by cash

Xinzhuang Dist.

The Group recognized above amounts under manufacturing expense and operating

expenses.
Lessee Lease Duration Rental income

For the vear ended Dec. 31, 2016

Associate Property and plant Jan. 1, 2015~ Dec. 31, 2016 $11,058

Associate Property and plant Jan. 1, 2015~ Dec. 31, 2017 8,080

Total $19,138
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For the vear ended Dec. 31. 2015

Associate Property and plant Jan. 1, 2015~ Dec. 31, 2016
Associate Property and plant Jan. 1, 2014~ Dec. 31, 2015
Total

(k)Salaries and rewards to key management of the Group

$11,078
3,073

$19,151

For the year ended December 31,

2016 2015
Short-term employee benefits $26,562 $25,342
Post-employment benefits 413 518
Share-based payment 14,470 11,500
Total $41,445 $37,360

8. PLEDGED ASSETS
The following table lists assets of the Group pledged as collaterals:

Carrying amount

As of December 31,

Assets pledged for security 2016 2015 Secured liabilities
Property, plant and equipment - land $52,420 52,420 Short-term borrowings
Property, plant and equipment - buildings 671 481 Short-term borrowings
Total $53,091 $52,901

9.SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENCIES AND UNRECOGNIZED CONTRACT COMMITMENTS

None.

10.SIGNIFICANT DISASTER LOSS

None.

11.SIGNIFICANT SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

None.
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12.0THERS
(1)Financial instruments

Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets
As of December 31,

2016 2015

Available-for-sale financial assets:

Financial assets measured at cost $11,007 $11,007

Loans and receivables:

Cash and cash equivalents {exclude cash 840,971 836,262

on hand)
Debt instrument investments for which no
active market exists 573,872 436,626

Notes receivables 149 11

Trade receivables 533,152 595,962

Trade receivables from related parties 20,518 24,054

Other receivables 26,183 32,036

Subtotal 1,994,845 1,944,951
Total $2,005,852 $1,955,958
Financial liabilities

As of December 31,
2016 2015

Financial liabilities at amortized cost:

Short-term borrowings $48,070 $67,127

Trade payables 495,392 516,300
Total $543,462 $583,427

(2)Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s principal financial risk management objective is to manage the market risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk related to its operating activates. The Group identifies
measures and manages the aforementioned. risks based on the Group’s policy and risk
appetite.
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The Group has established appropriate policies, procedures and internal controls for
financial risk management. Before entering into significant transactions, due approval
process by the Board of Directors and Audit Committee must be carried out based on
related protocols and internal control procedures. The Group complies with its financial
risk management policies at all times.

(3)Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of the changes in market prices. Market prices comprise currency risk,
interest rate risk and other price risk (such as equity instruments).

In practice, it is rarely the case that a single risk variable will change independently from
other risk variable; there are usually interdependencies between risk variables. However
the sensitivity analysis disclosed below does not take into account the interdependencies
between risk variables.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to
the Group’s operating activities (when revenue or expense are denominated in a different
currency from the Group’s functional currency) and the Group’s net investments in foreign
subsidiaries.

The Group has certain foreign currency receivables to be denominated in the same foreign
currency with certain foreign currency payables, therefore natural hedge is received.
Furthermore, as net investments in foreign subsidiaries are for strategic purposes, they are
not hedged by the Group.

The foreign currency sensitivity analysis of the possible change in foreign exchange rates
on the Group’s profit is performed on significant monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies as at the end of the reporting period. The Group’s foreign currency risk is
mainly related to the volatility in the exchange rates for foreign currency USD. The
information of the sensitivity analyses is as follows:

When NTD is strengthened/weakened against foreign currency USD by 1%, the profit for
the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 decreased/increased by NT$6,211 thousand
and NT$6,146 thousand, respectively.
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Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk
of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s loans and receivables at
variable interest rates, bank borrowings with fixed interest rates and variable interest rates.

The interest rate sensitivity analysis is performed on items exposed to interest rate risk as
at the end of the reporting period, including investments and borrowings with variable
interest rates. At the reporting date, a change of 10 basis points of interest rate in a
reporting period could cause the profit for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 to
increase/decrease by NT$411 thousand and NT$277 thousand, respectively.

Equity price risk

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Group did not have equity securities that are
measured at fair value and therefore did not have equity price risk.

{4)Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from operating activities
(primarily for accounts receivables and notes receivables) and from its financing activities,
including bank deposits and other financial instruments.

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Group’s established
policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit limits
are established for all customers based on their financial position, rating from credit rating
agencies, historical experience, prevailing economic condition and the Group’s internal
rating criteria etc.

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, accounts receivable from top ten customers represent
90.77% and 90.38% of the total accounts receivable of the Group, respectively. The credit
concentration risk of other accounts receivable are relatively not significant.

Credit risk from balances with banks, fixed income securities and other financial
instruments is managed by the Group’s treasury in accordance with the Group’s policy.
The Group only transacts with counterparties approved by the internal control procedures,
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which are banks and financial institutions, companies and government entities with good
credit rating and with no significant default risk. Consequently, there is no significant
credit risk for these counter parties.

(5)Liquidity risk management

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and
flexibility through the use of cash and cash equivalents, bank borrowings, etc. The table
below summarizes the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities based on the
contractual undiscounted payments and contractual maturity. The payment amount
includes the contractual interest. The undiscounted payment relating to borrowings with
variable interest rates is extrapolated based on the estimated interest rate yield curve as at
the end of the reporting period.

Non-derivative financial instruments

Less than 1 year

As of December 31, 2016
Short term borrowings $48,137
Trade and other payables 495,392

As of December 31, 2015
Short term borrowings $67,278
Trade and other payables 516,300

(6)Fair values of financial instruments

(a)The methods and assumptions applied in determining the fair value of financial
instruments:

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
The following methods and assumptions were used by the Group to measure or
disclose the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities:

i. The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivables, accounts
payable and other current liabilities approximate their fair value due to their short
maturities.
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ii. For financial assets and liabilities traded in an active market with standard terms
and conditions, their fair value is determined based on market quotation price
(including listed equity securities, beneficiary certificates, bonds and futures etc.) at
the reporting date.

iii. Fair value of equity instruments without market quotations (including private
placement of listed equity securities, unquoted public company and private
company equity securities) are estimated using the market method valuation
techniques based on parameters such as prices based on market transactions of
equity instruments of identical or comparable entities and other relevant
information (for example, inputs such as discount for lack of marketability, P/E
ratio of similar entities and Price-Book ratio of similar entities).

iv.Fair value of debt instruments without market quotations, bank loans, bonds
payable and other non-current liabilities are determined based on the counterparty
prices or valuation method. The valuation method uses DCF method as a basis, and
the assumptions such as the interest rate and discount rate are primarily based on
relevant information of similar instrument (such as yield curves published by the
Taipei Exchange, average prices for Fixed Rate Commercial Paper published by
Reuters and credit risk, etc.).

v. The fair value of derivatives which are not options and without market quotations, is
determined based on the counterparty prices or discounted cash flow analysis using
interest rate yield curve for the contract period. Fair value of option-based
derivative financial instruments is obtained using on the counterparty prices or
appropriate option pricing model (for example, Black-Scholes model) or other
valuation method (for example, Monte Carlo Simulation).

(b)Fair value of financial instruments measured at amortized cost

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities measure at amortized
cost approximates their fair value.

(c)Fair value measurement hierarchy for financial instruments

Please refer to Note 12(7) for fair value measurement hierarchy for financial

instruments of the Group.
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(7)Fair value measurement hierarchy
(a)Fair value measurement hierarchy

All asset and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole. Level 1, 2 and 3
inputs are described as follows:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date

Level 2 ~ Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorization at the end of each reporting period.

(b)Fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s assets and liabilities

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Group did not have financial assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value.

(8)Significant assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies (in thousand dollars)

Information regarding the significant assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies is listed below:

As of December 31,

2016 2015
Foreign Exchange Foreign Exchange
currencies rate NTD currencies rate NTD
Financial assets
Monetary items:
UsD $20,146 32.73 $659,339 $19,297 33.33 $643,131
VND $852,616,655  0.001457  $1,242,262 $776,043,788  0.00151 $1,172,602
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Investments accounted for using the equity method
VND $84,920,640  0.001457  $123,729 $68,043,635 0.0015]1 $102,748

Financial liabilities

Monetary items:
USD $970  33.01 $32,024 $659 34.04 $22,430
VND $229,083,154  0.001469 $336,591 $272,749,253  0.00151 $412,124

The above information is disclosed based on the carrying amount of foreign currency (after
conversion to functional currency).

The Group’s entities functional currency are various, and hence is not able to disclose the
information of exchange gains and losses of monetary financial assets and liabilities by
each significant assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies. The foreign
exchange gains (losses) were NT$(1,677) thousand and NT$32,083 thousand for the years
2016 and 2015, respectively.

(9)Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a
strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize
shareholder value. The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in
light of changes m economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares.

13.0THER DISCLOSURES

(1)Information at significant transactions:
(a)Financing provided to others: None.
(b)Endorsement/Guarantee provided to others: Please refer to Attachment 1.

(c)Marketable securities held as of December 31, 2016 (excluding investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures): None.
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{d)Individual securities acquired or disposed of with accumulated amount of at least NT$
300 million or 20 percent of the paid-in capital for the year ended December 31, 2016:
None.

(e)Acquisition of individual real estate with amount of at least NT$300 million or 20
percent of the paid-in capital for the year ended December 31, 2016: None.

(HDisposal of individual real estate with amount of at least NT$300 million or 20 percent
of the paid-in capital for the year ended December 31, 2016: None.

(g)Related party transactions with purchase or sales amount of at least NT$100 million or
20 percent of the paid-in capital for the year ended December 31, 2016: None.

(h)Receivables from related parties of at least NT$100 million or 20 percent of the paid-in
capital as of December 31, 2016: None.

()Derivative instrument transactions: None.

(j)Intercompany relationships and significant intercompany transactions for the year ended
December 31, 2016: Please refer to Attachment 5.

(2)Information on investees:

(a)lnvestees over whom the Company exercises significant influence or control (excluding
investees in Mainland China): Please refer to attachment 2.

(b)Investees over which the Company exercises control shall be disclosed of information
under Note 13(1):

i. Financing provided to others: None.
ii. Endorsement/Guarantee provided to others: None.

iii. Marketable securities held as of December 31, 2016 (excluding investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures): Please refer to Attachment 3.

iv. Individual securities acquired or disposed of with accumulated amount of at least
NT$300 million or 20 percent of the paid-in capital for the year ended December
31, 2016: None.
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English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements and Footnotes Originally Issued in Chinese

EUROCHARM HOLDINGS CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (CONTINUED)

(Amounts Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars unless Otherwise Specified)
L e ——— — ——————————————— — ——— ——————————————————~———

vi.

vii,

viii.

ix.

Acquisition of individual real estate with amount of at least NT$300 million or 20
percent of the paid-in capital for the year ended December 31, 2016: None.

Disposal of individual real estate with amount of at least NT$300 million or 20
percent of the paid-in capital for the year ended December 31, 2016: None.

Related party transactions with purchase or sales amount of at least NT$100 million
or 20 percent of the paid-in capital for the year ended December 31, 2016: Please
refer to attachment 4.

Receivables from related parties of at least NT$100 million or 20 percent of the
paid-in capital as of December 31, 2016: None.

Derivative instrument transactions: None.

(3)Information on investments in Mainland China: None.

14.0PERATING SEGMENT

(1)The major operating revenues of the Group come from manufacturing and sales of
motorcycle and auto equipment parts, medical equipment and machine parts. The chief
operating decision maker reviewed the overall operating results to make decision about
resources to be allocated to and evaluated the overall performance. Therefore, the Group

was aggregated into a single segment.

(2)Geographical information

(a)Revenues from external customers

For the year ended December 31,

2016 2015
Vietnam $3,084,643 $2,973,521
Other 1,080,136 1,034,666
Total $4,164,779 $4,008,187
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English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements and Footnotes Originally Issued in Chinese

EUROCHARM HOLDINGS CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (CONTINUED)
(Amounts Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars unless Otherwise Specified)

(b)Non-current assets

As of December 31,
2016 2015
Vietnam $718,828 $720,709
Taiwan 61,714 60,017
Total $780,542 $780,726

(3)Information about major customers: sales from individual customers represent over 10% of
the Group’s operating revenues is as below:

For the year ended December 31,

2016 2015
Customer A $2,082,372 $2,040,986
Customer B Note 359,348

Note:No additional discourses for the year ended December 31, 2016 due to this customer’s
revenue being accounted for less than 10% of net sales.
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ATTACHMENT 1{Endorsemenl/Guarante¢ provided 1o others for the year ended December 31, 2016)

{All the eusrencies are denominated in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars unless otherwise specified)
EURQCHARM HOLBINGS CQ., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Receiving party Amount of Percentage of accumulated

Limit of Maximum collateral for  puarantee amount 1o net assets Limit of tota) Guarantec Guarantce  Guarantee Provided
No. guarantee/endorsement ameunt balance for the Actual amount  guarantee/  value from the latest [inancial guarantec/endorsement Provided by  Provided by  to Subsidiaries in
(MNote 13 Endorser/Guaranter Company name Relationship for receiving party period Ending balance  provided endorsement statement amaung Parent Company A Subsidiary  Mainland China
0 Eurocharm Holdings ~ Apex Preciston Industrial Ltd. Sub-subsidiary The aggregate amount of $31,650 £32.279 5 3 1.25% Limit of totz] guaranteed/endorsed Y N N
Co., Ltd. guarantees/endarsements that the Company as  (USD 1,000)  (USD 1,000} amount shall not exceed 50% net
a whele is permitted 1o make shall not exceed (Noate 2) assets value as of Dec. 31, 2016
40% of the Company’s nel assets. $1,291,019,
0 Eurochain Holdings  Eurocharm Innavation Co., Ltd.  Sub-subsidiary The aggregate amount of $90,000 $£90,000 5- 5 3.48% Limit of total guaranteedfendorsed Y N N
Co,, Ltd. guarantees/end that the Company as amount shall not exceed 50% net
a whok: is permiited 1o make shall not exceed assels value as of Dec. 31, 2016
40% of the Company's net assets. $1,291,015.
0 Eurocharm Holdings  Vietnam Precision Industnal Sub-subsidiary The agyregate amount of $189,254 5187218 5. 5 7.23% Limit of total puaranteed/endorsed Y N N
Co., Lid. No.1 Co., Ltd. guaranteesiendorsements that the Company as  (USD 5,800)  (USD 5,800) amount shall nat exceed 50% net
a whole is permitted to make shall not exceed (Note 2) assets value as of Dec. 31, 2016

40% of the Company's net assets.

Mote 1: Eurocharm Holdings Co., Ltd. is coded "0",
Mote 2: Foreign cumency were exchanged by exchange rate as at balance sheet date.
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ATTACHMENT 2 (If an investor has the ability to exercise significant influence on investee or has material controlling power on investee) {Excluding investment in Mainland China)

(All the currencies are denominated in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, foreign currency)

EUROCHARM HOLDINGS CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Original Investment Amount Investments as of December 31, 2016 Net income
Percentape (loss) of Investment
Investor Investee Numberof  of ownership Book investee income (loss)
Company Company Address Main businesses and products As of Dec. 31,2016 Az of Dec, 31,2015 shares (%) Value company recognized Note
Eurocharm Holdings Eurocharm Innovation British Virgin Islands  Investment holding $615,652 $615,652 19,000,000 100.00% 52,606,913 $553,875 $353,875 Subsidiary
Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd. (B.V.L) (Note 3) (Note 3}
Eurochann Innovation Eurocharm Innovation Taiwan Manufacturing and sales of motor parls 61,425 61,425 5,850,000 100.00% 102,568 17,037 20,787 Sub-subsidiary
Co., Ld, (B.VL) Co., L1d. and medical equipment {Note 3) (Note 1}
(Note 3)
Eurocharm Innovation Vietnam Precision Industrial Vietnan Manufacturing and sales of motor parts usD 8,700 UsD &,700 - 100.00% 2,367,938 522,370 522,370 Sub-subsidiary
Co., Lid. (B.V.I) No.1 Co., Ltd. and medical equipment (Note 3) (Note 3)
Eurocharm Iunovation Apex Precision Industoial Ltd.  Samoa Trading activitics USD 2,000 USD 2,000 2,000,000 100.00% 72,967 12,763 2,964  Sub-subsidiary
Co., Ltd, (B.V.L) (Note 3) (Note 2)
(Note 3)
Eurocharm Innovation Optimal Victory Ltd. Samoa Trading activities USD 900 - 900,000 100.00% 28,981 743 743 Sub-subsidiary
Co.,Lid. (B.V.L) (Note 3) (Note 3)
Eurocharm Innovation Hsten Yuan Technology Vietnam Manufacturing and sales of motor parts UsD 562 UsD 562 - 45.00% 34,234 26,445 11,500 Investment
. . accounted for
Co., Lid. (B.V.1) Vietnam Co.,Ltd. and surface plating using the equity
method
Vietnam Precision Industrial Exedy Vietnam Co., Ltd. Vietrtam Manufacturing and sales of motor parts ~ VND 13,212,264 VND 13,212,264 - 20.00% 89,430 154,959 30,992 Investment
accounted for
No.l Co., Lid. using the equity
method

Note 1; Including investment gain recognized under equity method amounted to NT517,073 thousand, realized profit on transaction between subsidiaries amounted to NT$23,855 thousand and

unrezlized profit on transaction between subsidiaries amounted to NT$20,105 thousand.

Note 2: Including investment gain recognized under equity method amounted to NT$12,763 thousand, realized profit on transaction between subsidiaries amounted to NT515,788 thousand and

unrealized profit on transaction between subsidiaries amounted to NT$25,587 thousand.

Note 3: Transactions between consolidated entities are eliminated in the consolidated financial statements,

5



ATTACHMENT 3 (Securities held as of December 31, 2016) (Excluding subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures)

(All the currencies are denominated in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars unless otherwise specified)

EUROCHARM HOLDINGS CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Investments as of December 31, 2016

Financial Percentage
statement Number of Book of ownership Fair Shares as
Company Investee Company Relationship account shares Value (%) Value Note coilateral
Eurocharm Innovation Vietnam Precision Industrial - Financial assets - $11,007 6.91% - Note 1 None

Co., Ltd.

Joint Stock Company carried at cost

Notel: No active market and the fair value is not reliably measurable.
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ATTACHMENT 4 (Rclated party transactions with purchase or sales amount of at least NT$100 million or 20 percent of the paid-in capital for the year ended December 31, 2016}

(All the currencies are denominated in Thousands of New Taiwan Doliars unless otherwise specified)

EUROCHARM HOLDINGS CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Transactions

Details of non-arm's length transaction

Notes and accounts

receivables (payable)

Percentage of

Purchase (sales) Purchases total purchases Percentage of total
company Related party Relationship (Sales) Amount (sales) (%) Term Unit Price Tem Balance balances (%) Note
Eurocharm Innovation  Vietnam Precision Industrial Also a subsidiary Sales $229,266 50.29% 60~90 days afier monthly By product type, Non related parties Trade receivables 29.66% 1
Co., Ltd. No.1 Co., Ltd, under the company's closing cost, market price are 60~90 days $21,579
control and other trading, after monthly closing

Note 1: Transactions between consolidated entities are eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.
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ATTACHMENT 5(Intercompany rclationships and significant intercompany transactionstime)

(All the currencies are denominated in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars unless otherwise specified)

EUROCHARM HOLDINGS CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

No Intercompany transactions
Nal_ure Df Percentage of
Y I S— — e Mo I Toms
assets (Note3)
Year 2016
1 Eurocharm Innovation Co., Lid. Vietnam Precision Industrial No.1 Co., Lid, 3 Sales $229.266 60~90 days afier monthly closing 5.50%
1 Eurocharm Innovation Co., Ltd. Vietnam Precision Industrial No.1 Co., Ltd. 3 Trade receivables 21,579 60~90 days after monthly closing 0.66%
1 Eurocharm Innovation Co., Lid. Vietnam Precision industrial No.1 Co., Ltd, 3 Other revenue 113 - %o
2 Apex Precision Industrial Lid, Vietnam Precision Industrial No.} Co., Ltd. 3 Sales 79,377 60~90 days after monthly closing 1.91%
2 Apex Precision Industrial Ltd. Vietnam Precision Industrial No.1 Co., Ltd. 3 Trade receivables 2,700 60~90 days after monthly closing 0.08%
Year 2015
1 Eurocharm Innovation Co., Ltd. Vietnam Precision Industrial No.1 Co., Ltd. 3 Sales $339.031 60~90 days after monthly closing 8.46%
1 Eurocharm Innovation Co., Ltd. Vietnam Precision Industrial No.1 Co,, Lid. 3 Trade receivables 24,401 60~90 days after monthly closing 0.75%
1 Eurocharm Innovation Co., Ltd. Eurocharm Innovation Co., Lid. (B.V.L) 2 Interest income 6 - Ya
1 Eurocharm Innovation Co., Ltd. Vietnam Precision Industrial No.1 Co., Ltd. 3 Other revenue 252 - 0.01%
1 Eurocharm Innovation Co., Ltd. Vietnam Precision Industrial No.1 Co., Ltd. 3 Other loss 26 - %o
2 Apex Precision Industrial Ltd. Vietnam Precision Indusirial No.1 Co., Ltd. 3 Sales 67,056 60~90 days after monthly closing 1.67%
2 Apex Precision Industrial Ltd. Vietnam Precision Industrial No.1 Co., Ltd. 3 Trade receivables 11,713 60~90 days after monthly closing 0.36%

Note 1: Furocharm Holdings Ce., Ltd, and subsidiaries are coded as follows:
1. Eurocharm Holdings Co., Ltd. is coded "0".

2. The subsidiaries are coded consecutively beginning from "1" in the order presented in the table above.

Note 2: Transactions are categorized as follows :

I. Investor to investee
2. Investee to investor.

3. Investec to investee,

Note 3: The percentage base with respect to the total consolidated revenue-weighted average (about income statement accounts) or total assets (about balance sheet accounts).

Note 4: Foreign currencies were converted into New Taiwan dollars based on exchanged rate of balance sheet date.
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